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Corporate Mission
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has always been the mission of Hengan
International. We will continue to adhere to our
corporate spirit of “Integrity, Diligence, Innovation
and Dedication”. Our goal is “to build an effective
corporate management and to develop a high
quality, ethical and enthusiastic staff team”. By
building an excellent corporate culture, reinforcing
our brand image, and focusing on consumer and
market need, Hengan International will become
China’s leading corporation in manufacturing and
distribution of fast moving family consumer
products.
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Financial Highlights
MBHEE

CONSOLIDATED RESULT - FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
EHEE-EBET-A=T-HLEE

2024
—E-ImF

Net profit margin — based  #EFEZX - B QA
on profit attributable to EmiEA AEIET
shareholders of the (%)

Company (%) 10.1 11.8 8.5 15.7 20.5

Earnings per share — basic &zt - EA (A
(RMB) R#¥7t) 2.015 2.415 1.657 2.786 3.864

Finished goods turnover K mBEEEE)
(days) 46 42 43 50 49

Trade receivables turnover EUWBEZEEHI ()

(days) 39 42 48 56 57
Current ratio (times) B L 3 () 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.2 1.4
Gross gearing ratio (%) B & E(%) 62.6 69.8 87.2 95.7 107.3
Net gearing ratio (%) F B A E(%) (27.7) (26.4) (23.2) (21.3) (16.1)
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Financial Highlights
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EARNINGS PER SHARE
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ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY PRODUCT
BREREHNED 2BA

Sanitary napkins products Tissue paper products Disposable diapers products Others
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Five-year Financial Summary

EFEHBKEER

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS - FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
EHEE-BE+-A=t-BLFE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2{0)2{0]
—ECNE i e T —F —ZT_FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NGB ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTR

Revenue KA 22,669,215 23,767,936 22,615,878 20,790,144 22,374,001
Profit before income tax B B 153 %6 AU R B 2,971,791 3,605,404 2,833,286 4,329,566 5,961,422
Income tax expense FEHER (675,187) (798,000) (883,986)  (1,039,362)  (1,352,980)
Profit for the year FEANE 2,296,604 2,807,404 1,949,300 3,290,204 4,608,442
Non-controlling interests FEAE I M AR R
JE& 15 A1 (1,931) (6,871) (24,051) (16,603) (13,627)
Profit attributable to REEEFEA
shareholders of the J& {5 F1 E
Company 2,208,535 2,800,533 1,925,249 3,273,601 4,594,815
Earnings per share — basic FikkE - EX
(RMB) (AR ) 2.015 2.415 1.657 2.786 3.864
REVENUE PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
A SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
RMB million AEIEEEEAESGRE
ARBEET RMB million
ARBEEETT
25,000 5,000
20,000 4,000
15,000 3,000
10,000 2,000
5,000 1,000
0 0
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
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Five-year Financial Summary

AFEMBEH

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - AS AT 31 DECEMBER
EHEERAEBE-Rt+tZ-A=+—8H

2024 2023 2022 2020
ot Sl —F——F T —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
INGLEN AR%®TT ARETT AR¥®TRT ARETR
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment #72% - # 28 & % % 8,319,686 7,255,824 7,099,255 7,296,727 7,571,430
Right-of-use assets EREEE 1,171,034 1,190,224 1,192,081 979,055 970,171
Construction-in-progress EREIRE 1,287,158 1,710,626 969,210 509,647 489,052
Investment properties HEMFEHE 181,100 163,360 166,696 216,293 213,609
Intangible assets B EE 612,589 640,498 656,976 724,778 755,444
Prepayments for non-current  3E 7 )& & T8 14 3%
assets 136,187 239,560 460,660 468,652 327,989
Deferred income tax assets  RIEFT/SH & & 491,777 498,460 532,204 544,762 435,853
Investments accounted for BEREARZ
using the equity method ®E 34,678 56,854 43,576 53,330 97,188
Financial assets at fair value AR A EEEAR
through profit or loss HEHTALH
BENEREE 61,149 212,370 212,572 194,342 156,593
Cash and bank balances B e RRITHFR 14,261,723 18,189,943 18,667,492 18,246,687 20,483,739
Long-term bank deposits RESRITER 4,630,685 1,438,163 2,895,490 4,035,960 3,482,147
Other current and non- HAth R 8 K 3E R ED
current assets BE 8,616,645 8,620,019 9,441,030 9,022,515 9,457,710
Total assets BEE 39,804,411 40,215,901 42,337,242 42,292,748 44,440,925
Liabilities &
Long-term borrowings REER 2,420,061 330,430 2,001,334 739,342 2,492,618
Deferred income tax EEMEHARE
liabilities 153,227 182,386 149,433 224,633 216,222
Other current and non- H At R 8 K 3E R ED
current liabilities B 16,085,542 19,073,234 20,410,738 22,048,323 22,070,611
Total liabilities war 18,658,830 19,586,050 22,561,505 23,012,298 24,779,451
Non-controlling interest FE1E I 1 2 224,631 234,011 252,130 243,410 250,084
Net assets attributable to FEE - AR#ER
shareholders of the BFEAEGBELE
Company 20,920,950 20,395,840 19,523,607 19,037,040 19,411,390
EREREEERATE
—E_NEEFER



Company Product Series
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“BANITORE” FIRST-AID PRODUCTS AND “BENDI” ENEMAS
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“ELDERJOY” ADULT CARE PRODUCTS
[RTRIRANEEER

“H'YEAS” AND “HOMELINE” HOUSEHOLD PRODUCTS
MMtE | R[RRAMIRER &

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2024

i,



“ANERLE” AND “Q » MO” BABY DIAPERS
2524 |F0[ 25 K | 52 52 4K PR 48

“SPACE 7" [ "t EZ=[E" ], AND “ANERLE” SANITARY NAPKINS,
PANTILINERS, OVERNIGHT PANTS AND FEMININE INTIMATE WASH
[tEZE IR EEIEED £ G5EEE HEENDTHZR

“HEARTTEX” AND “PINO” POCKET HANDKERCHIEFS,
BOX AND SOFT TISSUE PAPER; AND KITCHEN TOWELS/PAPER
M EE R &SI FRE SERREBAFEHRD
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Chairman’s Statement

FEHREE

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of Hengan International Group Company Limited (“Hengan
International” or the “Group”), | present its annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2024. During the vyear under review, the
international landscape remained complex and volatile, with escalating
geopolitical conflicts and a sluggish global economic recovery.
Supported by the nation’s comprehensive macroeconomic policies, the
Chinese economy achieved steady progress. Competition within the
domestic daily necessities market intensified, with numerous domestic
and international brands engaging in aggressive promotional strategies,
often at the expense of profitability, to vie for market share. Faced with
this challenging and complex operating environment, Hengan
International prioritised profitability and adhered to a rational
promotional policy. Despite the inevitable impact of heightened market
competition on operating performance, the Group exhibited robust
resilience, maintaining relatively stable gross profit margins. Capitalizing
on the growing consumer demand for high-quality goods, the Group
continued to advance product upgrades and premiumisation, resulting
in strong sales performance for premium products. Furthermore,
Hengan International actively expanded and optimised its e-commerce
platforms and new retail channels, enhancing its market share and
further solidifying its leading market position, thereby laying a solid
foundation for sustained high-quality development.

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2024
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For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s revenue
amounted to approximately RMB22,669,215,000 (2023:
RMB23,767,936,000), representing a decrease of 4.6% compared to
the previous year. Profit attributable to the shareholders of the
Company fell approximately 17.9% to RMB2,298,535,000 (2023:
RMB2,800,533,000) during the year. Basic earnings per share was
approximately RMB2.015 (2023: RMB2.415). The Group continued to
maintain a stable dividend policy and remained committed to creating
sustainable returns for its shareholders. The Board of Directors
recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.70 per share
(2023: RMBO0.70 per share), which together with the interim dividend of
RMBO0.70 per share (2023: RMBO0.70 per share), brings the total
dividend for the year to RMB1.40 per share (2023: RMB1.40 per
share).

Hengan actively capitalises on the growth opportunities presented by
emerging domestic consumption patterns, continuing to cultivate
e-commerce platforms and actively expand into new retail markets,
with a particular focus on developing its B2C (business-to-consumer)
business. Through data analysis, the Group precisely targets end
customers, enhancing market share and profitability. Simultaneously,
Hengan is continuously strengthening its marketing efforts in traditional
platforms, expanding coverage and optimising its
omni-channel sales strategy to further unlock the growth potential of
e-commerce and new retail channels. During the year, benefiting from
enhanced omni-channel sales effectiveness and a strong brand
reputation, e-commerce and new retail channels maintained robust
performance, with their sales contribution increasing to 34.1% of
overall sales.

its channel
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Chairman’s Statement

In a rapidly evolving market, the Group remains committed to
prioritising quality, maintaining a zero-tolerance policy towards quality
and safety Guided by customer feedback, the Group
continuously elevates product quality and industry standards, crafting
superior and reliable products. As domestic consumers increasingly
pursue hygiene and high-quality living, the personal and household
hygiene product industry is embracing new opportunities for
premiumisation and refined development. The Group will actively
capitalise on these opportunities, continuously upgrading its products
and enhancing the penetration rate of high-end products, while actively
optimising its brand image to strengthen market competitiveness and
expand its consumer base.

issues.

Leveraging its robust research and development capabilities and keen
market insights, Hengan International
trends, achieving notable results with its premiumisation strategy. In
the tissue paper business, the new “Fluffy Cube” series launched,
driving category growth alongside the popular high-end “Cloudy Soft
Skin” series; demand for wet wipes continued to rise, with market
share steadily expanding. In the sanitary napkin business, the
“Tianshan Cotton Series” continued to receive overwhelming responses
from customers, maintaining stable gross profit margin. In the diaper
business, the premium “Q e MO” series maintained robust growth
momentum, with increasing to 43.5%,
significantly improving gross profit margin. Despite market pressure,
the Group maintained healthy profitability through stable pricing
strategies and continuous product upgrades, laying a solid foundation
for long-term sustainable development.

accurately captures market

its sales contribution

Looking ahead to 2025, while the external environment will remain
challenging,
fundamentals for long-term positive growth are still intact. Facing
global political and economic uncertainties, China is expected to
further strengthen efforts to boost consumption and expand domestic
demand to stimulate domestic economic circulation. The consumers’
pursuit of a higher quality of life will continue to drive the long-term
healthy development of the hygiene and daily necessities market. The
Group will closely monitor domestic and international political and
economic developments and market trends, responding flexibly and
making prudent decisions. With raw material demand and supply
remaining broadly stable, prices of wood pulp, petrochemicals, and
other raw materials are expected to remain relatively stable, which is
conducive to business operations and profit generation. The Group will
continue to deepen its premiumisation strategy to maintain a
competitive edge in a fiercely competitive market, striving to achieve
dual growth in both profit and market share.

China’s economic foundations are solid and the

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2024
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As a leader in the domestic daily products industry, Hengan remains
committed to long-term development, continuously exploring market
growth potential. In the future, the Group will continue to deepen its
three core strategies: “focus on main businesses”, “brand leadership”,
and “long-termism”. The Group will concentrate on its three core
businesses of tissue paper, sanitary napkins, and disposable diapers,
actively pursuing premiumisation and product upgrades to meet the
high-quality products. While
enhancing profitability, the Group will increase brand investment to
build a strong brand image and strengthen market competitiveness.
Simultaneously, the Group will actively seize opportunities in the new

ever-growing consumer demand for

retail market, strengthen its penetration in new retail channels while
maintaining stable growth in traditional channels. This will enhance the
Group’s omni-channel sales competitiveness, thereby fostering
long-term development and consolidating its market leadership
position.

Hengan International has always considered its employees to be its
most valuable asset and is committed to fostering a warm, inclusive,
diverse, and positive work environment. The Group continues to
optimise its talent cultivation system, establishing a comprehensive
talent development framework and diversified promotion channels to
attract and cultivate top industry talent, fully unleashing the potential of
each employee to achieve mutual growth between the company and
its staff.

Lastly, | would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to all shareholders, and partners for their
unwavering confidence and support in Hengan. | would also like to
thank all members of staff for their dedication, commitment, and hard
work throughout the past year. The future holds both challenges and
opportunities. The Group will remain committed to pursuing steady
growth, striving to create long-term value and sustainable returns for
its shareholders.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report

THRBEHRES

HUI CHING LAU

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2024, as incremental and existing policies took effect, the national
economy showed steady progress,
product (“GDP”) growth of 5.0% year-on-year. Driven by policies to
expand domestic demand and boost consumption,
market experienced stable growth. In 2024, China’s total retail sales of
consumer goods increased by 3.5% year-on-year, of which total retail

achieving a gross domestic

the consumer

sales of daily necessities increased by 3.0%. However, the escalating
geopolitical tensions and the rise of trade protectionism hindered
global economic recovery.
landscape, the Group actively enhanced its competitive advantages,
focusing on enhancing profitability, advancing product premiumisation,
deepening e-commerce and new retail strategies, and continuously
expanding its market presence for steady development.

In response to this complex business

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2024
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Despite the overall stable growth of the domestic consumer market in
2024, there is still room for improvement in residents’ consumption
capacity and willingness. The competition in the domestic daily
necessities market has intensified, with many domestic and foreign
brands adopting low-price promotions strategy to capture market
share, leading to a decline in average selling price in the industry and
a negative growth in overall market sales. However, Hengan seized the
opportunity presented by the increasing demand for high-quality
personal care products and the fragmentation of consumption
channels. Through price stabilisation strategies and product line
continuous upgrades and premiumisation, Hengan greatly expanded
into e-commerce platforms and new channels,
promoted sales and created new growing points
channels. The Group’s omni-channel sales strategy continued to
progress, with its market share consistently leading the industry. As of
31 December 2024, the Group’s revenue decreased by 4.6% to
approximately RMB22,669,215,000 (2023: RMB23,767,936,000) as
compared to last year. In 2025, the Group will continue to adopt
omni-channel strategy, comprehensive brand optimisation and stable
pricing strategies, the Group’s revenue is expected to remain stable.

retail and also

in traditional

Leveraging opportunities presented by the integration of online and
offline consumption models, the Group continued to step up its efforts
in developing its e-commerce business and new retail market. In
addition to promoting brands on traditional large-scale e-commerce
platforms, it also strengthened penetration into other emerging
e-commerce channels. During the year, the proportion of the Group’s
e-commerce and new retail sales (including Retail Integrated (“Z&iB”)
and New Channel (“¥Ti#8¥") further increased to approximately 34.1%
(2023: 30.1%), with increasing by approximately 8.0%
year-on-year. In addition, the Group continued to promote sales and
create new growing points in traditional channels during the year,
steadily advancing its omni-channel sales strategy. Meanwhile, by
actively identifying of consumer demand for high-quality hygiene
products and personalised experiences, the Group developed new
technologies for product upgrades, accelerating the development of
premium products and optimisation of product mix. This strategy
enhanced the brand image and injected new impetus into its long-term
development. These products, which include the premium disposable
diapers series “Q ¢ MO”, and the sanitary napkins series “Sweet Dream
Pants” (B4 8E #8) and premium brand “Tianshan Cotton” (X LU % 13),
continued to be well-received by consumers and maintained strong
sales momentum throughout the year. The sales of various key
products also achieved a year-on-year growth of more than 10.0%
and continued to increase its proportion over the sales, while also
improving their brand image and reputation.

revenue
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Despite the steady increase in the sales proportion of premium
high-margin products and savings on petrochemical raw material costs
for sanitary napkins during the year, the lagging effect of rising wood
pulp prices for tissue paper in the second quarter led to an increase in
inventory costs in the third quarter. In addition, promotional expenses
increased substantially by over 10.0% during the vyear, exerting
pressure on the Group’s gross profit. In 2024, the Group’s overall
gross profit decreased by approximately 8.6% to approximately
RMB7,324,940,000 (2023: RMB8,010,688,000). The gross profit margin
decreased to approximately 32.3% (2023: 33.7%). It is expected that
in 2025, the Group will prudently allocate promotional resources, while
premium, high-margin products are expected to sustain significant
growth. With raw material prices expected to stay consistent, the
Group’s gross profit is anticipated to remain stable.

During the year, the Group’s operating profit decreased by 15.7% to
approximately RMB3,354,591,000 (2023: RMB3,977,931,000), mainly
in overall gross profit. Profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company dropped by 17.9% to approximately
RMB2,298,535,000 (2023: RMB2,800,533,000). In 2024, the Group’s
basic earnings per share was approximately RMB2.015 (2023:
RMB2.415).

due to the decline

The Board of Directors declared a final dividend of RMB0.70 per share
(2023: RMBO0.70 per share) for the year ended 31 December 2024,
together with the interim dividend of RMBO0.70 per share (2023 first
half: RMBO0.70 per share) already paid, total dividend for the year
amounted to RMB1.40 per share (2023: RMB1.40 per share) or
RMB1,626,970,000 (2023: RMB1,626,970,000), maintaining a stable
dividend amount.
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Sanitary Napkin

China has the world’s leading feminine care products market. With the
growing awareness of feminine care and increasing of purchasing
power, there is a growing emphasis on product quality, safety and
added value, driving premiumisation, upgrades and continuous
expansion of the market. as the market competition has
intensified, many domestic and foreign brands adopted aggressive
sales strategies to tap into the mid-to-high-end market and young
consumers. Hengan has full confidence in its product quality and
longstanding reputation among customers and adheres to a rational
and stable pricing strategy. In order to enhance the brand image and
consolidate its leading position in the mid-to-high-end market and
traditional sales channels, Hengan continued to promote product
upgrades and premiumisation to meet consumers’
high-quality feminine care products, so as to reinforce its leading
position amid fierce market competition. The Group’s premium
“Tianshan Cotton” launched in the second half of 2023
remained a hot seller throughout the year due to its excellent quality
and brand image.

However,

demand for

series

The continuous rapid increase in the penetration of new consumption
patterns has exacerbated the fragmentation of channels. E-commerce
platforms and other emerging retail channels (including community
group-buying) are thriving. The Group actively seized the opportunities
of emerging consumption trends, vigorously expanded emerging sales
channels, and its advantages
However, the competition in the domestic sanitary napkin market
became increasingly fierce during the year, both domestic and foreign
brands adopted aggressive price reduction and promotion strategies to
expand their market share, resulting in an impact on sales. In 2024,
the revenue of the Group’s sanitary napkin business decreased by
approximately 8.1% to approximately RMB5,677,965,000 (2023:
RMB6,178,438,000), accounting for approximately 25.0% (2023:
26.0%) of the Group’s overall revenue. The sanitary napkin market is
expected to remain challenging in 2025. However, driven by the
growing proportion of upgraded and premium products, along with the
stable development and expansion of traditional and new retail sales
channels, the Group’s sanitary napkin business is anticipated to
recover and achieve stable revenue growth.

reinforced in traditional channels.
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The Group adheres to a stable pricing strategy and prudent allocation
of promotional Benefitting from the in the
proportion of upgraded and premium products, as well as cost
savings from petrochemical raw materials, the main raw material for
sanitary napkins during the year, the gross profit margin of the sanitary
napkin business remained stable at around 63.7% in 2024 (2023:
63.8%). While seizing the opportunities in the domestic market, and
driven by product upgrades and premiumisation, the Group expects
the gross profit margin would continue to improve in 2025.

expenses. increase

The Group’s sanitary napkin brand +fEZEfE continues to launch
upgraded and premium products and strives to enhance its brand
image. In recent years, the Group launched upgraded products such
as “Ultra-thin” (353&) and “Pants-style” (#7%!) series, which received an
overwhelming response from the market. The “Tianshan Cotton” series
that the Group promoted during the year, uses rare and pure long
staple cotton from snowy mountains to meet the demand of today’s
customers for high-quality products. Although the series was only
launched in the second half of 2023, its sales already exceeded
RMB400.0 million during the year, and are expected to gradually
increase. The Group signed Zhao Jinmai, a female artist with a bright
and positive image, as the brand ambassador of + & Z=fi, injecting
youthful vitality into the brand. With the theme of “Freedom Without
Limits”, the Group launched a variety of promotional activities, such as
brand ambassador live streaming, meetings and limited-edition gift
sets, based on the preferences of young female customers and
white-collar women to further enhance the brand image and attract
young and white-collar customers.
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In addition, the “Pants-style” series still has great growth potential with
sales reaching RMB587.0 million during the year, a year-on-year
increase of approximately 21.5%. The Group will continue to vigorously
promote the “Pants-style” series of products to consumers and launch
an upgraded version of “Sweet Dream Pants” to attract more
consumers and further increase market penetration. The Group
believes that the upgraded and premium products of the + & %=
series will continue to be the main growth driver for the sanitary
napkin business in the future, which will help the Group expand its
market share and increase the revenue contribution of premium
products. Moreover, the Group’s sanitary napkin brand “Anerle” (% &R
£4) Jaunched instant-absorbing liquid sanitary napkins during the year.
This product utilises patented core and 3D liquid compartment
technology, allowing for quick absorption and leakage prevention. It
has been popular among domestic consumers.

Meanwhile, the Group will continue to increase the sales proportion of
new retail channels, develop high quality products, maintain stable
pricing, in traditional channels, thereby
promoting the Group’s long-term development and reinforcing its
leading position. The Group will also develop and launch other
feminine care products beyond sanitary napkins, steadily develop the

and consolidate growth

feminine care industry, and seize market opportunities.
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Tissue Paper

Tissue paper has become a staple for both home use and travel.
Consumers are increasingly prioritising quality, functionality, and
environmental sustainability, driving the premiumisation and eco-friendly
upgrades in the tissue market. During the year, intense price wars
among domestic brands led to a decline in industry sales. In response
to the accelerated consolidation in the industry, the Group focused on
enhancing profitability and product premiumisation. Through stable
pricing, omni-channel sales, brand optimisation, product diversification,
and cost control, the Group successfully bucked the trend, achieved
growth in tissue paper sales volume and further expanded its market
share. During the year, benefitting from the Group’s effective “value
competition” strategy, the sales proportion of premium tissue paper
continued to rise, resulting in a low single-digit growth in overall tissue
paper sales volume. However, due to promotional expenses increasing
by over 10.0% and a significant decline of more than 26.0% in raw
paper sales, the Group’s tissue paper business saw a year-on-year
revenue decrease of approximately 2.4%, amounting to approximately
RMB13,422,445,000 (2023: RMB13,748,172,000).
narrower than the 3.1% drop recorded in the first half of 2024, mainly
due to a recovery in tissue paper sales in the fourth quarter of 2024.
Its revenue accounted for approximately 59.2% of the Group’s total
revenue (2023: 57.8%). Looking ahead to 2025, despite ongoing price
reductions and promotions in the industry, the demand for premium,
high-quality tissue paper is expected to grow continuously. The Group
will continue to upgrade its products and increase the penetration rate
of premium products to mitigate the impact of
competition on tissue paper sales, ensuring stable performance in the
tissue paper business.

This decline was

industry price
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In 2024, although the Group made significant strides in product
premiumisation, the gross profit margin of the tissue paper business
was under pressure due to fluctuations in raw material prices and
increased promotional expenses. Wood pulp prices rose in the second
quarter and then dropped in the third quarter.
three-month lag in wood pulp prices, coupled with rising promotional
costs, led to an increase in the Group’s wood pulp inventory costs in
the third quarter, with a slight improvement seen in the fourth quarter.
The gross profit margin for the Group’s tissue paper business declined
in the second half of the year compared to the first half, resulting in a
decrease to approximately 18.9% for 2024 (2023: 21.7%). Looking
ahead to 2025, the Group plans to control promotional expenses and
continue increasing the sales proportion of premium products. In
addition, with wood pulp prices expected to remain stable, this should
help sustain stable gross profit margin for the tissue paper business.

However, the

Driven by the improvement of national health awareness and the
growing demand for consumption upgrades, the Group’s upgraded
and premium tissue paper products achieved remarkable sales. In
March 2024, the Group’s brand “Hearttex” (\0>#8 Efl) joined hands with
the industry to release the “100% Virgin Wood Pulp” logo, aiming to
establish quality standards for tissue paper and drive the quality
upgrade of the household paper industry. At the same time, the Group
introduced the “Fluffy Cube” series of tissue paper products (including
facial tissue and kitchen roll). “Fluffy Cube” is a new tissue paper
series of the Group, produced by the first TAD tissue machine in
China. It is also the first tissue paper series in China to adopt the TAD
technology. TAD is an internationally recognised high-quality household
paper production technology, providing a disruptive upgrade in comfort
and practicality. The “Fluffy Cube” series facial tissue is soft and gentle
on the skin, while the kitchen roll can absorb oil and trap water
effectively.
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In terms of wet wipes business, domestic consumers are increasingly
prioritising the functionality and convenience of hygiene products,
making wet wipes a daily necessity. Consumer demand and
penetration rate of domestic wet wipe products have increased
continuously. The diversification of wet wipe products is expanding its
applications to meet consumers’ personalised needs, driving the rapid
development of the wet wipes market. Leveraging its excellent product
quality and thoughtful packaging design, the Group’s wet wipes
business maintained strong growth momentum. By launching a
diversified wet wipes product mix, the Group accelerated penetration
into toilet wet wipes, cooling towels, baby wipes, adult wipes, and
household cleaning wipes and other market segments, meeting various
preferences and demands of consumers, and establishing itself as a
market leader. Moreover, the gross profit margin of wet wipes is the
highest among tissue paper products, with distinguished profitability.
During the year, the gross profit margin of wet wipes was 50.7%. The
Group’s Hearttex wet wipes are made of high-quality spunlace
nonwoven fabric with moisturising liquid, soft to touch yet strong, and
are renowned as the “No. 1 brand in the domestic wet wipes
industry”. With the Group’s continuous deep cultivation of the wet
wipes market, its wet wipes business experienced breakthrough
growth this year, with revenue exceeding RMB1.0 billion for the first
time. Its revenue surged 30.7% to approximately RMB1,216,677,000
(2023: RMB931,060,000), accounting for approximately 9.1% of the
overall sales of the tissue paper business (2023: 6.8%). Driven by the
increasing demand for premium and personalised hygiene products,
the wet wipes business is expected to maintain robust growth. The
Group will continue to seize the opportunities brought by the strong
growth momentum of the wet wipes market, expand its market share
in the domestic wet wipes market and consolidate its market
leadership.

In addition, the Group is also committed to enhancing the brand image
of “Hearttex” and demonstrating its care for society. During the year,
the Group launched the “Rosy Life” (33 A %) co-branded facial tissue
of “Hearttex” and Majid. Majid is a former senior Arabic teacher who
tramped the streets of Syria due to the unfortunate of war and iliness.
He could only stay afloat by selling tissue paper. “Hearttex” sent roses
and handwritten letters to Majid and his wife to express the brand’s
respect. “Hearttex” also added an illustration of Majid and the quote,
“We must live life to the fullest” on the tissue packaging. In addition,
the Group invited Majid to participate in a live broadcast, which won
high praise from all walks of life. “Hearttex” leveraged its brand
influence to awareness of Majid and other socially
vulnerable and displaced individuals, thoroughly implementing the
brand slogan of “Love in Hearttex” and deepening the warm and
caring brand image of “Hearttex”.

raise social
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The Group actively responded to the fragmentation of channels and
the efforts and resources invested in strategic deployment in the early
years have entered the harvest period. The tissue paper business
performed remarkably retail channels
(including Retail Integrated, community group-buying, etc.), with a sales
growth of approximately 13.0%, accounting for nearly 40.0% of the
overall sales of tissue paper. In the future, the Group will continue its
endeavours in expanding different sales channels, striving for the
largest market share.

in e-commerce and new

In the face of fierce market competition, the Group will develop more
high-quality products to meet the diverse and personalised needs of
consumers, improve the cost-effectiveness of tissue paper production,
and increase the production capacity of each production base, to fully
grasp opportunities in the domestic tissue paper market and maintain
its leadership in the tissue paper market. During the year, the Group’s
annual production capacity increased to approximately 1,630,000
tonnes. The Hubei Xiaogan phase | project and the Guangdong Yunfu
phase | project were also put into production. It is expected that in
2025, the remaining production capacity of the Guangdong Yunfu
project will be gradually completed to meet market conditions and
support sales growth.

Disposable Diapers

With the continuous ageing population and rising consumption level of
residents, China’s disposable diaper market is experiencing significant
growth. Consumption upgrade and evolving parenting concepts have
also prompted the continuous increase in the penetration rate of baby
disposable diapers. Furthermore, the growing trust and recognition of
local brands among domestic consumers are creating a wealth of
opportunities in China’s disposable diaper market.

o e
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The Group continues to develop high-quality baby and adult care
products to meet customers’ growing demand for product quality.
During the year, sales of the flagship premium product “Q e MO”
maintained substantial growth, with sales reaching RMB548.0 million, a
year-on-year growth of approximately 20.1%, and its proportion further
increased to about 43.5%. In 2024, the Group strived to strengthen
the development of new retail channels and maternity sales channels,
with new retail channels and maternity sales channels accounting for
approximately 53.9% and 21.8% of sales, respectively. Despite fierce
market competition, bolstered by enhanced brand competitiveness, the
continuous sales growth of the Group’s premium product “Q e MO”
effectively offset the decline in sales from traditional channels and
mid-to-low-end products. On the other hand, benefitting from the
growing domestic adult incontinence products market and the
continuous increase in the penetration rate of the Group’s adult
disposable diapers, the sales of the Group’s adult disposable diaper
business remained stable during the year, accounting for
approximately 24.0% of the overall diaper sales. As a result, the sales
of the Group’s disposable diaper business increased by approximately
0.5% to approximately RMB1,260,631,000 (2023: RMB1,254,070,000),
accounting for approximately 5.6% (2023: 5.3%) of the Group’s overall
revenue. With the steady increase in the proportion of premium baby
and adult diaper products, the sales of the Group’s disposable diaper
business are expected to maintain growth in 2025. In terms of gross
profit margin, the stable price of petrochemical raw materials for
disposable diapers during the year, coupled with the increase in the
proportion of sales of the higher-margin premium “Q e MO” products
(with a margin of over 50.0%) led to a substantial improvement in the
gross profit margin of the diaper business to approximately 45.4% in
2024 (2023: 38.1%). The Group expects the gross profit margin of the
disposable diaper business to further improve in 2025.

During the year, the Group continued to seize market opportunities,
further developed the premium product market and enhanced product
quality. Regarding the baby diaper business, the Group continued to
rebrand the “Anerle” (% 528 4%) brand in recent years, established a new
brand positioning, and developed sports pants-style diapers to meet
the needs of today’s consumers, effectively driving an increase in
sales. On the other hand, “Qe MO” magic breathing diapers, which
have 3.6 times more vents than traditional diapers, are very popular in
the market. The Group will continue to optimise diaper products to
capture domestic growth opportunities and gain a larger market share.
With the dual-brand strategy, the Group anticipates that sales of the
baby diaper business will continue to grow steadily in 2025.
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In the future, the Group will continue to develop the baby care market
and the adult care market in parallel with a premium products
strategy. In addition to e-commerce sales channels, the Group will
vigorously develop new retail channels and also increase cooperation
with maternity stores, nursing homes and hospitals. On the one hand,
it will seize new business opportunities brought by new retail. On the
other hand, through cooperation with maternity stores, nursing homes
and hospitals, it will expand the Group’s potential customer base, and
provide a one-stop product sales chain, bringing sustainable growth
momentum to the disposable diaper business, supporting the
long-term development of the adult care business and continuing to
tap the growth potential of the adult care market.

Other Income and Household Products

Regarding other income and household products, the Group’s revenue
for the year, which mainly includes revenues from raw material trading
business, household products business, and Wang-Zheng Group in
Malaysia, decreased by approximately 10.8% year-on-year to
approximately RMB2,308,174,000 (2023: RMB2,587,256,000). The
decline was mainly due to the Group’s preference to reserve raw
materials for the manufacturing of products and ensure reasonable
profits from its raw material trading business. As a result, revenue from
raw material trading business dropped significantly by approximately
17.1% to approximately RMB1.16 billion (2023: RMB1.4 billion).
Benefitting from the effective implementation of a profit-focused
strategy, the gross profit margin of the Group’s other income business
rose to 26.1% in 2024 (2023: 23.4%).
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During the year, revenue from the household products business was
approximately RMB252,535,000 (2023: RMB249,589,000), representing
a year-on-year increase of approximately 1.2%, accounting for
approximately 1.1% (2023: 1.1%) of the Group’s revenue.

In recent years, the Group greatly expanded the product range of its
brand, “Hearttex” with the successive launch of plastic bags (including
garbage bags and disposable gloves), food wrap film, dish detergent
and paper cups etc. Sunway Kordis and its subsidiaries have sales
channels to export products to overseas sales network (including the
markets in Australia and Asia). The Group will continue to take
advantage of these overseas sales network to bring Hengan’s
high-quality products to overseas markets.

International Business Development

The Group has been actively expanding to overseas markets. In 2024,
turnover of overseas channel (excluding Wang-Zheng Group business)
for the year was approximately RMB1,166,774,000 (2023:
RMB1,586,085,000), accounting for approximately 5.1% of the Group’s
overall sales (2023: 6.7%).

During the year, the Group’s Wang-Zheng Group business in Malaysia
saw a steady development and its turnover increased by 10.9% to
approximately RMB485,610,000 (2023: RMB437,699,000) accounting
for approximately 2.1% of the Group’s overall sales (2023: 1.8%).
Wang-Zheng Group is principally engaged in investment holding and
the manufacturing and processing of fiber-based products, which
include adult and baby disposable diapers, and tissue products,
cotton products and processed papers. Its brands include “P Love”
adult disposable diapers, personal hygiene and tissue
products. The Group leveraged on the Malaysian Wang-Zheng Group
as its base to bring Hengan’s tissue and adult disposable diapers
products into the Southeast Asian market.

“Carina”

In the future, the Group will continue to upgrade its existing
Wang-Zheng products, develop and launch more good quality
products under the Wang-Zheng brand and further increase its market
share in Malaysia and Southeast Asia.
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E-commerce and New Retail Channel Strategies

The rapid growth of e-commerce and new retail channels, fueled by
the rise of online-offline integrated consumption and the digital
economy, is expanding the online shopping market and injecting new
vitality into the retail sector. According to statistics, the national online
retail sales of physical goods reached RMB13.1 ftrillion in 2024,
representing an increase of 6.5%, of which the online retail sales of
daily necessities increased by 6.3%.
ever-upgrading needs of consumers, the Group continues to innovate,
develop and optimise e-commerce and other new retail channels, and
adapt to the market trends to grasp business opportunities. During the
year, the Group carried out higher quality product promotions for
various brands its stable pricing strategy
received positive responses from the market, thus further enhancing
the Group’s brand awareness and market share in online and other
new retail channels.

In order to meet the

in new channels, and

In 2024, the Group’s e-commerce and new retail channels (including
Retail Integrated and New Channel) maintained a robust development
momentum. The sales for the year increased by approximately 8.0% to
more than RMB7.73 billion (2023: RMB7.16 billion), bringing the
proportion of e-commerce sales up to approximately 34.1% (2023:
30.1%) of the Group’s overall sales. During the vyear, new retalil
channels contributed approximately 39.7%, 27.9% and 53.9% to the
sales of tissue paper sanitary napkin business, and
disposable diaper business respectively. It is expected that the
proportion of sales in new retail channels will be further increased in
the future.

business,

In the future, the Group will embrace emerging consumer trends and
models in e-commerce and new retail, continue to step up its efforts
in developing its e-commerce brand flagship stores and emerging
channels (such as Douyin) and strengthen its data analytics capabilities
for end customers to broaden consumer reach.

To cater for the new consumer trends, the Group has interacted with
consumers through livestream sales and other community activities to
strengthen the connection with young consumers. The Group also
appointed Xiao Zhan, a popular artist, as the global brand ambassador
of “Hearttex” to further enhance the brand influence. The Group will
continue to increase its market share in e-commerce and new retail
channels to inject strong impetus for rapid growth in the future.
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Selling and Administrative Expenses

As the Group moderately increased its online marketing investment in
2024 to capture market opportunities and promote the Group’s key
selling products, the Group’s selling and administrative expenses for
the year amounted to approximately RMB5,110,229,000 (2023:
RMB5,068,887,000), representing a slight year-on-year increase of
approximately 0.8%. However, due to the drop in revenue, the
proportion of the Group’s selling and administrative expenses to the
total revenue for the year slightly increased to approximately 22.5%
(2023: 21.3%). The Group believes that through the implementation of
targeted sales and promotion strategies, the ratio of these expenses to
revenue is expected to improve in 2025.

Foreign Currency Risks

Most of the Group’s income is denominated in Renminbi. During the
year, Renminbi depreciated against the U.S. dollar and the H.K. dollar.
The Group recorded an operating exchange loss of approximately
RMB170.0 million (2023: RMB180.0 million), remaining stable year on
year.

As at 31 December 2024, apart from certain foreign currency swap
contracts entered into with certain large commercial banks, the Group
had not issued any significant financial instruments or entered into any
significant contracts for foreign currency hedging purposes.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Bank Loans

The Group has always maintained a solid financial position. As at
31 December 2024, the Group’s cash and bank balances, long-term
time deposits and restricted bank deposits amounted to approximately
RMB18,892,708,000 (2023: RMB19,628,406,000); and bank borrowings
and other borrowings amounted to approximately RMB13,089,848,000
(2023: RMB14,237,625,000).

In December 2022, the Group successfully registered super short-term
commercial papers in an aggregate amount of not more than RMB5.0
billion. In March 2024, the Group issued two batches of super
short-term commercial papers in an aggregate amount of RMB5.0
billion with a coupon rate of 2.1% per annum and tenors ranging from
180 days to 182 days. The proceeds from the issuance of the two
batches of super short-term commercial papers are intended to be
used to supplement the working capital of the Group and its
subsidiaries and to repay their debts. The two batches of commercial
papers have been fully repaid by 31 December 2024.

The bank borrowings and other borrowings were subject to floating
annual interest rates ranging from approximately 0.001% to 5.39%
(2023: from approximately 0.05% to 6.45%).
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As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s gearing ratio, which was
calculated on the basis of the total amount of borrowings as a
percentage of the total shareholders’ equity (not including
non-controlling interests) was approximately 62.6% (2023: 69.8%).
While the net gearing ratio, which was calculated on the basis of the
amount of borrowings less cash and bank balances and long-term
time deposits as a percentage of the shareholders’ equity (not
including non-controlling interests), was approximately negative 27.7%
(81 December 2023: negative 26.4%). The Group was in a net cash
position of approximately RMB5.80 billion (2023: RMB5.39 billion) The
Group will stay committed to optimising the gearing
maintaining a solid net cash position to ensure a sound financial
position.

ratio and

During the year, the Group’s capital expenditure was approximately
RMB1,688,986,000 (2023: RMB1,843,888,000), primarily allocated to
increase the production capacity of various manufacturing facilities. As
at 31 December 2024, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

Human Resources and Management

During the year, the Group actively improved the efficiency of human
resources, raised the salaries of employees to the industry level, and
implemented a more scientific and reasonable “target remuneration”
system by linking the salary system with the staff duties and
responsibilities and task goals, thus stimulating the staff enthusiasm
for work, and improving work efficiency. As at 31 December 2024, the
Group employed approximately 24,000 staff members. The Group’s
remuneration package is determined with reference to the experience
and qualifications of the individual employees and general market
conditions. Bonus is linked to the Group’s financial results as well as
individual performance. The Group also ensures that all employees are
provided with adequate training and career opportunities according to
their needs. The Group will also continue to improve efficiency and
adjust production capacity and supply levels.
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Latest Awards
In 2024, awards and honours won by the Group were as follows:

Quanzhou Charity Enterprise
RMEEE

Key Industry Energy Efficiency “Leading” Enterprise
— Hengan (China) Paper Co., Ltd.
BEHRTERAMEREICE -BR(PEDAXER LA

Ranked 89th on the 2024 Top 100 Annual Brand List — Hearttex
20248 K4 2 dn h8 15 28894 — /0 45 E)

China’s Baby Diaper Industry, China’s Feminine Hygiene Products
Industry, China’s Adult Incontinence Products Industry, Top 10
Enterprises in China’s Wipes Industry 2024

2024 F AR BIBEAH M7  BRARETE  KMEFHERMITERKA
AEARITETREE

2024 China Hygiene Products Industry Ingenuity Product
- Anerle (Z B %), Anerle (% 52 4%), ElderJoy (% M &), and + & %=,
China Tissue Paper Industry Ingenuity Product — Hearttex

2024 F P RHERMITEELDER - ZRE ZRE ZMELEE
i REEFERATEREOCER - OMEEH

Top 10 Technological Innovation Enterprises in China’s Tissue Paper
Industry
REAERBITE T ERRAIFEE

Deputy Director Unit
BEAZEENM

All-Asia Executive Team 2024: Most Honoured Company and Best ESG
(Consumer Staples Sector)

20244 5 M 1= X B) & 7R B B AT
BB HEEEERERD
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Top 100 Manufacturing and Innovative Private Enterprises in Fujian
REABEXERAFE RS %1005
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Quanzhou Municipal People’s Government
FINT AR BT

General Office of the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology, National
Development and Reform Commission, and
State Administration for Market Regulation
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Sina Finance, China Brand Innovation Lab, and

Mido
REE HhEmEEIERE BE
China Technical Association of Paper Industry
FEERES

China Technical Association of Paper Industry
hEEREE

China Technical Association of Paper Industry
PEERES

Hygiene Products Committee of China
Technical Association of Paper Industry
HEEREEA AR EXEEE
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Institutional Investor
(18 3% & & ) (Institutional Investor)

Fujian Federation of Industry and Commerce

BRATHEBAR
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Outstanding Entrepreneur Group Practicing the “Jinjiang Experience”
BIT[E1I&RIBSOERER

Top 100 Manufacturing Enterprises in Fujian 2024 (21st Place)
2024fR R RIE D100 (B =+ — %)

The 31st China International Advertising Festival Great Wall Awards
Annual Brand Competition — Nominated Brand of the Year, and Good
Merchandise of China 2024 Brand Enterprise

EMETRERESHRMBFEMEEERE - FERERE XK
B i §20245F & in b8 1k %

Outstanding ESG Enterprises Recognition Scheme 2024
— Prestigious ESG Accomplishment of the Year
ESG#R % 5= o B 7k 48 3¢ R i 182024 — ESGHF [Z 45 Epl 5t K 8

The 7th “Dingge Awards” Digital Transformation Pioneer List 2024 — All-
Data Smart Enterprise of the Year (Hengan Supply Chain Optimisation
Project and Hengan ERP Private Cloud Upgrade Project)

24FLEIRERIBF(ERLABEE - FERRBEEE0ER(ER
HEEAEE{IER  BLXERPLAEEARIER)

JD Supermarket 10th Anniversary “Sales Excellence Brand Award”
— Hearttex; JD Supermarket Personal Care Industry — Leading Industry
Brands ([ %= & and ElderJoy)

RREBMTREFIHELHRERE] - VAR RRBMEETE - 17
¥EREmE(EEZ=ME - ©MmE)

Annual Outstanding Marketing Award and Tmall Beauty Award
- Hearttex and + & %= f
FEBREHERRERME - DHEH EEZEM

China Best Managed Companies 2024 — China Best Managed Company
Gold Award
2024FHFHEMERAR -hEEHERAG R
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Publicity Department of the CPC Fujian
Provincial Committee

wBEEZEMEH

Fujian Enterprises and Entrepreneurs
Confederation, Fujian Academy of Social
Sciences, and Fujian Media Group

BREPEEMPERBEE RBEMLESREZ
o BREEAERTREEE

China Advertising Association
TREESHE

Sing Tao News Corporation and The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University
ESHESE FHEEIKRE

Caijing Magazine and SAP
(B SAPRE LT QA

JD Supermarket
RERE™

Tmall Supermarket
RIHHET

Deloitte China, Bank of Singapore, HKUST
Business School, and Harvard Business
Review (Chinese Edition)
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Corporate Social Responsibility

With the vision of “growing together with all stakeholders and
constantly moving towards becoming a top-tier daily products
company”, Hengan has constructed the “GROWTH” ESG strategic
framework to promote in-depth collaboration with all stakeholders and
achieve efficient collaborative development. Focusing on areas such as
excellent governance, green development, customer care, employee
empowerment, trusted partners, and healthy communities, Hengan
uses sustainable practices as the engine to drive the enterprise
forward with high quality and steadily move towards the goal of “gain
RMB100 billion within 100 years”.
With the concerted efforts of all stakeholders, Hengan has
continuously improved the transparency of ESG information disclosure
and rating performance. In 2024, our Hang Seng ESG rating was
upgraded to “A”, and we were included in the “Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Benchmark Index” for the first time. Additionally, as of the
end of the reporting period, Hengan’s MSCI ESG rating reached the
“BBB” rating, its FTSE Russell rating has been raised for three
consecutive years, and it has been successfully selected as a
constituent stock of the FTSE4Good Index Series. And Hengan has
been successfully included in S&P Global’s Sustainability Yearbook
(China Edition) or two consecutive years since 2023.

In 2024, we were also awarded the “Prestigious ESG Accomplishment
of the Year” at the “Outstanding ESG Enterprises Recognition Scheme
2024” in Hong Kong, becoming the only consumer goods company to
be shortlisted for the award.

Excellent Governance

Hengan is committed to ensuring shareholder interests while creating
value for stakeholders and the whole society through the establishment
of a sound governance system. The Group has established a four-level
ESG governance structure from top to bottom, including the Board of
Directors, ESG Committee, ESG Working Group, and
functional departments. Each respectively responsible for
decision-making, supervision, coordination, and implementation of ESG
matters, and is committed to integrating ESG concepts into all aspects
of corporate operation and management, and steadily advancing
Hengan’s sustainable development.

relevant
level is

We actively respond to concerns from all parties, formulate policies on
sustainable development, and publicly disclose them on our official
website, accepting public supervision. Hengan extensively listens to the
voices of all stakeholders, responds to expectations for Hengan’'s
sustainable development, and discusses and responds to ESG-related
issues of concern to stakeholders, adjusting the Group’s ESG strategy
in a timely manner.
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Green Development

Hengan firmly advances on the path of green development, actively
responds to climate change, integrates the concept of green and
low-carbon into all links of operations, promotes value chain carbon
reduction, and strives to reduce resource and energy consumption as
well as waste emissions in operations, achieving energy efficiency
improvement and
construction of a beautiful China. In 2024, Hengan’s greenhouse gas
emission intensity was 0.63 tons of CO, equivalent per ten thousand
yuan of sales revenue; the energy consumption intensity of the
papermaking sector was 0.34 tce per tonne of paper, significantly
lower than the level 1 standard (0.38 tce per tonne) of the Energy
Consumption Per Unit Product of Pulp and Papermaking (GB31825-
2024) (L7 35 4 B8 {17 2 fn AR JROE FE PR 58)).

resource recycling and contributing to the

Hengan firmly conveys the concept of protecting the ecological
environment in the value chain, continuously promotes responsible
wood pulp procurement, and protects the forest resources on which
human survival depends. The Group issued the Zero Deforestation
Commitment, conveying the expectation of “No Net Deforestation” to
suppliers and partners, and striving together to move towards this
commitment. By the end of 2024, 8 papermaking companies of
Hengan had passed the FSC-CoC certification, and 100% of the pulp
suppliers owned Forest Management Committee(FSC) or Program for
the Endorsement of Forest Certification (PEFC) system certificates.

During the reporting period, Hengan (Xiaoguan) Household Products
Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, was awarded the “National Green
Factory” by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of the
People’s Republic of China. Hengan (China) Paper Co., Ltd. became
the only enterprise in the toilet paper and tissue paper industry to be
selected for the “Public Announcement of the List of Energy Efficiency
‘Leaders’ Enterprises in Key Industries in 2023”.

Customer Care

Hengan always adheres to philosophy of
“consumer-oriented”, actively exploring and innovating in the
ever-changing market. We started to upgrade the research and
development management system to strengthen the close connection
between product innovation and market demand. With strict technical
standards, we have continued to promote technological iteration,
strengthened the construction of innovative talent teams, and strived to

the market

continuously improve the success rate of research and development,
aiming to launch more consumer-oriented, high-quality personal and
household sanitary products in the most efficient way.
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We promoted the optimization and upgrading of the production quality
system with our relentless pursuit of excellence in quality, through
improving quality management processes, strictly implementing quality
risk audits, and building quality talent teams. At the same time, we
strengthened the digital construction of quality management,
independently developed and launched the “HA Heng Testing” data
collection mini-program; added a new quality inspection center, and
completed the national CNAS recognition laboratory certification,
further enhancing the quality control efficiency and capabilities, and
ensuring product quality with high standards and strict requirements,
providing consumers with higher-quality and more reliable products.

In 2024, Hengan Group released the first domestic TAD product,
Hearttex Velvet Cube Tissue, which has achieved a revolutionary
upgrade in comfort and practicality. As the leading brand in the paper
industry, Hearttex initiated the “100% Native Wood Pulp as Quality
Certification Mark for Life Paper” initiative and issued the 100% Native
Wood Pulp mark, aiming to standardize the identification standards for
good tissues and promote the quality upgrading of the life paper
industry.

The Group integrates sustainable development into the innovation
strategy, taking ecological friendliness and environmental sustainability
as one of the innovative concepts, guiding the innovation work, and
committed to creating safe, healthy, and environmentally friendly
products. We deeply explore the application of green raw materials,
actively adopt lean production practices, and identify and evaluate the
key environmental factors and potential hazards throughout the
product life cycle, formulating corresponding control procedures and
management impact on the
environment.

plans to minimize the negative

We also attach great importance to chemical safety, strictly comply
with relevant laws and regulations and internal normative documents,
and implement fine management for the entire process of chemicals,
including product development, chemical procurement, storage, use,
We strictly follow international, national, and
industry-related standards as well as internal standards, build
high-standard upstream raw material control, introduce high-quality
raw materials, regularly identify and evaluate all chemicals used in all
products, and promptly phase out all chemicals with potential risks to

and disclosure.

provide products that consumers can trust.
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Empowerment of Employees

The Group firmly believes that the well-being and growth of employees
are the foundation for the stable development of the company and the
fundamental driving force for sustainable development. Hengan
upholds the principle of equal employment, formulates the Human
Rights Policy and the Anti-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Policy,
and creates a diverse, equal, and inclusive work environment. We
adopt a zero-tolerance attitude towards discriminatory behavior against
employees due to religious beliefs, gender, age,
orientation, disability, nationality, and other factors. We have released
the Living Wage Commitment, providing comprehensive and
reasonable remuneration and welfare to ensure the rights and interests
of employees. In addition, we have launched an equity incentive plan
covering all employees.

race, sexual

Hengan is committed to building and cultivating a talent pyramid,
achieving digital closed-loop management while establishing a talent
pool grading and sharing management through the establishment of
online recruitment business process management platform covering the
whole Group. We actively promote the joint construction of university
intern training bases, and Hengan has been awarded titles such as
“Xiamen University Case Enterprise Base”, “Quanzhou Normal College
Student Practice Base”, and “Minnan Polytechnic Industry-Education
Integration Training Base”.

The Group continuously taps into the potential of our employees,
providing comprehensive skill and quality training to employees at
different levels and stages, and continuously improving the dual-track
career development system in management and technology. We select
outstanding employees for promotion channels,
common growth of employees and the company.

promoting the

As of the end of 2024, Hengan has approximately 24,000 employees,
with 54% female employees, the total training hours of employees
exceeding 480,000, 125 people promoted to management positions,
and the ratio of employees joining labor unions reaching 100%.
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In addition, Hengan always regards safety as an eternal theme in
corporate development. By establishing comprehensive safety
management policies and objectives, implementing robust management
and established control procedures, fully implementing the principal
responsibility for safety production, and continuously improving safety
management levels and performance, the Group has established an
ISO 45001 occupational health and safety management system and
passed the certification. We have set up a Safety Management
Committee as a comprehensive safety management leadership and
decision-making body, executing the full lifecycle safety management
process and safety risk emergency measures, and creating a safe and
healthy working environment. Hengan has completed the second
phase of the comprehensive safety development strategy and is
poised to move forward to the third phase, striving to become a
benchmark enterprise for safety management worldwide.

We continuously and steadily promote safety management work,
constantly improving the reporting process for potential safety hazards,
actively advancing the benchmark production line project for safety
production, while also conducting base safety assistance, further
strengthening safety risk management, and taking a series of
measures to ensure employee health. In 2024, the Group did not have
any work-related death incidents, the incidence of occupational
diseases was 0, and the number of working days lost due to
work-related injuries was 2,782 days.

The Group attaches great importance to the construction of a safety
culture, formulating the Comprehensive Safety Training Management
Regulations, and through multi-level and multi-form training and
exercises and conducting the Safety Production Month activities in
2024 to comprehensively popularize safety knowledge and improve
employees’ safety awareness and emergency response capabilities.

Trustworthy Partner

Hengan always adheres to an open and inclusive attitude, committed
to establishing stable partnerships. We continuously improve the
supplier management system to achieve fine management of the entire
process of supplier development and access, performance evaluation,
daily management, and elimination and withdrawal. By implementing
supplier grading and classification and regular performance evaluation,
we not only provide important references for quota allocation but also
become the driving force for the continuous improvement of supplier
performance.
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Hengan is dedicated to creating a sustainable supply chain, through
issuing the Supplier Code of Conduct, conveying the concept of
sustainable development along the value chain. We actively encourage
and support suppliers to make continuous
responsibility,
comprehensively consider their disclosed ESG reports, carbon footprint

improvements in

environmental protection and social and
certificates, and third-party social responsibility audit reports, etc., to
incorporate supplier ESG performance into the supplier evaluation

system as positive incentives.

We ensure a smooth channel for supplier communication, discuss
effective strategies for quality improvement together and deeply
communicate the optimization paths for product environmental
performance through on-site inspections or hosting various training and
meetings, and thus enhancing suppliers’ consensus on ensuring raw
material quality, and promoting the common growth of the value chain.
During the reporting period, the Group organized an expert team to
visit Finnish suppliers in person to gain an in-depth understanding of
the knowledge of tree regeneration and planting, and to discuss
sustainable forest pulp management with suppliers.

Healthy Community

As a leading enterprise in the industry, Hengan actively constructs the
foundation of charitable causes, strongly supporting charitable funds,
committed to caring for different groups in families and society,
viewing social and fully implementing social
responsibility and serving the public welfare.

return as our duty,

Since its establishment in 1985, Hengan has been committed to
promoting and improving women’s health conditions. Through the
“Pink Wings” girls’ adolescence health education series of activities, it
continuously focuses on the healthy growth of adolescent girls and
carries out public welfare activities to care for women’s health in more
than ten towns in the northwestern Sichuan. The Group deeply cares
about the special children group, donating 20 million yuan to the
Quanzhou Autism Care Foundation through the World Autism Day
theme activity. At the same time, in the lead-up to the Double Ninth
Festival, the Group donated 452 boxes of loving materials to 27
elderly welfare institutions in Jinjiang City, passing on the virtue of
respecting and loving the elderly through practical actions. In addition,
the Group expresses its profound respect and practical support to the
women soldiers in the western border areas and the “White Angel” of
the First Affiliated Hospital of Xiamen University through special funds
and material donations.
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In 2024, the Group was awarded the “Quanzhou Charity Enterprise” at
the Quanzhou Charity Conference and was honored with the title of
“Weibo Role Model Welfare Partner” as a pioneer in social welfare
practice.

Outlook

Looking ahead to 2025, while geopolitical conflicts, escalating trade
tensions, and heightened global policy uncertainties pose downside
risks to global the fundamental drivers and
underlying trends supporting China’s long-term positive economic
expansion China is expected to implement more
proactive and effective macroeconomic policies to expand domestic
demand, fully stimulate market vitality and endogenous growth drivers,
and further propel China’s economy towards sustained recovery and
improvement. As essential goods, consumer staples are expected to
continue their consumption upgrade trend. The Group will continue to
closely monitor the domestic and international political and economic
developments, as well as shifts in market trends, responding flexibly
and making prudent decisions.

economic growth,

remain intact.

With wood pulp supply and demand remaining stable, wood pulp
prices are expected to remain relatively steady in 2025. The Group will
strive to further improve gross profit margin by controlling promotional
expenses, continuously increasing the proportion of premium products,
and enhancing sales performance, thereby boosting the Group’s
profitability. The Group will closely monitor the impact of external
factors on the prices of prices of raw materials, including imported
wood pulp and petrochemicals.

In 2025, the domestic hygiene products market is expected to remain
highly competitive, with continued price-cutting and promotional
activity within the industry. The Group will adhere to its core strategy
of “price stability”, maintaining healthy liquidity and seeking
opportunities arising from industry consolidation and the resulting
survival of the fittest. Leveraging its leading R&D and production
capabilities, strong brand image, extensive nationwide presence, and
diversified product portfolio, Hengan will demonstrate robust resilience
in this challenging operating environment and further expand its market
share.
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As a leading player in the industry, Hengan prioritises long-term
development in its business strategies and resource allocation. The
Group will continue to implement its three core strategies, including
“Focus on Core Businesses”, “Brand Leadership” and “Long-Termism”,
laying a solid foundation for the sustainable development of the Group.
The Group will maintain its focus on the development of the three core
businesses of tissue paper, sanitary napkin and disposable diapers,
actively develop and upgrade high-quality new products and expand
into new markets, accelerate omni-channel penetration
markets and online and offline markets in mainland China to seize the
vast development opportunities in the domestic consumer staples
market.

into rural

The Group maintains an unwavering commitment to quality and
remains uncompromising for quality and safety issues. Driven by
customer feedback, Hengan continuously strives to elevate product
quality and industry standards, committed to delivering quality and
reliable products. Going forward, Hengan will further optimise the
brand image of its products through strategies such as product
premiumisation, new packaging, and precise allocation of marketing
resources. Additionally, the marketing department will comprehensively
enhance the brand image to drive consumers to purchase Hengan
products. The Group will continue to enhance its product mix and
accelerate product premiumisation, such as the hot-selling series
“QeMO” and “Tianshan Cotton”, so as to improve the Group’s
profitability, further develop online and offline sales channels and
promote the joint development of multi-channels to expand its
customer base.

The Group will also continue to optimise the organisational structure,
strengthen the development of young professional team, improve team
efficiency, and allocate resources to technological applications in order
to improve infrastructure and enhance supply chain efficiency. These
efforts aim to improve the quality of the system, enable effective
monitoring of operational data and improve operational visibility to
facilitate the formulation of appropriate business strategies.

In order to continue to consolidate the Group’s market leadership in
tissue paper and hygiene products and meet domestic consumers’
demand for high-quality products, the Group plans to carry out
production capacity expansion and technological upgrades in the
future, including the establishment of a new production complex for
upgraded hygiene products in Neikeng, Fujian, and the expansion of
tissue paper production capacity in Hunan and Yunfu, Guangdong. It
is expected that the new production capacity will be put into operation
successively in 2025.
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As a leading enterprise in the personal and household hygiene
products industry in China, Hengan will continue to adhere to the
mission of “Growing with You for a Better Life”, and strive to become
a supplier of high-quality, reliable and sustainable personal and
household hygiene products, while also actively promote ESG
development and contribute to building a green and sustainable world.
The Group will focus on the three core businesses (tissue paper,
sanitary napkin and disposable diapers), enhance its brand image,
seize the opportunities in the “new retail” era, take long-termism as the
general direction for future development to further scale its business.
At the same time, the Group will continue to take industry extension
as the long-term development goal, actively expand and extend to
feminine care, infant and childcare, and elderly care business to
continue to maintain its overall competitiveness, and gradually promote
international development of Hengan’s brand, striving to become a
“global top-tier supplier of daily products”.

Hui Ching Lau
FEMR
Chief Executive Officer

T A

Hong Kong, 25 March 2025
HEF ZE-_AF=-A=+HH
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
EERESREEEB

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Sze Man Bok, aged 75, has been the
Chairman of the Group and Executive
Director of the Company since 1998. He is
also a director of most of the subsidiaries of
the Group. He is responsible for the Group’s
overall corporate direction and business
strategy. Mr. Sze is one of the founding
shareholders and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Sze has over 41 years of
experience in manufacturing and distribution of consumer products.

He is the father of Mr. Sze Wong Kim, an Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Sze has been appointed as an non-executive director of
Qingin Foodstuffs Group (Cayman) Company Limited (stock code
1583) (“Qingin Foodstuffs”) since 22 March 2016, a company listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Mr. Sze was appointed as executive director of

Wang-Zeng Berhad (“WZB”) on 15 June 2017, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company listed on the Main Market of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad with a stock code of 7203. He was
designated as non-independent non-executive director of WZB on
25 September 2017.

Mr. Hui Lin Chit (former known as Hui Chi
Lin), aged 71, has been the Deputy
Chairman and Executive Director of the
Company since 1998. He provides support
for the Group’s long-term development.
Mr. Hui is one of the founding shareholders
of the Company and has over 41 years of
experience in manufacturing and distribution
of consumer products. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group. He resigned as Chief Executive Officer, the authorized
representative (for the purposes of Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules) (the
“Authorized Representative”), a member of nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company on 18 August 2021. During
the period of 1998 and 18 August 2021, Mr. Hui was appointed as
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and responsible for strategic
planning, human resources and the overall management of Hengan
Group. Mr. Hui has the title of senior economist in People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”). He is the Chairman of the Jinjiang City Charity
Federation.
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Mr. Hui was a member of the 9th, 10th and 11th National Committee
of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (CPPCC) from
1998 to 2012. During the period from 1997 to 2011, he was also a
member of the Executive Committee (at the 8th) and Standing
Committee (at the 9th), and deputy chairman (at the 10th) of All-China
Federation of Industry and Commence. He was also a deputy
chairman of the 9th, 10th and 11th Quanzhou Municipal CPPCC
Committee and the chairman of the 10th, 11th, 12th and 13th
Quanzhou Federation of Industry and Commerce.

He is the father of Mr. Hui Ching Lau, Chief Executive Officer and an
Executive Director of the Company and Mr. Hui Ching Chi, an
Executive Director of the Company. During the period of 22 March
2016 to 18 May 2023 and 22 March 2016 to 12 April 2017, Mr. Hui
was a non-executive director and the Chairman of Qingin Foodstuffs
respectively, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Hui was appointed as executive director of WZB on
15 June 2017 and designated as non-independent non-executive
chairman of WZB on 25 September 2017.

Mr. Hui Ching Lau, aged 45, appointed as
Executive Director of the Company on
10 December 2020. He was further
appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the
Company on 18 August 2021. He is also an
Authorised Representative, the Chairman of
Environmental, Social and Governance
Committee, a member of the Remuneration

Committee and Nomination Committee. He is a director of most of the
subsidiaries of the Group. He has about 23 years of experience in
corporate management and is responsible for providing planning,
guidance and strategic advice on strategic development and overall
management of the Group. He is currently an executive director and
chairman of the board of directors of Qingin Foodstuffs. He is the
managing director of Lianjie Investments Group Limited, an investment
management company.

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Mr. Hui was a director of AGORA Hospitality Group Co., Ltd. (a
company whose shares are listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange,
stock code: 9704) from 29 March 2018 to 3 December 2020. Mr. Hui
was a non-executive director of China Huiyuan Juice Group Limited
(“Huiyuan Juice”) from 29 January 2018 to 10 January 2019. Huiyuan
Juice is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability and whose shares were listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock
code: 1886) until 18 January 2021 when its listed status were
cancelled by the stock exchange. Huiyuan Juice was principally
engaged in production and sale of fruit juice, fruit and vegetable juice
and other beverages. In October 2019, a winding-up petition and
provisional liquidators application at the High Court of Hong Kong was
served on Huiyuan Juice. For further details of the proceedings, please
refer to the announcements of Huiyuan Juice including that dated
24 January 2019, 24 October 2019, 19 November 2020 and
30 November 2020.

Mr. Hui is a member of the 11th and 12th Fujian Provincial Committee
of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC”) from
2013 to 2022 and a member of the 14th National Committee of
CPPCC since 2023. He is the executive vice president of the Fourth
Youth Committee of All-China Federation of Returned Overseas
Chinese since December 2014. Mr. Hui is also the Vice-Chairman of
Fujian Federation of Industry and Commerce (11th session), an
executive committee member of All-China Federation of Industry and
Commence (12th session), a standing committee member of the 10th
Committee of All-China Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese, the
life honorary president of the World Jinjiang Youth Association, the life
honorary advisor of Federation of Jinjang Hong Kong Associations, the
life honorary chairman of the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian
Associations and co-chairman of the China Paper Chamber of
Commerce.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Mr. Hui graduated with a Degree of Bachelor of Arts in Accounting &
Finance and Economics from the University of Kent at Canterbury in
July 2001, and a Degree of Master of Science in Finance from the
University of London (Imperial College of Science, Technology and
Medicine), in the United Kingdom in November 2002. He also received
a Degree of Executive Master of Business Administration from Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business in September 2010 in the People’s
Republic of China.

Mr. Hui is the son of Mr. Hui Lin Chit, an executive director and the
Vice-Chairman of the Board of the Company. Mr. Hui is also the
brother of Mr. Hui Ching Chi, an executive director of the Company.

Mr. Xu Da Zuo, aged 57, has been an
Executive Director of the Company since 26
August 1998. He currently is the Vice
President of the Group and responsible for
capital
operation and investment management of
‘ the Group. He was the Chief Financial
Officer of the Group. Joining the Group in
1985, Mr. Xu has over 40 years of experience in accounting and
internal audit. He has the title of senior accountant in the PRC.

administrative management,

Mr. aged 49, is
responsible for overall business strategy of
the Group. Before joining the Company as
an Executive Director on 1 June 2010,
— Mr. Sze worked in two accountancy firms in
- Australia and gained extensive experience in
‘ 1. assurance and business advisory work. He
started his own business in 2005 on

wholesale and distribution of branded electronic components and
computer accessories products in Hong Kong and overseas markets.
Mr. Sze graduated from the University of Technology, Sydney with a
Bachelor Degree of Business majoring in accounting and obtained a

Sze Wong Kim,

Master Degree of Commerce in finance from the University of New
South Wales, Australia. He was appointed as the Company Secretary
and authorised representative of the Company on 30 November 2016
and resigned on 3 January 2017. He is a member of CPA Australia
and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is the son of Mr. Sze Man Bok, the Chairman and an
executive director of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Mr. Hui Ching Chi, aged 40, has been an
Executive Director of the Company since 1
June 2010. He currently is the Group Vice
President and responsible for the Group’s
international business development. He was

the Director of Supply Chain Management of
i ;*. the Group from 2015 to 2016. Mr. Hui

worked in a major international bank in
London prior to joining the Group in February 2008. Mr. Hui holds a
Law Degree from the London University. He is a son of Mr. Hui Lin
Chit, the Vice-Chairman and an executive director of the Company
and a younger brother of Mr. Hui Ching Lau, the Chief Executive
Officer and an executive director of the Company. He is a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Hui was appointed as executive
director and Group Chief Executive Officer of WZB on 25 September
2017 and 1 July 2022 respectively.

Mr. Li Wai Leung, aged 46, was appointed
as Executive Director of the Company and
the Chief Financial Officer of the Group on
17 March 2017 and 26 March 2020
respectively. Mr. Li is also the Company
Secretary and Authorized Representative of
the Company. He is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. He has over 24
years of experience in accounting, finance and business advisory work.
Before joining the Group on 3 January 2017, Mr. Li worked as the
chief financial officer of various sizable PRC based manufacturing
companies and as a senior manager in PricewaterhouseCoopers.
Mr. Li obtained his bachelor’'s degree in Business Administration in
Accounting and Finance from the University of Hong Kong. He is
currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and CPA Australia, a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants from 16 January 2025. Mr.
appointed as executive director of WZB on 15 June 2017, an
executive committee member of The Canadian Chamber of Commerce
in Hong Kong on 30 October 2024, and an independent non-executive
director of K W Nelson Interior Design and Contracting Group Limited
on 1 January 2025, a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong with a stock code of 8411.

Li was
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Mr. Xu Wenmo, aged 58, has been
appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company since 24 August 2023. He is
currently the Vice President of the Group
and is responsible for the Group’s legal
management, risk management, and internal
and external control of the Group. Mr. Xu
joined the Group in 1985 and has
accumulated over 36 years of experience in management, marketing
and sales of consumer products. He has the title of senior economist
in the PRC.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong, JP, aged 65, is
an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company appointed in 1998. She is also the
Chairlady of the Audit Committee, a member
of the Nomination Committee, the Share
Incentive Committee and Remuneration
Committee.

Ms. Wong, a practicing solicitor, is a partner of Philip K. H. Wong,
Kennedy Y. H. Wong & Co., Solicitors & Notaries. She is also a
culture and creative education advocate. She is the supervisor of
HKICC Lee Shau Kee School of Creativity and the council member of
Hong Kong Shue Yan University. She was Chair of the Wanchai
District Council (2004—2007) and during the period of 20 October
2016 and 19 October 2022, Ms. Wong was a member of Museum
Advisory Committee and Art Sub-committee, Museum Advisory
Committee. During the period 7 September 2004 and 30 September
2022, she was an independent non-executive director of Pak Fah
Yeow International Limited, a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange with stock code 0239.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Mr. Theil aged 71,
appointed as an independent non-executive
director on 17 May 2019. He is also a
member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Environmental,
and Governance Committee, the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and Share Incentive Committee. He has had
extensive experience in the finance and investment industry. He is the
founder and has been the Chairman of Shenzhen Zhong An Credit
Investment Co., Ltd since January 2008. He had been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Qin Qin Foodstuffs since June
2016. From October 2013 to June 2021, Mr. Thelil
independent director of China Industrial Bank Co. Ltd., a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock code: 601166) since
October 2013, and he was redesignated as supervisor in June 2021
and resigned in June 2024. He was also previously a Non-executive
Director of the Company from July 2000 to September 2001.

Paul Marin, was

Social

was an

Mr. Theil graduated from Yale University with a Degree of Bachelor of
Arts in June 1975 and a Degree of Master of Arts in East Asian
Studies in June 1975. He also graduated with a Degree of Juris
Doctor and a Degree of Master of Business Administration from
Harvard Law School and Harvard Business School in June 1980
and November 1981 respectively.

Mr. Ho Kwai Ching Mark, aged 63, is an
Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company appointed on 1 January 2013. He
is also a member of the Audit Committee,
the Share
Remuneration Committee, the Chairman of
m the Nomination Committee. He is currently

the co-founder and CEO of ProMEX Limited,
an independent non-executive director of Lee Kee Holdings Limited
(stock code 0637)
Science Company Limited (stock code 1084). He was the Chief
Operating Officer of Oriental Patron Securities Limited, the Chief
Compliance Officer of Hong Kong Mercantile Exchange Limited, the
Director of Business Development of Sun Hung Kai Securities Limited
(HK)
previously Vice President of Corporate Strategy of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and Head of Compliance of Hong
Kong Futures Exchange Limited. He has more than 29 years of
experience in the securities and futures industry.

Incentive Committee and

and Green Future Food Hydrocolloid Marine

and a Director of Phillip Securities Limited. He was also
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Mr. Ho received a Bachelor Degree in Social Sciences from the
University of Hong Kong in 1984 and is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

~

'S e

Mr. Chen Chuang, aged 47, is an
Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company appointed on 20 May 2022. He is
also a member of each of the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee, Share
Incentive Committee, Nomination Committee
and Environmental, Social and Governance
Committee of the Company, has over 18
years of experience in corporate strategy, large enterprises innovation,
and internal innovation. Mr. Chen is an independent non-executive
director of 361 Degrees International Limited (stock code: 1361) since
August 2019, a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. He was awarded a bachelor degree and a master degree in
Management from the Faculty of Management and Economics of
Dalian University of Technology. He also received his doctorate degree
in Business Administration from the School of Economics and
Management of Tsinghua University. He is currently a professor of
business management at the Master of Business Administration
Education Center of the School of Management of Xiamen University.
Mr. Chen is a committee member of the Case Research Division of
Chinese Society for Management Modernisation.
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Senior Management

Mr. Wang Xiangyang, aged 55, is the Vice President of the Group
and responsible for the Group’s supply chain, procurement, and
production of sanitary products, paper products,diapers and wet
wipes. Mr. Wang served as the Director of Purchasing and Trading of
the Supply Chain Development Department of the Group from 2021 to
2022. He joined the Group in 1999 and worked as the Director of
Supply Chain of the Group before leaving the Group in February 2015.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang worked as a manager of the
International Business Department in Jinjiang Branch of China
Construction Bank. Mr. Wang rejoined the Group in February 2017
and has over 26 years of experience in procurement and logistics. He
graduated from Huagiao University with a Bachelor’'s Degree in
Engineering and holds the title of senior economist.

Mr. Zhu Jianshui, aged 50, serves as Financial Controller (Mainland
China) of the Group. He joined the Group in 1998 and has over 29
years of experience in finance and auditing. He graduated from Tianjin
University of Commerce as a major in international accounting and
Southwest University as a major in law and holds the titles of certified
tax accountant, auditor and senior economist.

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Mr. Hou Zhijian, aged 47, serves as the Director of Business and
Trade Development Department and is responsible for the Group’s
sales (including both online and offline sales) in Mainland China and
various other duties. Mr. Hou served as the General Manager of
Regional Operations of the Group from 2000 to 2017. He rejoined the
Group in August 2023 and has over 24 years of experience in sales
management.

Mr. Lin Yuxian, aged 45, serves as the Director of Supply Chain and
is responsible for the Group’s warehousing, logistics and planning. He
joined the Group in 2002 and has over 24 years of experience in
sales, marketing and supply chain. He graduated from the Department
of Economics and Business Administration of Liming Vocational
University as a major in computerised accounting.

Mr. Yang Chenglong, aged 40, serves as the Director of Human
Resources Department and is responsible for the Group’s human
resources management activities. He joined the Group in 2008 and has
over 20 years of experience in human resources. He graduated from
Beijing Wuzi University with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Human Resources
Management and holds the title of senior economist.

Ms. Li Li,
and is

aged 40, serves as the Director of Marketing Department
responsible for the overall management of the Group’s
branding, media, membership and user experience. She joined the
Group in 2019 and has over 10 years of experience in brand
development. She graduated from Chengdu University of Technology
with a Master’s Degree in Engineering and Xiamen University and a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration.
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Corporate Governance Report
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Hengan International Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) recognise the importance of
achieving the highest standard of corporate governance consistent
with the needs and requirements of its businesses and the best
interest of all of its stakeholders, and the board of directors (the
“Board”) is fully committed to doing so. The Board believes that high
standards of corporate governance provide a framework and solid
risks,
transparency, achieve high standard of accountability and protect

foundation for the Group to manage business enhance

stakeholders’ interests.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix C1 (formerly
known as Appendix 14) to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) except for the Code Provision F.2.2
that Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong, the chairman of audit committee, was
unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on
17 May 2024 because she had other urgent business engagement.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

“Growing with you for a better life” has always been the mission
of the Group. We will continue to adhere to our corporate spirit of
“Integrity, Diligent, Innovation and Dedication”. Our goal is “to build an
effective corporate management and to develop a high quality, ethical
By building an excellent corporate
culture, reinforcing our brand image, and focusing on consumer and
market need, Hengan International will become China’s leading
corporation in manufacturing and distribution of fast moving family
consumer products. The Company’s culture is moulded by our mission
and values. The values embed throughout the Company’s vision,
mission, policies and business strategies.

and enthusiastic staff team”.

The Group will continuously review and adjust,
business strategies and keep track of the changing market conditions
to ensure prompt and proactive measures will be taken in respond to
the changes and meet the market needs to foster the sustainability of
the Group.

if necessary, its

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2024

TEERTA
ERBEREEERAR (A7) REMBERR (5
BIAKEDRAZREAEEBAFATAEM
BENEEBALREN G RSRELEERZE
ZE MEFS((EFS) BERNETEHET
E-EFERHE BSKELEERRERAEEETE
RIFRE BERBE TEAHEREKRARKIR
SERE MR EKERE LR IREEN G
ALz Mz e

REBEE-ZT-_NF+_A=+—HBHLEFER £A2Q
RI—EHREAEAMEXZMERAR ([HRZA])F
FH EmAR ([ LR M ERCIEE R ([
¥ER A FraEl ey R B 38 5F E 5 AME S MESE
BMENF22k4N BEREEEETREERFLLRASE
HMBEQE  RELEARAR-_ZE-_NFEHA
+EHBRITHREAFREG -

1% b R KB
MEREERMARHBE—ERRIZAEE NG - K
BEEBIWE B AF - FRINEERS-
UM —EAsHNEXERER BE-—X&R
T ARXER AUXBHMNEIRMIRER
MERFNOEXL BEERBER  AEEEMN
M RER  EELZERERK RBERBRNRSE
REHBEREEDHER RANEGMEERL
ETARRAMXE - BAINOERBRT HAFIE9 20
BEE ZEZEEBERALARAZER £ K
R TG R

7 5% [ 3 5 R 4R SRS O R S A 0 B A 28
B OYEHWEBENTIHMN  ARKBRERE
BRYEEEE R RBRDBRR - L THD A
REZAHEER -



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group,
which includes leadership and control of the Company and oversees
the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions,
management and performances. The management team is delegated
with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the day-to-day
management of the Group. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed. Major corporate matters that are specifically
delegated by the Board to the management include (1) the preparation
of interim and annual reports and announcements for the Board’s
approval before publishing; (2) implementation of adequate internal
controls and risk management procedures; and (3) compliance with
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and rules and
regulations. It is the responsibility of the Board to determine the
appropriate corporate governance practices applicable to the
Company’s circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures

internal control, risk

are in place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance
objectives. The management team is delegated with the authority and
responsibility by the Board for the day-to-day management of the
Group. While allowing management substantial autonomy to run and
develop the business, the Board plays a key role in structuring and
monitoring the reporting systems and The
composition and functions of each Board committee are described
below. The final decision still rests with the Board unless otherwise
provide for in the terms of reference of relevant committees.

internal controls.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the business requirements and objectives of
the Group and for the exercise of independent judgment. Directors
with various professional qualifications, experience and related financial
management expertise have contributed to the effective direction of the
Company and provided adequate checks and balances to safeguard
the interests of both the Group and the shareholders. Hence, the
Board believes that the current Board composition satisfies the
balance of expertise,
governance requirements of the Group as well as the ongoing
development and management of its business activities.

skills and experience to the corporate

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Company, and to
review and approve the Company’s interim and annual results. During
the year, four regular Board meetings were held and the attendance of
each Director at the Board meetings is set out in the section headed
“Board and Committees Meetings” of this report.
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The Board comprises twelve directors, of which eight are executive
Directors, namely Mr. Sze Man Bok (Chairman of the Board,
“Chairman”), Mr. Hui Lin Chit (Vice-Chairman), Mr. Hui Ching Lau
(Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Xu Da Zuo, Mr. Sze Wong Kim, Mr. Hui
Ching Chi, Mr. Xu Wenmo and Mr. Li Wai Leung (Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary); and four are independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong, Mr. Ho Kwai
Ching, Mark, Mr. Chen Chuang and Mr. Theil Paul Marin.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, all Directors
appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall
hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the meeting. At
each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

Save for the family relationships disclosed in the Profile of Directors
and Senior Management set out on pages 44 to 49 of this annual
report, the Directors do not have material financial, business or other
relationships with one another.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
segregated in order to reinforce their independence and accountability.
Mr. Sze Man Bok, the Chairman of the Group, is responsible for the
Group’s overall corporate direction and business strategy, provides
leadership to the Board and ensures proper and effective functioning
of the Board in discharge of its responsibilities. Mr. Hui Ching Lau,
Chief Executive Officer of the Group, is responsible for strategic
planning, human resources and the overall management of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

including independent non-executive
Directors, who are appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the existing Board, shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting after his or her appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

The non-executive Directors,

The Company had entered into the letters of appointment of
independent non-executive directors, Mr. Ho Kwai Ching Mark, Ms.
Ying Kay Ada Wong, Mr. Chen Chuang and Mr. Theil Paul Marin, with
no specific term. Termination could be made by serving not less than

three months’ notice in writing by either party.
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In accordance with the CG Code and the Articles of Association, all
Directors, including Independent Non-executive Directors, are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with the requirements under Rules
3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Company has
received confirmations of independence from all Independent Non-
Executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board, through the Nomination Committee, has reviewed the
independence of all Independent Non-Executive Directors and
concluded that all of them are independent within the definition of the
Listing Rules. Furthermore, the Board is not aware of the occurrence
of any events which would cause it to believe that the independence
of any of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has been impaired
up to the date of this report.

MECHANISM ON INDEPENDENT VIEWS TO THE
BOARD

The Company recognises that board independence is critical to good
corporate governance. The Board has established a mechanism is to
enable Directors to seek independent professional advice when
exercising Directors’ duties to ensure a strong independent element to

the decision made by the Board which is key to an effective Board.

According to the mechanism, subject to the prior approval by the
executive Director of the Company (which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld or delayed), the Directors may seek
independent legal, financial or other professional advice from advisors
independent of those advising the Company as and when necessary in
appropriate circumstances to enable them to discharge their
responsibilities effectively, either on the Company’s affairs or in respect
of their fiduciary or other duties, at the Company’s expense. In case of
the Board is seeking independent professional advice, prior approval
must be given by the executive Director of the Company (which
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed).

The Board will review this mechanism on an annual basis to ensure
the implementation and effectiveness of this mechanism.
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Upon appointing a new Director,
induction package covering business operations, policy and
procedures of the Company as well as the general, statutory and
regulatory obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is
sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and
other relevant regulatory requirements.

each new Director receives an

All Directors are provided with regularly updates on the Company’s
performance and financial position to enable the Board as a whole and
each Director to discharge their duties. In addition, briefings and
updates on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements are provided to the Board
during Board meetings to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

All Directors are also encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. According to the records provided by the Directors during the
year ended 31 December 2024 they participated
professional development by attending director training/ seminars/
workshops/reading materials on business management,
corporate governance, and/or ESG and reporting to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills.

in continuous

and/or

TIME COMMITMENT OF DIRECTORS

The Directors have demonstrated a strong commitment to the Board
affairs and they are well aware that they are expected to have a
sufficient time commitment to the Board. Directors have given certain
confirmations and made disclosures about their other commitments.

(i) Sufficient Time and Attention
Directors have confirmed that they have given sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2024.

(ii) Other Offices and Commitments
Directors disclose to the Company annually the number, identity
and nature of offices held in Hong Kong or overseas listed
public companies and organisations and other significant
commitments.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3
to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange. The Company has made
specific enquiry of all directors regarding any noncompliance with the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2024, and they all
confirmed that they had fully complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee has been established by the Board with
specific written terms of reference. Details of the authority and
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are set out in the
terms of reference which are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration Committee
consists of a majority of Independent Non-executive Directors and its
members are:

Mr. Hui Ching Lau (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Theil Paul Marin (Independent Non-executive Director)

— Chairman of the Committee
Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Ho Kwai Ching Mark (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Chen Chuang (Independent Non-executive Director)

The Remuneration Committee has been charged with the responsibility
of determining the specific remuneration packages of all Executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits-in-kind, pension
rights, and compensation payments, and to advise the Board on the
remuneration of the Non-executive Directors. The Company’s objective
for its remuneration policy is to maintain fair and competitive packages
based on business requirements and industry practice. In order to
determine the level of remuneration and fees paid to members of the
Board of Directors and key executives, market rates and factors such
as each director and key executives workload, performance,
responsibility, sustainability and the Group’s
performance are taken into account. The Remuneration Committee
also review and/or approve matters relating to share option scheme
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

job complexity,
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No Directors can determine their own remuneration package. The
Remuneration Committee will meet at least once a year to discharge
its responsibilities in accordance with its terms of reference which are
set out in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Remuneration Committee held one meeting to review the remuneration
policy and structure,
remuneration packages and performance bonuses for the Directors and
senior management of the Company. The attendance of each member
of the Remuneration Committee is set out in the section headed
“Board and Committees Meetings” of this report.

and to make recommendation of the

There was no material matter relating to share option scheme that was
reviewed and/or recommended to the Board by the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to Directors by the
Company and its subsidiaries in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. Details of emoluments
of Directors and the five highest paid individuals of the Group as
required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules
are set out in Notes 12 and 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management who are not directors are within
the following bands:
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

An Audit Committee has been established by the Board, its terms of
reference are aligned with the recommendations set out in “A Guide
for Effective Audit Committee” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the code provisions set out in the CG
Code. Details of the authority and responsibilities of the Audit
Committee are set out in the terms of reference which are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Audit
Committee is
relationship with the external auditor, to review the Group’s interim and
annual results, to review the scope, extent and effectiveness of the
internal controls and risk management systems of the Group, to review
accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group, to engage
independent legal or other advisers as it determines is necessary and
to perform investigations.

required, amongst other things, to oversee the

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-executive
Directors and one of whom possesses the appropriate business and
financial experience and skills to understand the accounts of the
Group. The Committee is chaired by Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong and
other members are Mr. Theil Paul Marin, Mr. Ho Kwai Ching Mark and
Mr. Chen Chuang.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held four meetings to review the
interim and the annual results before their submission to the Board
and monitored the integrity of such financial statements; to review the
internal control and risk management systems with external auditor, to
propose changing of external auditor to the Board and to present
2024 audit plan. The attendance of each member of the Audit
Committee is set out in the section headed “Board and Committees
Meetings” of this report.

The Audit Committee has also discussed and reviewed the key audit
matters determined by the external auditor under the new and revised
reporting standards under Hong Kong Standards on Auditing for the
year ended 31 December 2024.

All issues raised by the external auditor and the Audit Committee have
been addressed by the senior management. The work and findings of
the Audit Committee have been reported to the Board. During the
Year, no issues brought to the attention of the senior management
and the Board were of sufficient significance for disclosure in the
annual report.
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The Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for the Year
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
considered that relevant audited consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in compliance with the applicable accounting principles
and requirements of the Stock Exchange and disclosures have been
fully made.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

review and monitor the code of conduct and
(if any) applicable to employees and

(iv)  to develop,
compliance manual
Directors; and

(v)  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board with
specific terms of reference, which included the selection criteria and
nomination procedures, for nomination of new Directors. In identifying
and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the Nomination
Committee will consider the candidate’s character, qualifications,
experience, independence, time commitment and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to the
Board. According to the nomination policy, for filing a casual vacancy
or appointing an additional director to the Board, the Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the Board’s consideration
and approval. For proposing candidates to stand for election or re-
election at a general meeting, the Nomination Committee shall make
nominations to the Board for its consideration and recommendation of
candidates to stand for election or re-election at any general meeting.
Details of the authority and responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee are set out in the terms of reference which are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2024

RRARBEAFENEERGAMBRRCEES
ZEEEN BEZZEERR HEKEZEANM
AR CREEM &SR R RER
B WEEEELKE -

B o8 B 8E
ERRREBEABRNTLEEARE BF

() HEEBIARABHUCEERZIBERT
M

(i) RWILREREZNSREEBZHIILSE
EXRER

i

(i) WP RERETEEMREEREZANRR R

REFER

il

vy ®IE BEREREARRERESFZITR
SAIRERFM@E) - &

v BEARREBT(EEERTADNERE
(EERERBRE)ZTRHANEE -

REZESE

EEgCRURLZES UEMAIAEBESR
B -BRATETPEREIEENRRERRERF %Y
ERMESHREAETESRENS - REEE
ERERRFEANRE BB K BIM K
BNHEREMRESARKRERERNESTES T
Mo ZRBEER(NER) #MAEFSIELE
#FoMBZRABE REMEFSHRBEZRAE
ez RrZEgRREEAREZSESA1
E-RELEZEGERRARE LIRE2ESETRE
AR EBERNEFERIRES HEFEFRLHL
TARRARELERAZEHIETREA -RHZR
SZBRIBEABORNZBEEESRIL - AR
ARA R HER -



The Nomination Committee consists of a majority of Independent Non-
executive Directors and its members are Mr. Sze Man Bok (Chairman
of the Board), Mr. Hui Ching Lau (Chief Executive Officer), and all
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ho Kwai Ching Mark
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong, Mr.
Theil Paul Marin and Mr. Chen Chuang.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Nomination Committee
held two meetings to review the nomination policy and board diversity
policy, to recommend the of the terms of
appointment and re-election of Directors and renewal
management’s service agreement. The Nomination Committee has also
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and
concluded that members of the Board has possessed the expertise
and independence to carry out the Board’s functions and
responsibilities. The attendance of each member of the Nomination
Committee is set out in the section headed “Board and Committees
Meetings” of this report.

review and renewal

of senior

In accordance with Articles 99 and 116 of the Articles of Association
of the Company and the CG Code, Mr. Hui Ching Chi, Mr. Li Wai
Leung, Mr. Theil Paul Marin and Mr. Chen Chuang will retire office at
the Company’s annual general meeting to be held on 20 May 2025
(*AGM”), and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

BOARD AND EMPLOYEES DIVERSITY POLICY
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of the Company’s
strategic objectives and sustainable development.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
talents, skills, experience, independence, gender and knowledge. The
Company will also take into consideration its own business model and
specific needs from time to time. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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As at the date of this report, the Board comprises twelve Directors,
amongst them, four are Independent Non-Executive Directors, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management process. The
Board is also characterised by significant diversity, whether considered
in terms of age, professional skills, gender and
knowledge.

experience,

The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy and its
implementation annually to ensure its effectiveness. Having reviewed
the board diversity policy and the Board’s composition during the year
ended 31 December 2024, the Nomination Committee considered that
the requirements of the board diversity policy had been met,
implementation was effective and no measurable objective had been
set to implement the board diversity policy.

The Board is committed to upholding diversity of gender, background,
skills and experience across our workforce. The employee male-to-
female ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2024 is 46:54. The
Group when hiring employees considers a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education background,
qualification, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service, and the Group will make sure achieving gender
diversity across the workforce.

SHARE INCENTIVE COMMITTEE

A Share Incentive Committee has been established by the Board with
specific written terms of reference. Details of the authority and
responsibilities of the Share Incentive Committee are set out in the
terms of reference which are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The Share Incentive Committee
consists of a majority of Independent Non-executive Directors and its
members are:

Mr. Theil Paul Marin (Independent Non-executive Director)

— Chairman of the Committee
Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Ho Kwai Ching Mark (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Chen Chuang (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Li Wai Leung (Executive Director)
The primary duties of the Share Incentive Committee includes
instruction the Trustee to purchase Shares of the Company at any
time the Share Incentive Committee considers appropriate;
determination the eligibility of the person for participation in the
scheme; review and/or approval matters relating to the Share Incentive
Scheme.
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No Directors can determine their own or any of their associates grant
of awards. The Share Incentive Committee will meet at least once a
year to discharge its responsibilities in accordance with its terms of
reference which are set out in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules. During the Year ended 31 December 2024, one Share
Incentive Committee meeting was held to discuss and review the
arrangement of shares of the Company held by the Trustee. The
attendance of each member of the Share Incentive Committee is set
out in the section headed “Board and Committees Meetings” of this
report.

During the Year, the Share Incentive Committee had reported the
annual summary of the Share Award Scheme and discuss future
directions.

ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE (“ESG COMMITTEE”)

The ESG Committee has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference. Details of the authority and responsibilities
of the ESG Committee are set out in the terms of reference which are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The members of the ESG Committee are:

Mr. Hui Ching Lau (Chief Executive Officer), Chairman
Mr. Li Wai Leung (Executive Director)

Mr. Theil Paul Marin (Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. Chen Chuang (Independent Non-executive Director)

The ESG Committee is charged with the responsibility of reviewing and
monitoring the Group’s ESG policies and practices to ensure
compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements,
monitoring and responding to emerging ESG issues. It also monitors
the Company’s sustainability and ESG information reporting and
disclosure in annual ESG report and advises the Board on all the
matters in the applicable code provision(s) of the ESG Reporting Guide
(Appendix C2) of the Listing Rules.

relevant

The Committee will meet at least once a year to discharge its
responsibilities. During the year ended 31 December 2024, two ESG
Committee meeting was held. The attendance of each member of the
ESG Committee in the section headed “Board and
Committees Meetings” of this report. During the Year, the ESG
Committee had reviewed on environmental, social and governance
work in 2024 and work scope in 2025. The ESG Committee also
reviewed the ESG report 2024.

is set out
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BOARD AND COMMITTEES MEETINGS EEERZEEEER
The individual attendance records of each Director attendance in ZEHHHFEBST -T-@uﬂﬁ_tﬁ_ = _@if n2
person or through electronic means of communication at the meetings HEMEZEZEe €% FHZEL RELZLEE  ESG

of the Board, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee, ESG ZE&  -WRH YBZEES %V?i@@%&%%
Committee, Share Incentive Committee, Audit Committee and annual BEERKE &% 7 @B EELERHIWOT :
general meeting in 2024 are set out below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings Held

HE HERY
Share

Audit Remuneration Nomination ESG  Incentive Annual

Full Board Committee Committee  Committee Committee Committee  General

Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting  Meeting

58 BUEEE FHZEE RLZEE SGEEE  RHAD RE#Es

Directors EX = ] E%ﬁ sni B ZEGTH PN

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Sze Man Bok 1 X1 % 44 NATER  NATER 22 NANGER NA TNER 1/1

Mr. Hui Lin Chit STEREE 24 NATHA  NATEA NATEA NATHA NATER 11

Mr. Hui Ching Lau FBREE 44 N/AFEA il 2/2 2/2 N/ATEA 1

Mr. Xu Da Zuo FREEE 4/4 N/A TiER NATEA  NATER NATER NATER 11

Mr. Sze Wong Kim MR % & 44 N/A 1B F NATEA  NATER NATER NATER 11

Mr. Hui Ching Chi SENEAE 44 NATEFR NATER  NATER NATER NATEB il

Mr. Li Wai Leung FEREE 4/4 4/4* 11" 2/2* 2/2 1/1 1

Mr. Xu Wenmo AFXEEE 44 NATER  NATER NATER NATER NATER 11
Independent Non-executive ~ BIFHITEE

Directors

Mr. Ho Kwai Ching Mark AEFEE 4/4 4/4 il 2/2 N/A TiEF 11 il

Mr. Theil Paul Marin RERBEE 4/4 4/4 1/1 2/2 2/2 il 1/1

Mr. Chen Chuang Rk 4/4 4/4 i 2/2 2/2 11 i

Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong BERBL 4/4 4/4 11 2/2 N/A T i 01

The Company’s external auditor also attended the annual general AARAFIEZBMMELFERREEFAS -
meeting.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the chairman held a HZE-ZT-_NF+-_A=+—HILFE EEELSL
meeting with the independent non-executive Directors without the HBHMBEH FHOB R TEB I IFRITEFLIT—

presence of other Directors. REE o
Note: Bt -
* Being the secretary of the meetings. * EREENWE -
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BOARD PROCEEDINGS

Regular Board meetings are held at quarterly intervals with additional
meetings convened as and when necessary to discuss the overall
strategic directions, the Group’s operations, financial performance, and
to approve interim and annual results and other significant matters. For
regular meetings, Board members are given at least 14 days prior
notice and agenda with supporting papers are sent to Directors not
less than 3 days before the relevant meeting is held (or other agreed
period). Directors may propose to the Chairman or the Company
Secretary to include matters in the agenda for regular Board meetings.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests, if
any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board at
Board meetings and abstain from voting in favour of the related Board
resolutions as appropriate.

Minutes of meetings of the Board and Board Committees are kept by
the Company Secretary in sufficient details the matters considered and
decisions reached, including dissenting views expressed, and are open
for inspection on reasonable notice by any Director. Draft and final
versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their comments and
records respectively within a reasonable time after the Board meeting
is held.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary with a view to ensuring the Board procedures are followed.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Group was charged approximately RMB4,400,000 and
RMB570,000 by the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, for auditing and non-auditing services respectively for the
year ended 31 December 2024. Non-auditing services mainly included
services provided for tax advisory services, preliminary announcements
of results, assistance on pricing notification and
documentation, strategic breakdown and comprehensive budget
management training etc. The Audit Committee is of the view that the
auditors’ independence is not affected by the services rendered.

transfer
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 which gives a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2024, and of the results and cash flows for year then ended. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2024, the Board has selected appropriate accounting policies, applied
them consistently in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards which are pertinent to its operations and relevant
to the financial statements, made judgments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable, and ensured the preparation of the financial
statements on the going concern basis.

The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group’s performance, position and
prospects. The interim and annual results of the Group are announced
in a timely manner within the limit of two months and three months,
respectively, after the end of the relevant periods in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for preparing all
information and representation contained in the financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024. The reporting
responsibilities of external auditor are set out in the section
“Independent Auditor’s Report”.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for the
design and implementation of the systems of internal controls which
reporting, operations, compliance and risk
management of the Company, as well as continuous monitoring the
effectiveness of such systems. The Board has delegated such
responsibility to the management of the Group. The management,
under the supervision of the Board, has established an on-going
process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks faced
by the Group.

covers financial

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal control
systems that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis. The
Audit Committee also considers the adequacy of
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting function, as well as their training
programmes and budgets.

resources,
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The Group has an independent and objective internal audit department
which reviews an d monitors all critical aspects of the Group’s
authorities and its internal controls. Internal audit reports are presented
to the Board and the Audit Committee annually. The Audit Committee
has also annually reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications,
experience and training programs of the Group’s internal audit staff
and accounting and financial reporting staff and considered that the
staffing is adequate and the staff are competent to carry out their
roles and responsibilities.

During the Year, the Company’s internal audit department reviewed the
Company’s internal control procedures and made recommendations to
the Board on improvements that can be made to the existing internal
control procedures. Through the Audit Committee, the Board has
conducted annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control systems for the year ended 31 December 2024 and
considered that the Group’s internal control systems effective and
adequate and is of the view that the system of internal control and
accounting adopted for the year ended 31 December 2024 is sound
and effective to safeguard the interests of the shareholders’
investments and the Group’s assets.

The Board is satisfied that the risk management and internal control
systems in place covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls for the year ended 31 December
2024 under review and up to the date of issuance of the annual report
is reasonably effective and adequate.

Risk Management Framework

1. Each business unit is responsible for identifying, assessing and
managing risks within its business, ensuring that appropriate
internal controls for effective risk management are implemented
— principal risks are identified and assessed in the yearly
business planning process with action plans to manage those
risks;

2. The management is responsible for overseeing the risk
management and internal control activities of the Group —
regular meetings with each business unit to ensure principals
risk are properly managed, and new or changing risks are
identified; and
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3. The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s risk management
and internal control — review of the annual internal audit report
and consideration of the Audit Committee’s recommendation.

The risk management framework, coupled with our internal control,
ensures that the risks associated with our different business units are
effectively controlled in line with the Group’s risk appetite.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a policy on payment of dividends pursuant
to code provision of the CG Code, which sets out the principles and
guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to the
recommendation, declaration, payment or distribution of dividends to
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”). The Company does
not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio. The Board has the
discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the Shareholders,
subject to the Articles of Association of the Company and all
applicable laws and regulations and the factors set out below.

The Board will also take into account the financial results; cash flow
situation; balance of distributable reserves; business conditions and
strategies; statutory fund reserve requirements; capital requirements
and expenditure plans; future operations and earnings; interests of
Shareholders; any restrictions on payment of dividends; and any other
factors that the Board may consider relevant of the Group when
considering the declaration and payment of dividends.

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company is committed to a consistent practice of timely, accurate
and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material information about the
Group. The Company has adopted a Policy on Disclosure of Inside
Information which sets out the obligations, guidelines and procedures
for handling and dissemination of inside information. With these
guidelines and procedures, the Group has management controls in
place to ensure that potential inside information can be promptly
identified, assessed and escalated for the attention of the Board to
decide about the need for disclosure.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Wai Leung has been the Company Secretary of the Company
since January 2017. He is a full time employee of the Company and
has adequate working knowledge on the Company to discharge his
duty as the Company Secretary. Mr. Li reports to the Chairman of the
Board and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. For the year under review, Mr. Li has confirmed
that he has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers. In 2024, no
claims under the insurance policy were made. The Directors and
officers of the Company shall not be indemnified where there is any
fraud, breach of duty or breach of trust proven against them.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting (“EGM”)

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association and the Companies
Act (as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands (the
“Companies Act”), registered shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) holding not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company (the “EGM Requisitionists”) can deposit a written
request to convene an EGM at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong (the “Principal Office”), which is presently situated at Unit
2101D, 21/F, Admiralty Centre, Tower 1, 18 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong. The EGM Requisitionists must state in their request(s) the
objects of the EGM and such request(s) must be signed by all the
EGM Requisitionists and may consist of several documents in like
form, each signed by one or more of the EGM Requisitionists.

The Share Registrars will verify the EGM Requisitionists’ particulars in
the EGM Requisitionists’ request. Promptly after confirmation from the
Share Registrars that the EGM Requisitionists’ request is in order, the
Company Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene an EGM by
registered Shareholders in
accordance with all the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.

serving sufficient notice to all the

On the contrary, if the EGM Requisitionists’ request is verified not in
order, the EGM Requisitionists will be advised of the outcome and a
EGM will not be convened as requested.
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The EGM Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene
an EGM if within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of the EGM
Requisitionists’ request, the Board does not proceed duly to convene
an EGM provided that any EGM so convened is held within a further
twenty-one (21) days from the date of the original EGM
Requisitionists’ request. An EGM so convened by the EGM
Requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the
Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at a
General Meeting

There are no provisions in the Company’s articles of association or the
Companies Act for shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request
the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph. Shareholders can also
send enquiries and proposals putting forward for shareholders’
consideration at shareholders’ meetings to the Board in writing to the
Principal Office of the Company or directly by raising questions at the
general meeting of the Company.

Shareholders’ enquires

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, or
call its customer service hotline at (852) 2980 1333. Shareholders may
also make enquiries to the Board at the general meetings of the
Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted the Shareholders Communication Policy
with the objective of ensuring that the shareholders and potential
investors are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the Company.

The Company has established several channels to communicate with
the shareholders as follows:

(i) corporate communications such as annual reports, interim reports
and circulars are issued in printed form and are available on the
Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk and the
Company’s website at www.hengan.com;
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(i) periodic announcements are published on the respective websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company;

(i) corporate information is made available on the Company’s
website;

(iv)  annual and extraordinary general meetings provide a forum for
the shareholders to make comments and exchange views with
the Directors and senior management; and

(v) the Hong Kong share registrar of the Company serves the
shareholders in respect of share registration, dividend payment
and related matters.

(vij  The Company believes that effective communication with its
shareholders and the investment community in a fair and timely
basis is essential. Continuous dialogue is held with research
analysts and institutional investors by means of one-on-one
meetings, conference calls and investors conferences to keep
them abreast of the Group’s business and development.

During the vyear, the Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy and was
satisfied with the said policy and considered
communication with shareholders was effective with the variety of
communication channels provided above. The Company continues to
promote investor relations and enhance communication with the
existing shareholders and potential investors.

the overall

The Company welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders and
the public. Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent by
post to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has adopted the Amended and Restated Memorandum
and the Amended and Restated Articles of Association at the 2024
annual general meeting of the Company held on 17 May 2024. An up-
to-date consolidated version of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association has been posted on both the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group is committed to high standards of integrity, ethics,
openness, accountability and good corporate governance. In
compliance with code provision D.2.6 of the CG Code, the Board has
adopted a Whistleblowing Policy. It provides employees and the
relevant third parties who deal with the Group (e.g. customers,
suppliers, creditors and debtors) with guidance and reporting channels
on reporting any existing or potential misconduct, malpractice or
irregularities in any matters related to the Group directly addressed to

the designated person.

An email account (jubao@hengan.com) has been set up for this
purpose. All reported matters will be investigated independently and, in
the meantime, all information received from a whistleblower and its
identity will be kept confidential and anonymous.

The Board and the Audit Committee will regularly review the
Whistleblowing Policy and mechanism to improve its effectiveness.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

In compliance with the code provision D.2.7 of the CG Code, the
Board has adopted an Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy. It
outlines guidelines and the minimum standards of conducts, all
applicable laws and regulations in relation to the anti-corruption and
anti-bribery, the responsibilities of employees to resist fraud, to help
the Group defend against corrupt practices and to report any
reasonably suspected case of fraud and corruption or any attempts
to the management or through an appropriate reporting
The Group would not tolerate all forms of fraud and
corruption among all employees and those acting in an agency or
fiduciary capacity on behalf of the Group, and in its business dealing
with third parties.

thereof,
channel.

The Board and the Audit Committee will review the Anti-Fraud and
Anti-Corruption Policy and mechanism periodically to ensure its
effectiveness and enforce the commitment of the Group to the
prevention, deterrence, detection and investigation of all forms of fraud
and corruption.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in presenting herewith their report
together with the audited accounts of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Group are the manufacturing, distribution and
sale of personal hygiene products, mainly in the PRC. The principal
activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note
38 to the financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities and an indication of
likely future developments in the Group’s business, as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, can be found in
the “Chief Executive Officer Report” set out on pages 14 to 40 of this
Annual Report. This discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

(1) An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to operating
profit by business segments is as follows:

EEERES

EERARSBE_F-AFI=A=+ALLF
ErEERRES H$%lﬁ%ﬁ2%ﬁo
IEXRBREBORE

ARRZIBEBRBREER AKBZIEXEK
RETPHEAEE DHEHEEABEERR -HEBERQ
AMEBRXBREMEMEN Y HHRRM 38 -

REB(ARGEIIMN RSB T AR S £
—SABEROMERAEEEEORRAEERD
M BRAERPOITHRERIREE]FE142408
FozimERNAEETEREN—HD -

(1 BEHBEH
T

D2 AR B WA R #REE D TN

2024 2023
—T-mEF —E=F
Contribution Contribution
to operating to operating
Revenue profit Revenue profit
(' DN SER R PN DELEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARETTT ARETTT
Personal hygiene products & A &£ B @
— Sanitary napkin products - HEDER 5,677,965 2,016,696 6,178,438 2,317,022
- Disposable diaper - —RIEHIK
products ¥ mh 1,260,631 267,380 1,254,070 194,302
— Tissue paper products - {MEM 13,422,445 (244,681) 13,748,172 243,739
Others H A 2,308,174 132,480 2,587,256 129,601
22,669,215 2,171,875 23,767,936 2,884,664
EREREEFRAT
ZECNEER
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(2)  The geographical analysis of the Group’s revenue is shown as

@ mwERIDZAEEWRADFTMOT

follows:
2024 2023
—E-E —E-=
Percentage
of total Percentage of
Revenue revenue Revenue  total revenue
[N L DN WA (=R ON
RMB’000 (%) RMB’000 (%)
AREBTRT Bkt ARBFT EF:d
PRC Fh

Fujian and Jiangxi i=pan 9,056,788 8,621,905 36.3
North-western Padt 785,290 887,375 3.7
South-western g 1,776,662 1,943,382 8.2

Guangdong, Guangxi, Hunan W
and Hubei 2,888,158 3,378,391 14.2
North-eastern Sl 730,402 749,876 3.2
Northern =5l 1,266,550 1,242,855 5.2
Shandong and Henan =g 4 1,532,964 1,644,809 6.9
Eastern ER 2,639,981 2,958,354 12.4
Hong Kong and Macau BB KR 1,394,352 1,821,911 7.7
Overseas SEN 598,068 519,078 2.2
22,669,215 23,767,936 100

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 103.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy. Subject to the Articles of
Associations of the Company and all applicable laws and regulations,
the Board will also take into account the financial results; cash flow
situation; balance of distributable reserves; business conditions and
strategies; statutory fund reserve requirements; capital requirements
and expenditure plans; future operations and earnings; interests of
Shareholders; any restrictions on payment of dividends; and any other
factors that the Board may consider relevant of the Group when
considering the declaration and payment of dividends.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of RMBO0.70
RMBO0.70) per ordinary share, totaling RMB813,485,000
RMB813,485,000), which was paid on 10 October 2024.

(2023:
(2023:
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The Directors recommend the payment of/paid a final dividend of
RMBO0.70 (“Proposed Final Dividend”) (2023: RMBO0.70) per ordinary
share, totalling RMB813,485,000 (2023: RMB813,485,000). Such
dividend is to be approved by Shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting to be held on 20 May 2025.

Dividends payable to Shareholders will be paid in HK$. The exchange
rate adopted by the Company for its payable is the middle rate of HK$
to RMB announced by the People’s Bank of China for the business
day preceding the date of dividend declaration. The final dividend of
RMBO0.70 per share equivalent to HK$0.75801 per share using the
exchange rate of HK$ to RMB on 24 March 2025, which is 0.92347.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(@) For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the AGM
The AGM is scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 20 May 2025.
For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 15 May 2025 to Tuesday, 20 May 2025, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at AGM, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
should ensure that all
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 14 May 2025.

the share transfer documents

(b) For determining the entitlement to the Proposed Final

Dividend

The Proposed Final Dividend is subject to the approval of
shareholders at the AGM. For determining the entitlement to the
Proposed Final Dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024,
the register of members of the Company will also be closed from
Monday, 26 May 2025 to Tuesday, 27 May 2025, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for entitlement to
the Proposed Final Dividend, unregistered holders of shares of
the Company should ensure that all share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 23 May 2025.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operation, business and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties.
During the year, the Company conducted an exercise based on the
ERM Framework, in the paragraph headed “Risk
Management and Internal Controls” in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 64 to 66 of this Annual Report, to review, assess
and control the identified risks faced by the Group. A variety of
financial risk factors affects the Group’s activities are set out in Note
32(b) to the accounts. The Group’s other key risk exposures are
summarized as follows:

as set out

Strategic Risks (i) Slow-down of the economy and

consumer spending
(if) Deterioration of market competition
Operational Risks (i) Ineffective  management of the retall
operations of distributors
(i) Changes in consumers’ demand or
failure to respond to such changes in a
timely manner

(i) Ineffective brand promotion activities or
failure to maintain and promote the
brand

Hazard Risks (i) Business susceptible to extreme or
unseasonable weather conditions

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately RMB13,312,000 (2023: RMB11,141,000).

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Details of acquisitions and other movements of non-current assets
(including property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
investment properties, construction-in-progress and intangible assets)
are set out in notes 13 to 17 the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in Note 24 to the accounts.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2024
amounted to approximately RMB8,186,939,000 (2023:
RMB9,563,552,000). Under section 34 of the Companies Law
(Revised) of the Cayman lIslands, the share premium is available for
distribution to the Shareholders subject to the provisions of the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), and no
distribution may be paid to the Shareholders out of the Company’s
share premium unless the Company shall be able to pay its debt as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 108.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the last five
financial years and of its consolidated assets and liabilities as at the
end of the last five financial years is set out on pages 6 and 7
respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the vyear, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
on the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

=
AEEARBERAREALZEEMT :

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BITES BIUFEHITES

Mr. Sze Man Bok Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong
B X 18 5 A BERBLL

Mr. Hui Lin Chit Mr. Ho Kwai Ching Mark
FRERELEL o] BB & &

Mr. Hui Ching Lau Mr. Chen Chuang

ERER b S bR ) 5 A4

Mr. Xu Da Zuo Mr. Theil Paul Marin

FF KRR % REFBEE

Mr. Sze Wong Kim
H AR % 5 =

Mr. Hui Ching Chi
AR MK E

Mr. Li Wai Leung
FEREE

Mr. Xu Wenmo
FFCER k&

In accordance with Articles 99 and 116 of the Articles of Association
of the Company and the CG Code, Mr. Hui Ching Chi, Mr. Li Wai
Leung, Mr. Theil Paul Marin and Mr. Chen Chuang will retire office at
the Company’s annual general meeting to be held on 20 May 2025
(“AGM”), and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Each Executive Director has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of three years and continuing thereafter on
an annual basis until terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party.

The Company had entered into the letters of appointment with
independent non-executive directors, Mr. Ho Kwai Ching Mark, Ms.
Ying Kay Ada Wong, Mr. Chen Chuang and Mr. Theil Paul Marin, with
no specific term. Termination could be made by serving not less than
three months’ notice in writing by either party.

BIOGRAPHICAL AND EMOLUMENT DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 41 to 49.
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Directors’ and Senior Management Emoluments

The Directors’ and senior management remuneration is recommended
by the Remuneration Committee and subject to approval by the
Company’s board of Directors with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ emoluments are set out on Note 40. The emoluments
payable to six senior management (2023: seven senior management)
during the year within the following bands:
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EZERSREBABZEM
E=ENaRERBASHehFMEZESRE IR
BARREEGL2TEERE EERRE UK
AEBEREMAELEE

EEHMFBHOMEL0 - AFEEZN FARUSR
EBAB(CZEZ=F +tUaREBAS) K RMHM
ETHNEAAHEN :

Number of individuals

Emolument bands T i

HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to RMBO to
RMB912,210)

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 (equivalent to

RMB912,211 to RMB1,368,315)

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,368,316 to RMB1,824,420)

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,824,421 to RMB2,280,525)

0 — ##1,000,000 (B E R
ARBEOTLE ARYI12,2107T)

7 #1,000,001 - /& 1,500,000
(HERAR®EI2211TE
AR #1,368,3157T)

7 #1,500,001 — 75 2,000,000
(FH&E N AR™1,368,3167T &
AR #1,824,4207T)

7 #2,000,001 - /& #2,500,000
(FBE RN ARMA,824,421TF
AR #2,280,5257T)

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had approximately 24,000
employees (2023: 23,000 employees). The Group implements
remuneration policy, bonus, share options scheme and share award
scheme to ensure that pay scales of its employees are rewarded on a
performance-related basis within the general framework of the Group’s
remuneration.

The Group also committed to continuing education and development
of its employees, and the Group provides various education and
training programs both internally and externally to cultivate its
employees in improving their skills and developing their potential.

Remuneration of Directors and senior management of the Group is
reviewed by the Company’s remuneration committee against the
Company’s goals and objectives.

AE
2024 2023
—E-NE =T =
3
3
1
0
12 1% & % B B 2R
R-ZZ-_ME+-_A=+—B AEBHEFLH
240008 EE (ZE - =4 : 23,000%EE) - K&
B E R MR - AT - BT 8 AR SR AT

B UBREEZHSHBEDIRAKE —RF MR
BABETYAERRAFZEE-

SETARFERE REREENET - £EARE
TREHEZSBORBRINDRE RIFIIRE - AEE
BT HERFOEROLRBEERSENEN -

AEEEERSREEENFHHARRAFMER
ERBARFAMNERRREEZ -

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR



Report of the Directors
EEERESE

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARE IN
THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2024, the interests of each director in the shares,
short position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO
and disclosed in accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange were as

EERAQANEMEBRELE 2 RA
REERODFER 2 HEERKAR

BEE-ZT-NEF+ZR=+—H ARIREES
K EE GG ([3E 7 601 )) #3626 M R E 2 & "L
It B EFEARAREEHBEEAE (RESFK
BIEXVEBZ EE) 2B RR - RO RES
R WRKBBXAcES LETRI(LTHR
AIDmERZ RmEZIMT

follows:
Number of
Capacity/Nature of Interest unlisted
Number of shares shares (o (1)
FEHZEER
S #EEENRGHE WL =)
Personal Personal Approximate
interests/ Family interests/ percentage of
Name of Directors Beneficiary Interest Beneficiary Total shareholding
BAERS BA#ERE ]
EERS ZmA KiEHER ZmA B3 485t BRYEHLY
Mr. Sze Man Bok et )
B 31 5 A (e 239,299,999 - 70,000 239,369,999 20.60%
Mr. Hui Lin Chit Wete @)
T 3 B ST A Ee) 268,892,733 - 210,000 269,102,733 23.16%
Mr. Hui Ching Lau
B kA 1,600,000 - 6,300,000 7,900,000 0.68%
Mr. Xu Da Zuo MNete @)
BTN BB S A () 17,710,000 - 210,000 17,920,000 1.54%
Mr. Sze Wong Kim
16 48 & 5E & 851,700 - 70,000 921,700 0.08%
Mr. Hui Ching Chi
B A& 40,000 - 280,000 320,000 0.03%
Mr. Xu Wenmo (ete )
BT 3CBR o A G 7,917,000 - 140,000 8,057,000 0.69%
Mr. Li Wai Leung
TEBREE - - 210,000 210,000 0.02%
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Notes:

Unlisted shares represent share options granted to Directors pursuant to
share option scheme of the Company, and details of which are set out
on pages 81 to 87.

Out of the 239,299,999 shares, Tin Lee Investments Limited (“Tin Lee”)
held 238,724,399 ordinary shares while Mr. Sze had personal interests in
575,600 ordinary shares in the Company. Tin Lee is a company
in the British Virgin
subsidiary of Tin Wing Holdings Limited (“Tin Wing”).

incorporated Islands and is a wholly owned
Tin Wing is a
company incorporated in the Bahamas and owned by Hang Seng Bank
(Trustee) Limited as nominee and being the trustee of the Sze’s Family
Trust. Mr. Sze Man Bok is the settlor and beneficiary of the Sze’s Family
Trust. He is therefore deemed under Part XV of the SFO to be interested

in the interests of the Sze’s Family Trust in the Company.

An Ping Holdings Limited held 268,892,733 shares in the Company. It is
a company incorporated in the Bahamas and is a wholly owned
subsidiary of An Ping Investments Limited (“An Ping Investments”). An
Ping Investments is a company incorporated in the Bahamas and owned
by TMF (Cayman) Ltd as nominee and being the trustee of the Hui
Family Trust. Mr. Hui Lin Chit is the settlor and beneficiary of the Hui
Family Trust. He is therefore deemed under Part XV of the SFO to be

interested in the interests of the Hui Family Trust in the Company.

Skyful Holdings Limited held 17,710,000 shares in the Company. It is a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Charter Towers Limited (“Charter Towers”). Charter Towers
is a company incorporated in the Bahamas and owned by Credit Suisse
as nominee and being the trustee of the Xu Family Trust. Mr. Xu Da Zuo
is the settlor and beneficiary of the Xu Family Trust. He is therefore
deemed under Part XV of the SFO to be interested in the interests of the
Xu Family Trust in the Company.

Out of the 7,917,000 shares, Fountain Luck Holdings Limited (“Fountain
Luck”) holds 7,280,000 shares of the Company while Mr. Xu had
personal interests in 637,000 shares in the Company. Fountain Luck is

a company incorporated in the Bahamas and is a wholly-owned

subsidiary of Metro Global Investments Limited (“Metro Global”). Metro
Global is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and owned
by Credit Suisse Trust Limited as nominee and being the trustee of The
Fountain Luck Trust (a discretionary trust). Mr. Xu Wenmo is the settlor
and beneficiary of The Fountain Luck Trust. He is therefore deemed
under Part XV of the SFO to be interested in the interests of The

Fountain Luck Trust in the Company.

B st

(4)

Report of the Directors
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LT ZAEEERDRARBRMZ BRETE®
RTERNERE  FRERSIINEIEESTE -

239,299,009 7 E - KK EBR QAKX
FMDEBEEEANBAZEDBFEARRQA
238,724,3990% &575,6008% L @AR 5 - K F| A — K
REBEXZSKILH AT  WATNn Wing Holdings
Limited ([ Tin Wing ) 2 2 &M B 2 8] » Tin Wing A
—RREBREBERIOAR THERREELTT
ANEERITEAXERAFUEEREATOHEES -
HXEEEARERREERAZHMERETANZ &
A IREBEEBHFEOEXNVIBZEE  BELBEHE
EERREELOHER -

ZFERB R AR FEE AR E268,892, 733 A 17
EA—RREBRERINAG TARFREAR
AR TFRED2ERBZWB AR - ZTFRE
A-RREBREXRYHAR THFERKER
(The Hui Family Trust)¥ 5L ATMF (Cayman) LtdJA{E
AREASHEE TEREERTRRKETD
MERETANZZA  BEZHEEXVIEZE
E FALESARETRRGELOHER -

REZRBR D AFFHE AR A]17,710,00008 B 15
EA—RREBEXZSMK KRG I ACharter
Towers Limited ([ Charter Towers |) 2 2 & W B 2
] o Charter Towers/8—RIEEBEREKIZH AR - I
A KR %12 55(The Xu Family Trust)¥ 5 A Credit
Suisse AEFERBAFDHA - T REXE AT
REEAZHERTANMZHEA  RIEZEHEHSE
XVEz B BEALHERAEET KRR GET0E

o

B

77,917,0000% 5 & A - Fountain Luck Holdings
Limited ([ Fountain Luck 1) 5 & ZX 22 77,280,000/%
B&f5 + & 5% 4 AL HE A 7R 2 71637,0000% AR 19 &9 8 A
# 7 ° Fountain Luck2 —RA BB HaEMMA LA A
A » &Metro Global Investments Limited ([ Metro
Global |) ®) 2 & F22 & © Metro GlobalE — %K i %
B4R B EEMA T E AR AFountain Luck 55T
%% A Credit Suisse Trust Limited MAE:ERE A S
MHZTEANEEER © FF X B £ A Fountain Luck{s 5t
CHEETANZZEA Bt REFHFRBAEER
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6) Interests in shares and share options were long position. 6) BEZRMHREREYRTRE -

(7)  The percentage expressed are based on the total number of issued Shares  (7) HEEMERBRER=ZZ-_NF+=_A=1+—0®

1,162,120,917 as at 31 December 2024. BT M 42 1,162,120,901 7R T E B -
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of REBLZEz2ROREBROZEE

associated corporation

Type of interest

HEED

Total No. of % of

ordinary shares shareholding in

Name of associated Family in the associated the associated

Name of Director corporation Personal Interest corporation corporation

RAEBER

Pt 15 & 38 % 1518 E A E

EEfa HEAZEEE & A RIik#ELE e R#EE L

Mr. Hui Ching Chi Wang-Zheng Berhad 21,319,107 = 21,319,107 13.38%
AR MK E

Mr. Li Wai Leung Wang-Zheng Berhad 18,000 - 18,000 0.01%
FEREE

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the M EXFIEZEEN R-_ZT-_NEF+-A=+—
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests or H HEEZEN AR ETETHAE REBE AR
short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the AR A HETMAIHEE EZE (&R EFH LB EED
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of ~ ZEXVE) Z %)  HERO RES S >  BETMAIR
Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded in the register 1B 5 K E EEHI EIB2E R FAINARARFNGEE
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as 2 & i fft  skiR B IZE <P BB M& A Q8] M B By
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant  HJ#EzE sk K& o

to the Model Code.

Notes: Bt -
1) Interests in shares were long position. (1) HEZRMDRIEERE -
(2)  The percentage expressed are based on the total number of issued Shares  (2) HEAOHEERER-_Z-_NF+_A=+—808

159,356,400 as at 31 December 2024. B 31T R () 42 8159,356,4000% st E B H -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

)

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 26 May
2011 (the “2011 Share Option Scheme”) had expired on 26 May
2021. No further share options shall be offered or granted under
the 2011 Share Option Scheme but in all other respects the
provisions of the 2011 Share Option Scheme shall remain in full
force and effect, and all share options granted prior to such
expiration and not exercised nor forfeited/lapsed at the date of
termination shall remain valid. Please refer to 2020 annual report
of the Company for the terms of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme. The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 17 May 2021 which is valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on the date of adoption of the
Scheme. The terms of the Scheme are summarised as follows:

(i) Purpose of the Scheme
The purpose of the Scheme is to encourage participants
to contribute to our Group through giving them certain
equity interest of our Company and to enhance the value
of our Company and our Shares, for the ultimate benefit of
our Company and our Shareholders as a whole.

(i) Eligible Persons

Participants of the Scheme comprise of directors (including
executive Director(s), non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) any full-time or part-
time employees of the Group. as determined by the Board
from time to time. The Directors may, at their discretion,
invite participants to participate
determining the basis of eligibility of each participant, the
Board would take into account such factors as the Board
may at its discretion consider appropriate.

in the Scheme. In

(iii) Maximum Number of Shares Available for Issue
The maximum number of shares available for issue after
considering the options already granted under the Scheme
as at the date of the annual report are 90,570,642,
representing 7.79% of total issued shares of the Company
as at the date of this annual report, which are not more
than 10% of the issued share capital of the Company (i.e.
117,753,742 shares) as at the date of the approval of the
Scheme.
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(iv)

Maximum Entitlement of Each Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of the Options granted to each Participant
pursuant to the Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of our Company in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of our Shares in issue. Where further
Options are granted to a Participant, and all such shares
issued and to be issued upon the exercise of the
Participant’s granted and to-be granted Options (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding Options) represent in
aggregate over 1% of the Shares in issue in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such further grant,
such Offer must be separately approved by Shareholders
in general meeting with such Participant and his
associates abstaining from voting. Our Company must
send a circular to our Shareholders containing the identity
of the Participant in question, the number and terms of the
Options to be granted (and Options previously granted to
such Participant), information required under the Listing
Rules.

Where any proposed grant of Options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive Director of
our Company, or any of their respective associates, would
result in our Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all Options already granted and to be granted
(including Options exercised, cancelled or outstanding) to
such person in the 12 month period up to and including
the date of such grant:

(@)  representing in aggregate over 0.1% of our Shares
then in issue; and

(b)  having an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of our Shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the Date of
Grant, in excess of HK$5 million,

such further grant of Options shall be subject to prior
approval by resolution of our Shareholders (voting by way
of poll). Grantee, his associates and all core connected
persons of the Company shall abstain from voting in
favour of the resolution, but they may vote against the
resolution at such general meeting of our Shareholders
(provided that they have indicated such preference in their
letters to the Shareholders.
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(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Time on Exercise of Options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme and the offer of the grant of an option at
any time commencing on the date of grant and expiring on
such date as determined by the Board provided that the
option may not be exercised after the expiration of 10
years from the date of grant.

Acceptance of Offer

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted not
less than 30 business days after the offer date and must
be accompanied by payment of HK$1.00.

Subscription Prices

The Subscription Price shall be determined by our Board
in its absolute discretion but in any event shall be at least
the highest of:

(@)  the closing price of each of our Shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the Date of Grant which must be a
Business Day;

(b)  the average closing price of each of our Shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five (5) Business Days
immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and

()  the nominal value of each of our Shares.

Remaining Life of the Scheme
The Scheme will remain in force before 17 May 2031.

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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(2)  Details of movements in the share options as at 31 December (2) #HE—-ZT_-_WE+_-_F=+—8 BEZL:
2024 which have been granted under the Scheme are as BEREMWERENSBFBEOT
follows:

Number of share options

BRiEYE
Granted Exercised Cancelled
Balance during during Reclassified or lapsed Balance Exercise
as at the the during during the as at  price per Date of
Eligible person 01/01/2024 period period the period period  31/12/2024 share grant Exercisable period
® R-ZT-ME
—EC-MmE REA +=A
—B—H RHA REAK 3l 374 =+-8 =1
fERBAL Z 48 R TE EWSE K% ZHER TEE RHBY fTiEH
HK$  (DD/MM/YYYY) (DD/MM/YYYY)
#rx (B/R/%) (B/R/%)
Directors
=
Mr. Sze Man Bok 30,000 - - - (30,000) - 41.48 18/01/2022 18/01/2023-17/01/2024
e 18 5 4 30,000 - - - - 30,000 41.48  18/01/2022 18/01/2024-17/01/2025
40,000 - - - - 40,000 41.48 18/01/2022 18/01/2025-17/01/2026
Mr. Hui Lin Chit 90,000 - - - (90,000) - 41.48 18/01/2022 18/01/2023-17/01/2024
ERLA 90,000 - - - - 90,000 41.48 18/01/2022 18/01/2024-17/01/2025
120,000 - - - - 120,000 41.48 18/01/2022 18/01/2025-17/01/2026
Mr. Hui Ching Lau 2,700,000 - - - (2,700,000) - 41.48 18/01/2022 18/01/2023-17/01/2024
FEMEE 2,700,000 - = - - 2,700,000 41.48 18/01/2022 18/01/2024-17/01/2025
3,600,000 - - - - 3,600,000 41.48 18/01/2022 18/01/2025-17/01/2026
Mr. Xu Da Zuo 90,000 - - - (90,000) - 41.48 18/01/2022 18/01/2023-17/01/2024
HFAELE 90,000 - - - - 90,000 41.48 18/01/2022 18/01/2024-17/01/2025
120,000 - - - - 120,000 41.48  18/01/2022 18/01/2025-17/01/2026
Mr. Sze Wong Kim 30,000 - - - (30,000) - 41.48 18/01/2022 18/01/2023-17/01/2024
HE )& &l 5 4 30,000 - - - - 30,000 41.48  18/01/2022 18/01/2024-17/01/2025
40,000 - - - - 40,000 41.48 18/01/2022 18/01/2025-17/01/2026
Mr. Hui Ching Chi 120,000 - - - (120,000) - 41.48 18/01/2022 18/01/2023-17/01/2024
B A 120,000 - - - - 120,000 41.48 18/01/2022 18/01/2024-17/01/2025
160,000 - - - - 160,000 41.48 18/01/2022 18/01/2025-17/01/2026
Mr. Li Wai Leung 90,000 - - - (90,000) - 41.48  18/01/2022 18/01/2023-17/01/2024
FEREAE 90,000 - - - - 90,000 41.48  18/01/2022 18/01/2024-17/01/2025
120,000 - - - - 120,000 41.48 18/01/2022 18/01/2025-17/01/2026
Mr. Xu Wenmo 60,000 - - - (60,000) - 41.48 18/01/2022 18/01/2023-17/01/2024
XA E 60,000 - - - - 60,000 41.48 18/01/2022 18/01/2024-17/01/2025
80,000 - - - - 80,000 41.48  18/01/2022 18/01/2025-17/01/2026
Participants 2,666,500 - - - - 2,666,500 79.20  05/10/2015 05/10/2018-05/10/2025
ZmE 1,333,250 - - - - 1,333,250 79.20  05/10/2015 05/10/2019-05/10/2025
1,333,250 - - - - 1,333,250 79.20  05/10/2015 05/10/2020-05/10/2025
10,214,100 = - - (10,214,100) - 41.48 18/01/2022 18/01/2023-17/01/2024
10,214,100 - - - (2,115,600) 8,098,500 41.48 18/01/2022 18/01/2024-17/01/2025
13,618,800 - - - (2,820,800) 10,798,000 41.48 18/01/2022 18/01/2025-17/01/2026
457,800 - - - (457,800) - 40.30  21/12/2022 21/12/2023-20/12/2024
457,800 - - - (116,400) 341,400 40.30  21/12/2022 21/12/2024-20/12/2025
610,400 - - - (1565,200) 455,200 40.30  21/12/2022 21/12/2025-20/12/2026
51,606,000 - - - (19,089,900 32,516,100
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Notes:

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant

until the commencement of exercise period.

The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on

which the share options being granted on 2 October 2015, 17
January 2022 and 20 December 2022 was HK$77.90, HK$39.15

and HK$40.10 respectively.

During the period, no options were cancelled under the Scheme.

The table below sets out the additional information in respect of

the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2024:

Number of options
available for grant as at
1 January 2024

Number of options
available for grant as at
31 December 2024

Bt
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BEENGEHEERERDBALETR
MK HE -

ZHEERERERA (M -_F—AF+A=-H "
R _F—A+RNERZZE-_—_F+=-A
Zt+BE)RZBRHO KT ED R ABET7.90
B #530.15 % B #4010 ©

B - Bt B TR A A 7 M AR o

TR BE2-_T-_NF+_A=+—HIt
FEBBZENEIINER

Number of outstanding options divided
by weighted average number Shares

in issue as at 31 December 2024
(excluding treasury shares)

BE-F-_WE+=-A=+—H

RITEBREHERI

BE-_¥-_mWE—HF—H BE-_F-WE+=-A=+—H B8 1T R Y By InHE S 2 R B
THRHNERERS THBHNERERE (FEEEERH)
71,480,742 90,570,642 2.85%
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The Company has used the Binomial Model for assessing the
fair value of the share options granted. It is an appropriate
model to estimate the fair value of an option that can be
exercised before the expiry of the option period. The
assumptions adopted in the calculation are:

Options

granted in

2015 to

Employees
R-ZE—A%F
BRRES
2B E

ARBHEAZEAABER  UFHEREBR

R DR - BT

R B (0 s R R

ERATA FTE) A FEN—EERRRN - R
SEEMEANBRRNT

Options

Options Options

granted in  granted in  granted in

January
2022 to

January December
2022 to 2022 to

Directors Employees  Employees
R-ZB-ZF R-B--F RZT-C
—ARFESE —ARTFEE +t-—ARFE

2B E Z2iEkiE BzBRIE

Fair value at grant date — HK$ REBHOQAREE 24.23-2574

2.70-3.84 2.63-3.84 4.01-4.97

- B
Share price at grant date - HK$ & H HHRZEHK 79.20 38.65 38.65 40.30
- B
Exercise price — HK$ TEE - B 79.20 41.48 41.48 40.30
Risk-free rate (note (a)) ey B X 1.50% 0.68%-1.22% 0.68%-1.22% 3.51%—4.05%
(K17 # (@)
Volatility (note (b)) T8 HA R 18 & 34.50% 24%—25% 24%—25% 23%—25%
(Kt #®p))
Dividend yield (note (c)) P B 2.04% 4.88% 4.88% 5.83%
(K17 #(c))
Trigger Price multiple (time) RATITHE R E () 2.51 2.75 2.20 2.20
Expected turnover rate T8 BB B L R 16.70% 1.98% 24.69% 23.90%
Expected life (year) TEET 1T EARR () 10 2-4 2-4 2-4
Notes: it -
(a) Risk-free rate is determined with reference to the yield of Hong (a) EERBANE2EHBIEEZSELFHKZER
Kong Exchange Fund Notes. REETE ©
(b)  Expected volatility is estimated with reference to the historical share (b) TERIEBERLBANGMNELREETE -
price of the Company.
(©) Dividend yield is estimated by reference to the historical share price () BREKWBZELBARFTMNELREMZNHH

and dividend paid of the Company.
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According to the Binomial Model, the fair value of the options
granted, which had been charged to the profit and loss account
for the year ended 31 December 2024, amounted to
RMB8,873,000 (2023: RMB44,996,000) and the remaining
unamortised fair value of RMB1,793,000 for options granted in
2024 (2023: RMB25,153,000) will be charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the future years.

It should be noted that the value of an option varies with
different variables of certain subjective assumptions; any change
in variables so adopted may materially affect the fair value
estimate.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 11 September 2023 (the “Adoption Date”), the Company
adopted the share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”)
under which shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”)
may be awarded to selected employees (including executive
directors) pursuant to the terms of the Share Award Scheme and
trust deed of the Share Award Scheme (the “Trust Deed”). The
Share Award Scheme is subject to the administration of the
Share Incentive Committee and the trustee of the Share Award
Scheme (the “Trustee”) in accordance with the Share Award
Scheme and the Trust Deed. The principal terms of the Share
Award Scheme are summarised below:

(i) Purposes of the Share Award Scheme

The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to (i)
encourage employees of the Group to, through their
opportunity in ownership of the equity interests in the
Company and sharing of the results of the Group’s
strategic development, contribute to the Group and
increase the value of the Company and its shares, thereby
benefiting the Company and its shareholders as a whole;
and (i) retain talents and attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group.
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

R& S

The Participants of the Share Award Scheme

The Share Incentive Committee may, from time to time, at
its absolute discretion select any eligible employee for
participation in the Share Award Scheme as a selected
employee and determine the number of awarded shares to
be awarded to the respective selected employees, the
terms and conditions before the awarded shares may be
vested and other related matters as expressly provided
under the Share Award Scheme.

Total number of shares available for issue

The Share Award Scheme involves existing shares of the
Company. The Share Incentive Committee shall determine
the maximum amount of funds to be allocated out of the
Company’s resources for the purchase of the awarded
shares as the Share Incentive Committee deems
appropriate pursuant to the scheme rules.

The Share Incentive Committee shall not make any further
purchase which will result in the aggregate number of
Shares purchased under the Scheme in excess of 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Adoption Date (i.e. 58,106,045 shares). For the avoidance
of doubt,
shares under any other share schemes adopted by the
Company prior to the Adoption Date.

the aforesaid limit does not include scheme

The maximum aggregate number of Shares held by the
Trustee under the Trust at any time under the Scheme
shall not exceed 2% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of Awarded Shares that may be
awarded to any Selected Employee under the Scheme
shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the Adoption Date.
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(v) Vesting period of awards granted under the Share
Award Scheme
Subject to the terms and conditions of the Share Award
Scheme and the fulfillment of all vesting conditions to the
vesting of the Awarded Shares on such selected employee
as specified in the Share Award Scheme and the relevant
grant instrument.

Unless otherwise determined by the Share Incentive
Committee, the Trustee shall hold the Awarded Shares
until they are vested with the Selected Employees in
accordance with the Scheme Rules.

(vi) Amount payable on acceptance of the awarded
Shares
The awarded shares are granted to any selected employee
at no consideration and in such number and on and
subject to such terms and conditions as the Share
Incentive Committee may in its absolute discretion
determine.

(vii) Basis of determining the purchase price of the

Shares to be awarded

When the Share Incentive Committee instructs the Trustee
to purchase Shares in the secondary market, it shall
specify the maximum amount of funds to be used and the
range of prices at which such Shares are to be
purchased. The Trustee may not incur more than the
maximum amount of funds specified by the Board.

(viii) Remaining life of the scheme
The Scheme shall be effective from the Adoption Date and
shall continue in full force and effect until the aggregate
number of Shares purchased under the Scheme reaches
the Scheme Limit or the Scheme is terminated by a
resolution of the Board.

If the Scheme Limit is reached or the Scheme is
terminated, the Trustee shall not purchase any Shares
pursuant to the Scheme Rules, but the Scheme Rules shall
remain in full force and effect in all other respects for
existing Scheme Shares.

There were 15,000,000 shares of the Company held by the Trust
as at 1 January 2024. 8,200,000 shares were purchased by the
Trustee on the market at prevailing market price during the year.
As at the date of this report, the total number of awards
available for grant under the Share Award Scheme were
58,106,045 shares. The Trustee held a total of 23,200,000
shares of the Company. No Shares have been awarded or
vested under the Share Award Scheme since its adoption.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under section 336
of part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2024, the
Company had been notified of the following substantial shareholders’
interests, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital.
These interests are in addition to those disclosed above in respect of
the Directors.

FERREARAQATARG - HBRMOA 2%
m=RAR

BAEBHIEH EXVEEEIROEMBEE L T EREE
2t BRRZTZmFF+ZA=+—8 KBLEX
FTEBEsEEIN ARV EETNEZREFE
AARBBTBRAES 2 AN LS Z BN It
ERFVABERANLEBEE2ESHER -

Number of
ordinary shares

Approximate
percentage of

Substantial shareholders Note Capacity beneficially held shareholding
BB ER EREnE

BREEHE Biit B HEEE Ry E R

Tin Lee Investments Limited (1) Beneficial owner 238,724,399 (L) 20.54%

RAEEBFR A EmfEA A

Tin Wing Holdings Limited (1) Interests of controlled corporation 238,724,399 (L) 20.54%
FFr 1% 1l 8 )% [ B # 2

An Ping Holdings Limited 2) Beneficial owner 268,892,733 (L) 23.14%

Z P ERERRAF Em#EB A

An Ping Investments Limited 2) Interests of controlled corporation 268,892,733 (L) 23.14%

ZEIREBR A A FFr 1% 1l 8 )% [ B # 2

TMF (Cayman) Ltd (3)  Trustee 268,892,733 (L) 23.14%
LA

Hang Seng Bank (Trustee) Limited 4) Trustee 238,724,399 (L) 20.54%

BARITELEBRAA ZFEA

L denotes long position L BFR
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Notes:

(1) Tin Lee Investments Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Tin Wing Holdings Limited.
Tin Wing Holdings Limited is a company incorporated in the Bahamas
and owned by Hang Seng Bank (Trustee) Limited as nominee and being
the trustee of the Sze’s Family Trust.

2) An Ping Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the Bahamas, is a
wholly owned subsidiary of An Ping Investments Limited. An Ping
Investments Limited is a company incorporated in the Bahamas and
owned by TMF (Cayman) Ltd as nominee and being the trustee of the
Hui Family Trust.

3) TMF (Cayman) Ltd is the trustee of the Hui Family Trust and is deemed
to be interested in the shares held by the trust.

4) Hang Seng Bank (Trustee) Limited is the Trustee of the Sze’s Family Trust
and is deemed to be interested in the shares held by the trust.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for Share Option Scheme disclosed above, at no time during the
year, was the Company or any of its associated corporations a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate and none of the Directors or their
spouses or children under 18 years of age was granted any right to
subscribe for any shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any of
its associated corporations.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the interests disclosed above in respect of the substantial
shareholders, as at 31 December 2024, no other person is individually
or collectively entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 5% or
more of the voting power at the general meetings of the Company
and are able, as a practicable manner, to direct or influence the
management of the Company.
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REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rules 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph D.3 of the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee including, but not limited to, the followings: (i) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and removal of the
external auditor; (i) reviewing the financial statements of the Group and
monitoring the integrity of such financial statements; and (iii)
overseeing the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures. The Audit Committee comprises four members, namely
Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong (Chairlady of the Audit Committee), Mr. Theil
Paul Marin, Mr. Ho Kwai Ching Mark and Mr. Chen Chuang.

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion
that the preparation of such results complied with the applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and legal requirements, and
adequate disclosures have been made.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, there were no transactions which need to be
disclosed as connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected transactions and
continuing connected transaction”, no transactions, arrangement or
contracts of significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance, to which the Company or any its
subsidiaries was a party in which a Shareholder had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed
the independence of all the Independent Non-executive Directors and
is satisfied of their independence.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING

RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes and
updated information regarding the directors and chief executive officer
during the year under review are set out below:

Mr. Thiel Paul Marin, an executive director of the Company, resigned
as the supervisor of China Industrial Bank Co. Ltd., a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock code: 601166) on 20 June
2024.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

The Board believes during the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Directors did not have interests in any businesses which compete or
are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Group’s customers primarily comprise of distributors, direct key
accounts and other retailers and the Group mainly sell its products to
a broad network of distributors. The Group has maintained well-
established relationships with its distributors and leverages the
strength of their distribution channels to efficiently distribute products
and reach consumers in different regions of China.

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the financial year and up
to the date of this Directors’ Report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of the
directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the Company).

Report of the Directors
EEEREE

BYFHTESZBISH

ARFCEERBILFATEETRELTRANE
BIBGRMEBLISNBEHZFREERN -EEEE
AEERBUFNTES BN AEARSF
TyBEL

BELTHRAFEI3S5IBA)VKEBEEE
Bz E

RiEETRAUFEIBSIBN)IGE FR BRARRE
ERTHEHNENES REHEMRSKINOT :

ARBRBIFATEEREFBAERN T
FRNAZTABFEEERT (BR{HASE : 601166) B
FB O ZRARRLEESFRSGMLED -

EERBFRBNES

EFEgME BE-T-_NMF+_A=+—HILF
B BEFVERNECMEAKEXFEERLARERF
KA EEBRFHERBHEAES

BEFNRERKRX

REBABERAR SBREEREFELAETEHNE
Sk A TR 2 RS ST S AR AA R HE AT R AT IR B
XXX Z BRI E HAERARREES
ESRE ARACHAKEZETRAESZ
EAFRPETRRBSELNEETMARNERE
BfRR -

BRIESAREN RUBREFEALANERLRAEER
ExeRSAY YEEACELEZBERER
XAARE (HBARR A HEAMITEL) 2 Q7]
(WA ARFMEL)EREEZMEER -

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR



Report of the Directors
EEEHEE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group selects its suppliers based on price, product quality, safety
and market reputation and typically collaborate with
reputable suppliers of raw materials. The Group has had stable
relationships with many of its suppliers of raw materials, and the
Group generally has various sources of supply for each type of raw
material to reduce the reliance on a single supplier and to make
reference to prevailing market prices for the same raw material.

reliable and

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director, in defending
any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given
in his favor, or in which he is acquitted. The Company has taken out
insurance against the liability and costs associated with defending any
proceedings which may be brought against Directors of the Group.

During the year, the Group sold less than 30% of its goods and
services to its five largest customers.

The percentages of purchases of goods and services for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

11.27%
34.05%

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers combined

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close associates
or any shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of
the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

interest

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major customers or suppliers
noted above.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained enough
public float under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of
Directors.

TAX RELIEF
The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation to which the
Shareholders are entitled by reason of their holding of the Shares.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to implementing good corporate
governance practices. Information on the principal corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the CG
report of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders unless otherwise required by the Stock
Exchange.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the share option scheme as disclosed in this report, no
equity-linked agreement was entered during the year or subsisted at
the end of the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
Details of the Company’s environmental, social and governance
practices are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report and Climate-Related Disclosures Report of the Company.

RAISING OF FUNDS AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company did not have any unutilised proceeds from fund raising
activities brought forward from previous financial years and did not
have any fund raising activity during the year ended 31 December
2024 and up to the date of this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company or its
subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the year.
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CHANGE OF THE AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY
On 19 August 2024, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) tendered its
resignation as the auditor of the Company, effective immediately. On
the same day, Deloitte Touch Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) was appointed as
the auditor of the Company, also effective immediately, to fill the
causal vacancy following the resignation of PwC and to hold office
until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 19 August 2024.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024 have been audited by Deloitte, who will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. The Board has
taken the Audit Committee’s recommendation that a resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
to reappoint Deloitte as auditor of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, the Group was not aware of material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the business and operations of the Group.

On behalf of the Board
Sze Man Bok
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2025
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

To the Shareholders of Hengan International Group Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hengan
International Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
108 to 224, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
8 3L &% BT IR &

Key Audit Matter
FHEEtEE

Recognition of revenue from sales of goods

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
AT REMAEETEIR

a5 55 B A B9 tE 58

We identified recognition of revenue from sales of goods as
a key audit matter due to the significance of the amount in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements as a whole
and the large volume of revenue transactions generated
from various products.
HMPEAmEERANEREEREREFTEE REE
ZeMEEEEHMBREABBTINEEN  URBEE
EMEENRERARS

Revenue is recognised net of estimated discounts and
sales rebates when the Group fulfills a performance
obligation by transferring control of the promised goods to
a customer. This amount reflects the consideration that the
Group expects to receive in exchange for those goods.
WARE ESERTRREBYMAGRNEMENES
BREPK REMATHNMEELIMFERR  LEHER
M OESEEHEECHNEELHRONE-

As disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, the revenue recognised from sales of goods for
the year ended 31 December 2024 amounting to
RMB22,669 million.

WM& TSR RN 6T B - Bl E20245F12A31H IEF
BERNEmEERARARK226.69F T
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Our procedures in relation to the recognition of revenue
from sales of goods included:

RO A mHE RA MR

e Reviewing sales agreements with a selection of
customers to understand the key terms as set out in
the sales agreement and assess whether the Group’s
revenue recognition policy complied with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers” issued by the HKICPA;
EHHBEFRPNHEEHE UERESHEFRRE
RS G AP EEENRABRIBERESN
AEAGMASHMO(EEYBRELENFE165 -
BEFARKRAYHZEN

e Obtaining an understanding of and evaluating relevant
controls in place on the revenue recognition from sales
of goods; and testing the operating effectiveness of the
relevant controls over the revenue recognition process;
TEERSG AT 1 B 7 o £ WA SR AR B e IR AT IR R e
A R 5 WA T 7R 3R AR R R 2 I HE B YRR 4E R I

e Comparing the sales amount of a selection of the
completed sales orders from the external database
with the corresponding amount of revenue transactions
recorded in the accounting records of the Group; and
KAEHMEZELHN TR BRMBYLTE LC Tl H
EAEMHESHEE EREIHENRASEETL
iR

e Comparing the sales information of a selection of
revenue transactions recorded in the accounting
records of the Group with the corresponding sales
contracts and goods delivery notes.

ER BEEETHTHEREERAZRSER &
HAHEECRREM RN EBETHLY -



OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023 were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those statements on 21 March 2024.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
% 3L % BET R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

includes our opinion solely to you,

influence the economic
statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business units within the group as a basis for forming an
opinion on the group financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and review of the audit work
performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

requirements

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
% 3L % BET R

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and is
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matters or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Poon Kam Chuen.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

& OF F 8 &

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mM&E+-_A=+-BILEE

NOTES
b &
Revenue PN 5
Cost of goods sold & B A 7
Gross profit EH
Selling and distribution costs B R AR 7
Administrative expenses THREA 7
Net impairment losses on financial assets % Bt & E R E%EE - F58 7
Other income and other gains — net HEmig AFIF S - F 58 6
Operating profit EEH
Finance income B 75 W 8
Finance costs HEER 8
Finance costs — net PBHEER - F8
Share of results of investments accounted 2 1HIZHEZEEAR 2
for using the equity method wE Wz (F18)
Profit before tax B Bt 15 i w5 F1
Income tax expense Frig i & F 9
Profit for the year EEMNE
Profit attributable to: FE 1 F11 57 -
Shareholders of the Company NAIEEFE A

Non-controlling interests

JEHE I M 2

Earnings per share for profit AATEBHAAELZ
attributable to shareholders of the SRR
Company
- Basic - BRERKE
10
- Diluted - FREEk SR
10

2024 2023
—EB-UE —E-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFxT AR T
22,669,215 23,767,936
(15,344,275) (15,757,248)
7,324,940 8,010,688
(3,687,693) (3,552,898)
(1,422,536) (1,515,989)
(68,006) (123,317
1,207,886 1,159,447
3,354,591 3,977,931
180,399 273,351
(563,575) (646,577)
(383,176) (373,226)
376 699
2,971,791 3,605,404
(FEREY)) (798,000)
2,296,604 2,807,404
2,298,535 2,800,533
(1,931) 6,871
2,296,604 2,807,404
RMB2.015 RMB2.415
AE%2.0155¢ AR #E2.4157T
RMB2.015 RMB2.415
AERK#%2.0157¢ AR ¥E2.4157T
EREREEERAT

T -FEFR



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

EHES KRR R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-mME+-_A=+-BLEE

Profit for the year EEANH

Other comprehensive (expense) income Hihze (B8R k=

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to AiEnESESIEE Bz
profit or loss HH
- Currency translation differences - NI E =R

ltems that will not be subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss

HETEESDREBmHER

- Currency translation differences - N E
Other comprehensive income for the year FEEHBEAWE
Total comprehensive income for the year FEEBZEKR
Attributable to: FE1E -

Shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

NEEHEFFAA
FEFR B MR AR

Total comprehensive income for the year

FEERFE WS

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

m Annual Report 2024

2024
—EF-NmF

RMB’000
ARETR

2,296,604

(19,069)

107,149

88,080

2,384,684

2,381,489
3,195

2,384,684

2023
RMB’000
AR®ETIT

2,807,404

(64,659)

82,041

17,382

2,824,786

2,823,176
1,610

2,824,786




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

EHEEEER

At 31 December 2024
—ZT-NME+=-A=+—H

2024 2023
—EF-NEF —FT==
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
b &t ARETT AREFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment W R RERE 13 8,319,686 7,255,824
Right-of-use assets FHAEEE 14 1,171,034 1,190,224
Construction-in-progress EETRE 16 1,287,158 1,710,626
Investment properties KEEEE 15 181,100 163,360
Intangible assets mVEE 17 612,589 640,498
Prepayments for non-current assets FERBEEBMNK 18 136,187 239,560
Deferred tax assets RIEFTIS B BE 29 491,777 498,460
Investments accounted for using the B AARZEER
equity method 36 34,678 56,854
Financial assets at fair value through NAREETEBEHES
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) AFAEHEENSREE 23 — 212,370
Long-term time deposits RERITEHER 22 4,630,685 1,438,163
16,864,894 13,405,939
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Inventories FE 19 4,797,574 4,352,041
Trade and bills receivables FE YRR B K B W R 20 2,254,158 2,553,357
Other receivables, prepayments and H i pE W AR R - B BR 3K
deposits e 20 1,556,768 1,703,406
Tax recoverable TERMEHMED 7,473 10,915
Derivative financial instruments TEemIT A 21 372 -
Restricted bank deposits AR FIRITFER 300 300
Financial assets at FVTPL WAREBEFEEEZS
AFAEHEZNSREE 23 61,149 -
Cash and bank balances Re RBITFER 22 14,261,723 18,189,943
22,939,517 26,809,962
Total assets HEE 39,804,411 40,215,901
CAPITAL AND RESERVE BEXRMEE
Share capital % < 24 123,345 123,345
Other reserves HAbEE 26 2,902,639 2,880,980
Retained earnings B 17 = 27 17,894,966 17,391,515

Equity attributable to shareholders REBRAATHEZFETA
of the Company 20,920,950 20,395,840

Non-controlling interests FEIEHIMEELS 224,631 234,011

Total equity EREL 21,145,581 20,629,851

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
EHEEBBR

At 31 December 2024

—ZE-_mF+=ZA=+—H

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=

NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
b et ARETT ARBFT

Non-current liabilities EFRHEE
Borrowings & 28 2,420,061 330,430
Lease liabilities HERE 14 9,000 12,948
Deferred tax liabilities RIEMESREE 29 153,227 182,386
2,582,288 525,764

Current liabilities RHER

Trade and bills payables EAEFRRENSEE 30 3,044,835 2,750,069
Other payables and accrued charges HiENERERRBEREA 30 1,641,831 1,630,085
Contract liabilities aEHBaE 5 543,233 540,276
Derivative financial instruments TESRTI A 21 - 15,548
Lease liabilities HEAaE 14 14,078 17,675
Tax payables EHmMEHAaE 162,778 199,438
Borrowings &3 28 10,669,787 13,907,195
16,076,542 19,060,286
Total liabilities EEE 18,658,830 19,586,050
Total equity and liabilities EBERERESS 39,804,411 40,215,901

The consolidated financial statements on pages 103 to 224 were H103EEF224EMAHUBHRRCHEETTN =
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 Z A=A +hHE#E TRXEFSES -
March 2025 and are signed on its behalf by:

Director Director
EF =
Sze Man Bok Hui Ching Lau
3 1 R

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BEHERSE R

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE-_Z-_NWE+-_A=+—BItEE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company
AATERHAANELS

Share
capital
&
Notes RMB'000
i \R%TT
Balance at 1 January 2024 R-FE-ME-F—H 123,345
Profit for the year FEMH
Currency translation differences ~ SMNEITE =8 26(c)
Total comprehensive income & & @I
Transactions with owners: HREEENX S :

2023 final dividends paid R ZFERABKA 11
2024 interim dividends paid —Z-MERRTHRE 11
Employee share option schemes: B TEE M st 2
- value of employee services -BIRBEE 26
Employee share award schemes: Bt T i {7 52 Bzt &) :
- shares withheld for share - RO EEE AR
award schemes & 1n 26
- share award scheme of a - FRRIKRD EE
subsidiary HE 26
Change in ownership interests in  IHBARIAEHEREE
subsidiaries without change of
control
Liquidation of a subsidiary WEAREE
Total of transactions with HEEENX ZEE
owners
Appropriation to statutory BELERE
reserves 26, 27
Balance at 31 December 2024 W T M
—A=+-H 123,345

Other
reserves

Hitt R
RMB'000
ARETFR

2,880,980

82,954

82,954

(194,886)

(591)

(77,438)

(264,840)

203,545

2,902,639

Retained

earnings

BEkE
RMB'000
ARETR

17,391,515

2,298,535

2,298,535

(797,245)
(797,245)

(1,591,539)

(PIERT L))

17,894,966

RMB'000
ARETR

20,395,840

2,298,535

2,381,489

(797,245)
(797,245)

(1,856,379)

20,920,950

Non-
controlling
interests
FE il
L
RMB'000
ARETR

Total

Lk

234,011

(1,931)

82,954 5,126

3,195

(2,055)
(7,898)

8,075

(194,886)

(591)

2,911

(77,398)

(12,575)

224,631

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR

Total
equity

b
RMB'000
ARETR

20,629,851

2,296,604
88,080

2,384,684

(799,300)
(805,143)

8,075

(194,886)

798

(1,868,954)

21,145,581



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

ADRERRHEARN
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserves earnings Total interests equity
Je vl 1
7% Hi i Bl e BE R BREH
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz ARBTr ARETT ARBTI AR®TT ARBTR AR®TR
Balance at 1 January 2023 R-¥F-=%-8-H 123,345 3,143,018 16,257,244 19,523,607 252,130 19,775,737
Profit for the year FEFE - - 2,800,533 2,800,533 6,871 2,807,404
Currency translation differences 4 ¥ & =58 26(c) - 22,643 - 22,643 (5,261) 17,382
Total comprehensive income & & #Ig - 22,643 2,800,533 2,823,176 1,610 2,824,786
Transactions with owners: BEAENXS:
2022 final dividends paid ST FBRRAHKRE 11 - - (813,485) (813,485) (6,692) (820,177)
2023 interim dividends paid SE-CFRRPHKRE 11 - - (813,485) (813,485 (13,037)  (826,522)
Employee share option schemes: B T 8 A i 5t &)
- value of employee services -BIRBEE 26 - 44,996 - 44,996 - 44,996
Employee share award schemes: Bt T i% {7 82 Bzt
- shares withheld for share - R REE BRI
award schemes & 13 26 - (368,969) - (368,969) - (368,969)
Total of transactions with HAENXSEE
owners - (323,973 (1,626,970) (1,950,943 (19,729)  (1,970,672)
Appropriation to statutory BEEERE
reserves 26, 27 - 39,292 (39,292) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2023 RZ-B-=%
+=HA=+-—H 123,345 2,880,980 17,391,515 20,395,840 234,011 20,629,851

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHRETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_T_MF+_A=+—HILFHE

2024 2023
—E_ME —E_=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREETF T
Cash flows from operating activities EETINHSRE
Profit before income tax B P75 B B AE 2,971,791 3,605,404
Adjustments for: HE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment V% HEREETE

(Note 13) (B &#13) 896,381 808,830
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 14) FREEEZTE (WiF14) 50,830 54,201
Depreciation of investment properties (Note 15) KEHEHWEZTE

(K75115) 8,610 5,967
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) mMEEECEIEWT17) 31,088 30,822
Impairment charges of property, plant and VI - e R ERRE

equipment (Note 13) B EE13) 5,883
Unrealised fair value (gains) losses on derivative REBUTESBMT AEAR

financial instruments (Note 6) BE (W=) B8 0 E6) (366) 15,461
Realised fair value gains on derivative financial ERTESMIEAREE

instruments (Note 6) Wz (K7 7E6) (167,884) (140,711)
(Gains) losses on disposal of property, plant and 47 % « #E R HRE - B

equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use BERGABEELS

assets (Note 6) (M z),&18 (Kt 6) (47,302) 28,399
Share-based compensation expenses (Note 25) R AER SN

(K7 #t25) 8,873 44,996
Fair value losses on financial assets at FVTPL LARnBEEEEHEY
(Note 6) AFAEBRNESRMEEN
NRBEBKRFE N Z6) 161,633 3,301
Gain from disposal of investment in an associate B & 1 2 & W 25 (41 226)

(Note 6) (13,283) -
Reversal of allowance of inventories (Note 19) GEBELE(HZ19) (20,251) (23,387)
Net impairment losses on financial assets cRMEERBEEETR

(Note 7) (Htaz7) 68,006 123,317
Share of results of investments accounted for DIEREREARZKRE

using equity method (376) (699)
Interest income and other finance income FI) B U 5 Be E B 7S M 2 (838,871) (969,897)
Gains from liquidation of a subsidiary (Note 6) b8~ BE B W s (M7 t6) (77.398) (1,564)
Finance costs (Note 8) MBERHZ8) 546,449 635,108

Operating profit before working capital changes &8 & & & B) A &£ & F) )8 3,577,930 4,225,431
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEZOEM, R (402,877) 224,163
Decrease in trade and bills receivables, other FEURBR SR M FE M R 9% - E b
receivables, prepayments and deposits UK~ T IR R R IR & 8 317,181 328,144
Increase (decrease) in trade and bills payables, ERRRRENEE - B4
other payables and accrued charges FER R RTEIRE AN
Rk 2) 311,022 (133,155)
Cash generated from operations LBEBERYHEENRS 3,803,256 4,644,583
Income tax paid B PIEH (730,876) (769,208)
Net cash generated from operating activities BEFEHEEN TR 3,072,380 3,875,375

EXREREEHRAT
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHIRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_ZT-_NF+-ZA=+—HIEFE

2024 2023
—E-QlmE —E_=F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETF T
Cash flows from investing activities BEFHNHER=
Placement of long-term and short-term bank #8000 = B3 K A2 B4R 17 7 B
time deposits (19,267,136) (15,445,481)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, BEME s REE -
intangible assets, construction-in-progress and mEEE TERIEBR
other non-current assets HtIERDEE (1,551,648) (1,469,761)
Acquisition of investments accounted for using SRR EARZEE
the equity method (3,000) (15,500)
Withdrawal of long-term and short-term bank A RH NG ERITE S
time deposits 19,426,993 19,313,510
Interest received B4 F B 913,365 1,114,393
Proceeds on disposal of derivative financial EEMESBTA
instruments 152,232 109,089
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - RS R
equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use BEEERCERAEEE
assets 140,363 28,417
Refund (purchase) of land use rights BE Lt AEReRES
(2A) 40,204 (50,745)
Proceeds on disposal of investments accounted  HEREREAREZIRE
for using the equity method 38,364 -
Net cash (used in) generated from investing BEESELE(FAN)KF
activities e (110,263) 3,583,922
Cash flows from financing activities MEEHNHEERE
Repayment of borrowings EEER (27,117,555) (22,782,874)
Dividends paid TAKE (1,594,490) (1,626,970)
Interest paid = FLE (518,062) (650,163)
Payments for share award schemes & 17 22 B &+ 21 A $0 A% 19 (205,460) (358,395)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEEHEARE (17,406) (20,389)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests MALBBREINHEE (10,876) (15,495)
Interest paid for lease liabilities HEBEMEXH (1,169) (1,496
Transaction with non-controlling interests HOPRERERR S (1,100) -
Proceeds from borrowings CE IR E 25,874,109 19,904,948
Cash inflow arising from liquidation of a &~ FEERIEA
subsidiary 1,564
Decrease in restricted bank deposits BB R H R 1T 17 3K 2
Net cash used in financing activities METHEANFRS (3.592,009) (5,549,268)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ¥4 RIEESZEY
F CRA), /18 N (629,892) 1,910,029
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January —A—RZBR2RRSZEY 8,021,756 6,088,603
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEREH & 54,051 23,124
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December +ZA=Z=+—BZ2HR&k
REEED 7,445,915 8,021,756
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hengan International Group Company Limited (the “Company” or
“YEZEE") and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the manufacturing, distribution and sale of
personal hygiene products in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and certain overseas markets.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box
309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) since December 1998.

These consolidated financial statements were presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements were approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2025.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period beginning
on 1 January 2024 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and

B O B SRR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mM&E+-_A=+-BILEE

—REH
EZEREEARAF(AAT]) REKWEA
A(ARIAEEDEBERPEARAME ([F
1)) RELHINTIHRE  HEANEEEAL
R

RARRIR—RERSHETMR I BEREL
A A e st AP.O. Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands °

R—NAANFE+ AR RRBNRNDESRE
BMaXZmBERAB(BRM]) £H -

BRBRAIN  RAHTBERAARKZS -

AEHMBEBREAEKE—_FT-_AF=A=-tH
B A T8 o

HMERMBREENNREZER

AEBECEMERTERE2ENRERE
H
AREBRAFEEAERELSSHAES (R
BEHMAE ) MBHHNEEM B REELN
ATERT 2 S ETHASBRES VKR
KE-ZET-_NF—A—HARBREMN:

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

Leaseback

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

Supplier Finance Arrangements

B SRE 2R HERERARZ
ESIHACCHD) HEAE
BB G EREIR BEESEARE K
(&57) ErBREERE
FERIMAAEET
(20204F)
BEAGEEAFEIR Pt 5 2255 0 IE T B
(&%7) 8&
BRESFEAFEITRE HERRERH
BV RS
FE79% (BET)
EREREEERAT

T -FEFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& i & 5 8 R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2024

S

2.

—E_NF+_A=Z+—HIEEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation
5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments to
HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
“2022 Amendments”)

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year. The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and
additional guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement
for at least twelve months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or non-current, which:

e gspecify that the classification of liabilities as current or
non-current should be based on rights that are in existence
at the end of the reporting period. Specifically, the
classification should not be affected by management
intentions or expectations to settle the liability within 12
months.

e clarify that the settlement of a liability can be a transfer of cash,
goods or services, or the entity’s own equity instruments to
the counterparty. If a liability has terms that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the
transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do
not affect its classification as current or non-current only if the
entity recognises the option separately as an equity
instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continueq)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation
5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments to
HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
“2022 Amendments”) (Continued)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the 2022 Amendments specifically clarify that only
covenants that an entity is required to comply with on or before
the end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date, even if compliance with the covenant is assessed
only after the reporting date. The 2022 Amendments also specify
that covenants with which an entity must comply after the
reporting date (i.e. future covenants) do not affect the
classification of a liability as current or non-current at the
reporting date. However, if the entity’s right to defer settlement of
a liability is subject to the entity complying with covenants within
twelve months after the reporting period, an entity discloses
information that enables users of financial statements to
understand the risk of the liabilities becoming repayable within
twelve months after the reporting period. This would include
information about the covenants, the carrying amount of related
liabilities and facts and circumstances, if any, that indicate that the
entity may have difficulties complying with the covenants.

In accordance with the transition provision, the Group has applied
the new accounting policy to the classification of liability as
current or non-current retrospectively. The application of the
amendments in the current year had no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

& i M 5 8 R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR E

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and Amendments to the Classification

HKFRS 7 and Measurement of Financial
Instruments®
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and Contracts Referencing Nature-
HKFRS 7 dependent Electricity®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets

HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture'
Amendments to HKFRS Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Accounting Standards Accounting Standards —
Volume 118
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?
HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in

Financial Statements*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027.

Except for the new HKFRS mentioned below, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of all other amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements,
which sets out requirements on presentation and disclosures in
financial statements, will replace HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements. This new HKFRS Accounting Standard, while carrying
forward many of the requirements in HKAS 1, introduces new
requirements to present specified categories and defined subtotals
in the statement of profit or loss; provide disclosures on
management-defined performance measures in the notes to the
financial statements and improve aggregation and disaggregation
of information to be disclosed in the financial statements. In
addition, some HKAS 1 paragraphs have been moved to HKAS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
and HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures. Minor
amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and HKAS 33
Earnings per Share are also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with
early application permitted. The application of the new standard is
expected to affect the presentation of the statement of profit or
loss and disclosures in the future financial statements. The Group
is in the process of assessing the detailed impact of HKFRS 18
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

& i M 5 8 R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of approving
the consolidated financial statements, a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of

accounting in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.
Material accounting policies information

Property, plant and equipment and
construction-in-progress

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.

impairment

Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings and
machineries under construction or pending installation and is
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes the costs of construction and acquisition and
capitalised borrowing costs. No depreciation is made on CIP
until such time as the relevant assets are completed and
ready for their intended use. When the assets concerned are
available for use, the costs are transferred to property, plant
and equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy
as stated below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e FTMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. € BRNGEREEREES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ARERE(E
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (Continued) 32 EESTTHEREE)

Property, plant and equipment and

construction-in-progress (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 20 years

Machinery 10-20 years

Office equipment, furniture 5 years
and fixtures

Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised within
“other income and other gains — net” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. 6B BERNGREEREES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL AHEBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policies information (Continued)
Intangible assets

Gooawill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU
containing the goodwill is compared to the recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair value
less costs to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Financial assets

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through OCI or through profit or loss), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s business model for

managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of
the cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e FTMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. € BRNGEREEREES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ARERE(E
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (Continued) 32 EESTTHEREE)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policies information (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the
cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments as financial assets measured at amortised
cost, financial assets measured subsequently at fair value
through OCI, and financial assets measured subsequently at
fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition, including the foreign exchange gains
and losses arises, is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Financial assets measured at FVTPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL s
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains (losses) in the period in which it arises.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. € B BEANGREEREESD
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL TTRERBE (&
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (Continued)
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Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost and FVTOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade and bills and other receivables, the Group
measures the loss allowance equal to 12-month expected
credit losses, unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime expected credit losses.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade, bills and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and bills receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade, bills and
other receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policies information (Continued)

Revenue recognition

The Group manufactures and sells a range of personal
hygiene products including sanitary napkin products,
disposable diaper products and tissue paper products in the
market. Sales are recognised when control of the products
has transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
customer, the customer has full discretion over the channel
and price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products. Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the customer, and either
the customer has accepted the products in accordance with
the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or
the Group has objective evidence that all
acceptance have been satisfied.

criteria for

The personal hygiene products are often sold with
retrospective sales rebates based on aggregate sales over a
period. Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the
price specified in the contract, net of the estimated discounts
and sales rebates. Accumulated experience
estimate and provide for the discounts, and revenue is only
recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal will not occur. A refund liability (included in
other payables and accrued charges) is recognised for
expected discounts payable to customers in relation to sales.
No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are
made with a credit term of 30- 90 days, which is consistent
with market practice.

is used to

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered and
the customers has inspected and accepted the products as
this is the point
unconditional because only the passage of time is required
before the payment is due.

in time that the consideration is
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. € B BEANGREEREESD
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL TTRERBE (&
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (Continued)
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group’s obligations to provide a refund for faulty
products are under the standard warranty terms.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate such returns at
the time of sale. Because of the large size and low value of
each individual product, the amount of products returned
were immaterial. It is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.
Therefore, no refund liability for goods return was recognised.
The validity of this assumption and the estimated amount of
returns are reassessed at each reporting date.

For certain payments to customers for promotion activities,
the Group did not receive a distinct good or service to
customers and therefore recorded as a deduction of sales
price.

The Group does not expect to have any contract containing
financing components. As a consequence, the Group does
not adjust any of the transition prices for the time value of
money.

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
subsidiaries

Subsidliaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

WA TR (E)
$%lﬁ§&ﬁ§%ﬁwmﬁm§ﬁ%ﬁ

CAREENHERERREBENKERML
nJFﬁEEJL cHEMBEANRERERE
BE HERESEUTER - BEBARBEW
ﬁZiK%@ﬁKT erNEESE - Bt
MERREHERERNERE - AEERZ ]
SEERHENF AL ERER AR RERK
By (5t £ 78 o

MERBBRATFEHAE T HRMm
$%Eﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%h%m%%mﬁ%
% B SIEE EHIR o

AEET I EHEEETMEERMEKD N
BH-E - AREYEREBRKHEEE
HELTMXHER -

BOFRERAIR 2B %

oy

3PN Th$ﬁlﬁﬁiﬁTﬂ%m%ﬁ
TR(EREBLETIR EXAKEK2HE
ZEIBMmMAZEAZEDRNERKEHRTE

RS AHENEBEHZIEN
EAZENERHRE  AEBEAZEGZE
B-MERARERHEBBEEAEEZA
EEHARK MEAREESERLZA
LA HARK-

SEARAZANRS BHREXZHKR
BEMNETAEE RERERTTUY
HOBREXZERHEMEREENRES
FE-MBARBENBBECRFEFLN
B AREREARERANBETE B -

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& 1 B 75 8 37 Bt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (Continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
subsidiaries (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of change in
equity and consolidated statement of financial position
respectively.

Associates and Joint Ventures

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This is
generally the case where the Group holds between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.

Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint ventures. The
classification depends on the contractual rights and
obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure of
the joint arrangement. The Group has only one joint venture
as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2024. The joint
venture is accounted for using the equity method of
accounting.

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or
losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share
of movements in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) of the
investee in OCI. Dividends received or receivable from
associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction
in the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other
entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (Continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
subsidiaries (Continued)

Associates and Joint Ventures (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates/joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there
is any objective evidence that the investments in associates/
a joint venture are impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associates/a joint
venture and their carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to ‘Share of results of investments accounted for
using the equity method’ in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners
of the acquiree, the equity interests issued by the Group, fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement and fair value of any pre-existing
equity interest in the subsidiary. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. 6B BERNGREEREES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL AHEBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (Continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
subsidiaries (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement basis
is required by HKFRSs.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’'s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value, with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (Continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
subsidiaries (Continued)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in OCI in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in OCI are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policies information (Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Executives Directors who make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The functional currency of the
Company is HK$ and the functional currency of the majority
of the Group’s companies is RMB. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

into the

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss within “finance
income” and “finance costs”, where applicable. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss within “other income
and other gains — net”.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. € B BEANGREEREESD
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL TTRERBE (&
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (Continued)
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Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(1) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(2) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the
rates on the dates of the transactions); and

(8) all resulting currency translation differences are recognised
in OCI.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
Group. It also includes properties that are being constructed
or developed for future use as investment properties.
Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
recognised so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policies information (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An item of investment properties is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits is expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Impairment of investments in non-financial assets
Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and is tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (CGUs).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument. There are no derivatives
designated as a hedging instrument for the Group.

Derivatives of the Group are categorised as financial assets/
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and the changes
in fair value are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss under “other income and other gains — net” in
the year in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e FTMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. € BRNGEREEREES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ARERE(E
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (Continued) 32 EESTTHEREE)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
share capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of
income taxes), is deducted from equity attributable to the
Company’s shareholders until the shares are cancelled.

Trade and bills payables

Trade and bills payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade and bills payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade and bills payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policies information (Continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs), and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facilities will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition,
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial

construction or production of qualifying

period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. € BRNGEREEREES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ARERE(E
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (Continued) 32 EESTTHEREE)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance charges
and exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs. The exchange gains and losses
that are an adjustment to interest costs include the interest
rate differential between borrowing costs that would be
incurred if the entity had borrowed funds in its functional
currency, and the borrowing costs actually incurred on
foreign currency borrowings. Such amounts are estimated
based on interest rates on similar borrowings in the entity’s
functional currency.

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes more
than one accounting period, the amount of foreign exchange
differences eligible for capitalisation is determined on a
cumulative basis based on the cumulative amounts of interest
expenses that would have been incurred had the entity
borrowed in its functional currency. The total amount of
foreign exchange differences capitalised cannot exceed the
amount of total net foreign exchange differences incurred on
a cumulative basis at the end of the reporting period.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policies information (Continued)
Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether it
is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either
based on the most likely amount or the expected value,
depending on which method provides a better prediction of
the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. € BRNGEREEREES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ARERE(E
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (Continued) 32 EESTTHEREE)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries
only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefits

The Group’s companies in Mainland China participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes administered by local
governments in different locations of the PRC (the “Central
Schemes”). The Group’s companies and the employees in
Mainland China are required to make cash contributions
calculated at certain percentages of the employees’ basic
salaries to the Central Schemes.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policies information (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefits (Continued)

The Group also operates the mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for its Hong Kong staff. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement benefit
scheme administered by independent trustees. Each of the
employer and the employee has to contribute an amount
equal to 5% of the relevant income of the employee to the
MPF Scheme, subject to a cap of HK$1,500, equivalent to
RMB1,352 per month. Contributions from the employer are
vested in the employees as soon as they are paid to relevant
MPF Scheme but all benefits derived from the mandatory
contributions must be preserved until the employee reaches
the retirement age of 65 subject to a few exceptions.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred. The Group has
no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been made.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates equity-settled employee share option
schemes and employee share award schemes. The fair value
of the employee services received in exchange for the grant
of the options to purchase shares of the Company is
recognised as an expenses. The total amount to be
expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact
of any non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability
and sales growth targets).

Non-market performance and service vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing vesting conditions and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. € BRNGEREEREES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ARERE(E
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (Continued) 32 EESTTHEREE)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium account.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may
be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company, excluding any costs
of servicing equity other than ordinary shares by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year and excluding shares withheld for share award
scheme.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policies information (Continued)
Earnings per share (Continued)

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account the weighted average number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as part of other
income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is
earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes.

Government grants

Grants from government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that they
are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant
and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. € BRNGEREEREES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ARERE(E
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (Continued) 32 EESTTHEREE)

Intangible assets

Trademarks and licences

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are shown at
historical cost. Trademarks and licences acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Trademarks and licences have a finite useful
life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of trademarks and
licences over their estimated useful lives not exceeding 20
years.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They have
a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the expected life of the
customer relationship not exceeding 10 years.

Computer software

Computer software represent purchased software and are
amortised over their estimated useful lives, which do not
exceed 10 years.

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

The Group leases various offices, warehouses and vehicles.
Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods but may
have extension options. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants, and leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policies information (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period. The right-of-use assets are depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments.

e Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

e Variable lease payments that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

e Amounts expected to be payable by the group under
residual value guarantees;

e The exercise price of a purchase option if the group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the group exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar
economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. € B BEANGREEREESD
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL THEBE(E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (Continued)

32 EEEFBERRBEE)

Leases (Continued)
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

e Any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received;

e  Any initial direct costs; and
e  Restoration cost.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated lease period.

All land in the PRC is state-owned and no individual land
ownership right exists. The Group acquired the right to use
certain land. The premiums paid for such right are treated as
prepayment for operating lease and recorded at cost as
right-of-use assets, which are depreciated over the lease
periods using the straight-line method.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less without a purchase option.
Low-value assets comprise small items of office furniture.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property leases across the Group. These terms are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing
contracts. The majority of extension and termination options
held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. 4B B RN GHEXERTES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL FRERE(E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (Continued) 32 EESSTHERE(E)

Leases (Continued)

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on
their nature.

Research and development

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (related to
the design and testing of new or improved products) are
recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are
fulfilled:

(i) it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use;

(i) management intends to complete the intangible asset and
use it;

(iii) there is an ability to use the intangible asset;

(iv) it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

(v) adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use the intangible
asset are available; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during
its development can be reliably measured.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. &M EBRRNGREEREES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL AHEREE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policies information (Continued) 32 EESTTHEREE)
Research and development (Continued) HFEafg % (&)
Other development expenditures that do not meet these NFREE A LG B 3 W E AR
criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred. BRRER UNIRRRBANMERSR
Development costs previously recognised as an expense are TEERARHEBERAEE BRAENK
not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period. BEEMBERKAZRGHTERFIHCHE
Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible BARF)EE-

assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use on a straight-line basis over its useful life, not
exceeding five years.

Dividend distribution B 7 5 B
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is M 2N A B A% 3R 9 i 89 A% ) 7 A% ) & AR A &)
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s EEYRBEENMENTHEANAEER
financial statements in the year in which the dividends are RARBHTBHREANTBEE-
approved by the Company’s Directors or shareholders, when
appropriate.
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 FABETHATRAEK
JUDGMENTS
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based HEr A ET SR FET G - WIREBT LR
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations EMmEEZETHE REEEEABRATHEER
of future events that may have a financial impact on the Group HAREHNESIETEA -

and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the REBEBRRELETAREZ - IS
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, FMEER RIGHEERAERER -RX
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and HeEY THEFRFENEENBENREE
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material EHERFENGANBERNRET

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& 1 B 75 8 37 Bt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

Current tax and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC and certain
overseas countries. Significant judgement is
determining the provision for income taxes. There are some
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

required in

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined using tax
rates that are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax assets are realised or the deferred
liabilities are settled. The expected applicable tax
determined based on the enacted tax laws and regulations and
the actual situation of the Group. The management of the Group
will revise the expectation where the intending tax rate is different
from the original expectation.

income tax
rate is

Assessment of impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment. The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined
based on value-in-use calculations prepared on the basis of
management’s assumptions and estimates. These calculations
require the use of estimates.

Expected credit losses for trade, bills and other
receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for impairment
of trade, bills and other receivables based on the expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables. The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Management
reassesses the provision at each balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified as the
Executive Directors. The Executive Directors review the Group’s
internal reports in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Management has determined the operating segments
based on the internal reports provided for review by the Executive
Directors.

The Executive Directors consider the performance of the Group
from a product perspective. The Executive Directors assess the
performance of the operating segments based on a measure of
segment profit (loss) without allocation of other income and other
gains — net, finance income (costs), income tax expense and
share of results of investments accounted for using the equity
method which is consistent with that in the consolidated financial
statements.

Operations are mainly organised under the segment of the
Group’s manufacturing, distribution and sale of personal hygiene
products including sanitary napkin products, disposable diaper
products and tissue paper products.

Sales between segments are carried out at terms mutually agreed
amongst these business segments. Revenue from external parties
reported to the Executive Directors are measured in a manner
consistent with that in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Revenues from sales of goods recognised during the year
are as follows:

5

& i M 5 8 R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+—HILFE

BWARDEHEH

HREGERRERBERNTES - NITES
BRAEEALRENTERBNSEER -
EREEBCRCRBLSNTEENHREEE

LEHE -

ﬁﬁ%$%§ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%@¥% WITES

R aR ey RIS 0 BEAEL G - BEX D
a%ﬁ’:‘éﬁﬁﬂ%iﬁi‘%iE’JE@H&U\%D%‘J@ - F
BBk (BER) FEHRERZARM
Db EREARZIRE TR (BE) 0 -

AEBITEEBNALERDHEMEESEAAS
ERM BEEEN S —IRIEMERE RN -

DEHEEEOEETER —BNANEXT
17° Fﬂ%ﬂﬁ%%i&%%E&I\?‘%E’\JH&U\E’\J#EE
FEAHFMBRNFETE B AFEIIER
ZEGRAMT

EAEE MR
-maEm

Personal hygiene products
— Sanitary napkin products
— Disposable diaper products
— Tissue paper products
Others

-HMER
H Al

— IR PR

2024 2023
—E-ME —E =5
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETTT
5,677,965 6,178,438
1,260,631 1,254,070
13,422,445 13,748,172
2,308,174 2,587,256
22,669,215 23,767,936

Most of the Group companies are domiciled in PRC. The revenue
from external customers in PRC accounted for more than 90% of
the Group’s total revenue.

SEEFZNXBESTE - H#Bi890%H UK E
TEMIEES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5, WARDEER (Z)

(Continued)

The total non-current assets (other than deferred income tax RZZE-_WNF+_R=+—8 R FBEKE
assets and long-term bank time deposit) located in Mainland WIERBDEELE(TREREMEHREEN
China amounted to RMB10,801,047,000 as at 31 December 2024 R HR1TE BIF ) B A K #10,801,047,0007T
(2023: RMB10,430,246,000) and the total non-current assets (ZZ2==% : AR¥10,430,246,0007T) * i fiz
located in other places amounted to RMB941,385,000 (2023: REMENLFFERDEELBARARE
RMB1,039,070,000). 941,385,000t ( = & = = F: A R ¥

1,039,070,0007T) °

During the year ended 31 December 2024, there was no single %Zi_ E_MFF+—A=+—RHLFE LB
customer generated more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue BN EPL REEEREI0%HIA LB E
(2023: None). BN (ZTEZ=F 8|,) o

The amounts provided to the Executive Directors with respect to MATESREEEREENREBENSE
total assets and liabilities are measured in a manner consistent = Rﬁfﬁié\fﬁﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁf@mﬁ_ﬁﬁ% o It
with that of the consolidated financial statements. These assets SEEHRBEREBEIANKLE D

and liabilities are allocated based on the operations of the

segment.

Additions to non-current assets comprise additions to property, BEARAMEBEE - s REE (13 &+
plant and equipment (Note 13), right-of-use assets (Note 14), AEEEME14) BHEMEREMmE (M E15)
investment properties (Note 15), construction-in-progress (Note T T2 (K E16) R &R & E (B 5E17) BOR
16) and intangible assets (Note 17). =i

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses. Unallocated ANBERAEEEEEHRAZT KROREEE
assets comprise corporate assets. Unallocated liabilities comprise THRRBEE AOEAGEBERBERE-

corporate liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_mM&+-_A=+—HBLFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDEER (&)
(Continued)
The segment information provided to the Executive Directors for MATEFREEERSG Y LN BER W
the reportable segments is as follows: ™~
2024
—®¥-lmE
Sanitary  Disposable Tissue
Napkins diapers paper
products products products Others Group
— R
HEMER HKREER HhER Hit 8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETR ARETRT ARE%TR ARETR
Segment revenue 2 EUAA 5,858,757 1,442,567 14,054,200 3,461,441 24,816,965
Inter-segment sales DHEMEHEE (180,792) (181,936) (631,755)  (1,153,267)  (2,147,750)
5,677,965 1,260,631 13,422,445 2,308,174 22,669,215
Segment profit (loss) o ERE(EX) 2,016,696 267,380 (244,681) 132,480 2,171,875
Unallocated costs KA KA (25,170)
Other income and H i g ARVFI1S
other gains — net - 538 1,207,886
Operating profit KRR 3,354,591
Finance income B 75 U 180,399
Finance costs MBER (563,575)
Share of results of investments DIEEEREANEREZ
accounted for using the A Wz
equity method 376
Profit before tax W P15 85 A1 718 2,971,791
Income tax expense MBHER (675,187)
Profit for the year FEFH 2,296,604
Non-controlling interests FEEHI R 1,931

Profit attributable to shareholders of N2 A4 H AEL

the Company FH 2,298,535
Other items for the year ended HIEE - =
31 December 2024 —E®-ME+ZA
=+—-HiLEEE
Additions to non-current assets FETRENE E ML N 311,904 359,434 887,937 129,711 1,688,986

ME BHEREBR
REMEHEZ

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment and investment

properties FEMAX 151,023 50,082 617,438 86,448 904,991
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FABEEZMERS 10,871 5,025 24,221 10,713 50,830
Amortisation charge of intangible EREEZHE

assets 24,431 6,652 31,088

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE_Z-_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment assets DEEE

Deferred tax assets RIEFTEHEE

Tax recoverable BHEBREH

Investments accounted for using the RIEFEARZIKE

equity method

Financial assets at FVTPL NRREEFER
HEEHHFAZH
BENEREE

Long-term time deposits REEBHER

Cash and bank balances HEMBTES

Unallocated assets RAOBEE

Total assets BEE

Segment liabilities DEEE

Deferred tax liabilities EEMBHAE

Tax liabilities EHMEHAR

Borrowings EE

Unallocated liabilities AAEBE

Total liabilities waE

Annual Report 2024
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Sanitary

Napkins
products

HEMESR
RMB’000
ARBTR

4,114,100

943,999

Disposable
diapers
products

— Rt

# PR 18 7 &
RMB’000
ARBTR

1,370,479

270,829

5. WARZEEHR (&)

2024
—EC-MmE
Tissue
paper
products Others Group
HrhE SR
RMB’'000
ARBTR

Hit %8
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR

12,449,072 2,195,528 20,129,179

491,777
7,473

34,678

61,149
4,630,685
14,261,723
187,747

39,804,411

3,033,196 951,067 5,199,091

153,227
162,778
13,089,848
53,886

18,658,830




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

The segment information provided to the Executive Directors for
the reportable segments is as follows:

& {7t B 5 i R} B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

5. WARZEEHR ()

MPTESREBEEFARS SN MBER M
T

2023
—E-=F
Sanitary Disposable Tissue
Napkins diapers paper
products products products Others Group
— R
FEMER HEREEMD HMER Hith £ H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
Segment revenue o E A 6,386,582 1,316,905 14,074,820 3,426,785 25,205,092
Inter-segment sales DEEEEHEE (208,144) (62,835) (326,648) (839,529) (1,437,156)
6,178,438 1,254,070 13,748,172 2,587,256 23,767,936
Segment profit S EME 2,317,022 194,302 243,739 129,601 2,884,664
Unallocated costs ROERAE (66,180)
Other income and other gains H i g AFFIS
- net - FE 1,159,447
Operating profit KRR 3,977,931
Finance income B 75 U 273,351
Finance costs MBER (646,577)
Share of results of investments DIEEEREARZ
accounted for using the A Wz
equity method 699
Profit before tax W BT 15 % 31 7B 3,605,404
Income tax expense TS & A (798,000)
Profit for the year FEFE 2,807,404
Non-controlling interests FEPE I R (6,871)
Profit attributable to shareholders of AN R B 1A A FE(S
the Company FH 2,800,533
Other items for the year ended HHIEH - BE
31 December 2023 —E-=%+Z-A
=E+—HLEFEE
Additions to non-current assets FETMENE E ML N 287,027 89,111 1,333,481 134,269 1,843,888
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #% - # 22 3% & I
equipment and investment HEURMEZ
properties TERL 159,359 49,050 545,520 60,868 814,797
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EFEEE 2 MER X 12,051 5,820 25,721 10,609 54,201
Amortisation charge of intangible BYEE B
assets 24,143 2 26 6,651 30,822
EXREREEHRAT
ZECNEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

5. WARZEER (&

(Continued)
2023
—ET-o=F
Sanitary Disposable Tissue
Napkins diapers paper
products products products Others Group
— R
BMENER HKRBEEM HHEM Hith £
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTIT ARETRT AREFTT AREBTR
Segment assets DHEE 4,297,173 1,086,481 12,384,739 1,862,643 19,631,036
Deferred tax assets BEEMBHEE 498,460
Tax recoverable BHEBRMREH 10,915
Investments accounted for using the KEZ EAKR 2 HE
equity method 56,854
Financial assets at FVTPL NRAR{EEFER
HEHFH AEHER
NemEE 212,370
Long-term time deposits RETEHTER 1,438,163
Cash and bank balances BeMBTER 18,189,943
Unallocated assets RAOBEE 178,160
Total assets BEE 40,215,901
Segment liabilities DA E 929,902 269,567 3,287,919 372,125 4,859,513
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFEHEE 182,386
Tax liabilities EHAEHAR 199,438
Borrowings R 14,237,625
Unallocated liabilities AAEARE 107,088
Total liabilities BaE 19,586,050
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5, RARDEER (&
(Continued)
(a) Liabilities related to contracts with customers (a) REFEHNEBRNEAERE
The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to AEEERRAATHEPEAEENEE

contracts with customers:

As at 31 December

®R+=-ZA=+—H
2024 2023
—ElE —=E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETFIT
Contract liabilities aEHBaE
Sanitary napkins products HEMEM 136,445 139,421
Disposable diapers products —RMEIREE @ 32,226 30,844
Tissue paper products 4 E 336,901 324,484
Others Hth 37,661 45,527
Total contract liabilities BENBE 543,233 540,276
The following table shows how much of the revenue TRINTFREEEAREFEMEREAD R
recognised in the current reporting period related to F—FEEMNNAESNBEABN RS
carried-forward contract liabilities from prior year. Gk i
2024 2023
—E-ME —ET-=
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETF T
Sanitary napkins products BHEDER 139,421 123,526
Disposable diapers products — IRV REE @ 30,844 26,108
Tissue paper products 4R E M 324,484 257,946
Others H 45,527 46,161

540,276 453,741

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

6. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS - NET 6. HtWWAMAIF - F&E

2024 2023
—E-NE —EC-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR T

Income from long-term and short-term time ~ K EJER G HHIR 1T E HITF X

deposits F 2 WA 658,472 696,546
Government grants income (Note) BT S B U A (7 22) 464,560 549,621
Realised fair value gains on derivative BEERTESRMIAAAEE

financial instruments M1 167,884 140,711
Gains from liquidation of subsidiaries M B8R aEE W 77,398 1,564
Gains (losses) on disposal of property, W M RE BREE

plant and equipment, intangible assets REAEEER SRS

and right-of-use assets (BX) 47,302 (28,399)
Gain from disposal of investment in an HEBEDERE

associate 13,283 -
Unrealised fair value gains (losses) on REBRTESRTIAEAREE

derivative financial instruments Wz (B K) 366 (15,461)

Fair value losses on financial assets at FVTPL AR BETE L HE&H)

FAEHBENEREEN

NRBEEXEX (161,633) (3,301)
Exchange losses from operating EEENIBL - FE
activities — net (CEALL)) (184,325)
Others HAh 38,403 2,491
1,207,886 1,159,447
Note: Lol
These represented government grants received from certain municipal ULIE B RS B B KRS 5 T BUT &S 1 52
governments of Mainland China as an encouragement of the Group’s B ASEBEESEHSBEERFLER -

contributions to the development of the local economy.

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2024



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B f M 75 8 R Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

7. EXPENSES BY NATURE 7. BEBESENER
Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and distribution ERABREHEENRSN HEERSHKA TTHE
costs, administrative expenses and net impairment losses on AMemEERBBL DO T

financial assets were analysed as follows:

2024 2023
—EB-UE —E-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETF T
Raw materials and consumables used 8 R M ¥ K 7E m 12,530,477 13,437,648
Employee benefit expense, including Directors’ E TR A (BIFEZEBS)
emoluments (Note) (Note 12) (K1 5E) (B iE12) 2,418,881 2,253,995
Transportation and loading expenses B kRHER 1,183,640 1,156,571
Marketing and advertising expenses %5 R B 1,157,578 1,100,647
Utilities and various office expenses PNABEERWLAEEH 1,031,653 990,824
Depreciation of property, plant and M HBEREENTE
equipment (Note 13) (Btat13) 896,381 808,830
Repairs and maintenance expenses HERREER 212,726 180,377
Research and development expenses o 209,638 339,836
Travelling expenses =IRE 159,940 154,584
Net impairment losses on financial assets TRIEERBEERBTIR 68,006 123,317
Tax surcharges i@ K b 106,846 101,080
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 14) (& REEEHE (K:714) 50,830 54,201
Expenses of short-term leases and low value REHEREEEHEERX
assets (Note 14) (Hfat14) 42,594 49,412
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) BIZERE S (W T17) 31,088 30,822
Impairment charge on property, plant and W EBERREREES
equipment (Note 13) (Bt#13) = 5,883
Reversal of allowance of inventories (Note 19) 17 & B8 & @ (f1:719) (20,251) (23,387)
Changes in inventories of finished goods B mNTFEZS 7,811 (241,504)
Auditor’s remuneration % 81 6 BN &
- Audit services - ZEREE A 4,400 5,900
- Non-audit services - RERBEER 3,115 2,218
Others HAh 427,157 418,198
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution HERA ~ HEE R D SRR
costs, administrative expenses and net THEALREMEERE
impairment losses on financial assets EHTIRER 20,522,510 20,949,452
Note: Kt -
An amount of RMB1,088,036,000 (2023: RMB984,602,000) has been A R #1,088,036,000 (= T — = F: A R ¥
capitalised in inventories. 984,602,0007T) EE XL BIFE -

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& 1 B 75 3R =7 B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024

S

8. FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS

—E_NF+_A=Z+—HIEEFE

Finance costs: WBER:
Interest expense MEEA
- Borrowings - &
- Lease liabilities -MHEBR®E
Other finance charges H b BF 75 B A
Exchange loss [ 518 K
Total finance costs incurred EEXzHBBERBE
Less: Finance costs capitalised in buildings 8 : EA&{b{EAERZ T2S
and machinery under construction-in- BFRaEERE
progress (Note 16) WIEER(Mit16)
Finance income: [

Interest income from cash and
cash equivalents
Exchange gain

RERAFEDH KA

BEE 3 U

Finance costs, net

MBER-F8

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the capitalisation rate
applied to funds borrowed generally and used for the
development of construction-in-progress was 2.82%

2.83%) per annum.

Annual Report 2024

(2023:
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8. MBUERMKER

2024
i a1 - 2

RMB’000
ARETR

2023

RMB’000
ARBFIT

477,942
1,169
17,126
71,622

648,597
1,496
11,469

567,859

(4,284)

661,562

(14,985)

563,575

646,577

(180,399)

(272,469)
(882)

(180,399)

(273,351)

383,176

373,226

HE-_Z-_NF+-_A=+—HILFE #—
BEFSKRTBIEMBEEERIRZESHAZ
BRI R A2.82% (=T =

=% :283%) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e FTMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9.
The amount of income tax expense charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represents:

FieBER
EEGRBERIHZAEHEBAMT :

2024 2023
—ET_-mE —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETF T
Current income tax EHMEH

— Current tax on profits for the year -EHMEHRER 570,414 644,021
- PRC withholding income tax - PERTIRARER 127,244 87,314

Deferred income — Tax (credit) charge to EEFERBK(ER),FHA
profit or loss (Note 29) FE R (#£29) (22,471) 66,665
Income tax expense Fris i & A 675,187 798,000

(@)

Taxation on Mainland China income has been calculated on
the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in Mainland China in which the Group’s
subsidiaries operate. The Company’s subsidiaries
incorporated in Mainland China are subject to Corporate
Income Tax at the rate of 25%.

Certain subsidiaries were approved to be new and
high-technology enterprises and are entitled to the tax rate of
15%.

Hong Kong and overseas profits tax has been calculated at
the rates of taxation prevailing in the regions in which the
Group operates respectively.

The profits of Mainland China subsidiaries of the Group derived
since 1 January 2008 are subject to withholding tax at a rate
of 5% upon distribution of such profits to investors in Hong
Kong, or at a rate of 10% for other foreign investors.
Deferred tax liabilities have been provided for in this regard
based on the expected dividends to be distributed from the
Group’s Mainland China subsidiaries in the foreseeable future
in respect of the profits generated since 1 January 2008.

(a)

o B K B P15 75 B 4R PR AN 5 [ o B KB B
BRARZMEFERRAFNBARE B EITH
K HE - ARAREPBEAERARYL ZH
JBRARRR25% > H REFFFH

MOMBAREEXRSRFRMER A
PR T EAB% BT

BEMESINEMEiENFIFHRCIRRASF
JE 14 AT B SR TR B AR B 3 B 1T B R AR
i o

AEENPEAEMNBARA —TTNF
—A—HEENNE BERREBEZIMAK
UWREEDKZENE - BAEE%H X
BMINEH  EREMINEIREE D IRZ
EFE - BIZEIZ10%T KM - R
A 38 5,22 8 Ik 3 AN 5% 1B ) KB B /B A )
“EENF-A-HRZMEBRBHRE
EEMELRECEHREBEORE -

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& i & 5 8 R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2024

S

9.

—E_NF+_A=Z+—HIEEFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(d) The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rates

9. RIEHRERE)

(d AREREHAAMNBNHE BRAKHE
MR BRI 2 58 R0 B R i A A R

applicable to profits of the Group’s companies as follows: BERBEoEZ80T
2024 2023
—E-mF ZEZ=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
Profit before tax %R P15 B3 A1 A1 2,971,791 3,605,404
Tax calculated at average income tax rates i & I& F ¥ H RK21. 2%+ &
of 21.2% (2023: 21.7%) (Note) (ZEZ=F:21.7%)
(&) 630,454 782,447
Tax exemption and concession on the WBARIFMESHESR
profits of certain subsidiaries (117,858) (141,275)
Expenses not deductible for income tax A HHIER
purposes 34,390 31,398
Withholding tax on distributed profit and B 3R 2 oK PE AR FDE 78 T 2 A
unremitted earmnings BITEIRFTIS L 108,461 115,134
Others H A 19,740 10,296
Income tax expense FIsiie s 675,187 798,000

Note:

The average income tax rates for the years ended 31 December

2024 and 2023 represent the weighted average tax rate of the

operations in different jurisdictions on the basis of the relative

amounts of profit before taxation and the relevant statutory

rates.

(e) There is no tax charge relating to components of OCI.

(f)  The Group is operating in certain jurisdictions where the Pillar
Two Rules are enacted but not effective. However, as the
Group’s estimated effective tax rates of all the jurisdictions in
which the Group operates are higher than 15%, after taking
into account the adjustments under the Pillar Two Rules
based on management’s best estimate, the management of
the Group has not made relevant disclosures of qualitative
and quantitative information about the Group’s exposure to

the Pillar Two income taxes.
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Ma: HE-F-_NFR-F-=F+=-A
ST REFENFEAEHE KRR
BT R B R AT MR B B ARG

o

) HitmAWEBEBLREMSIHER -

() AEEHFERHEEME —IDEREH
RERNBEERARBER - AW - A
RAEBE YA KL ME AT A B
KIGBMN15%  ERE - HIERFER
Ml ARBEREARE —EME
BEERELBBNEERE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e FTMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

10. EARNINGS PER SHARE 10. B R W &=
(a) Basic (a) 2R
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s EREARZRUAARARFERSEEARN
profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders by the SEAMERUAFARASBITL AR 2 MEF
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding HAREEE -

(b)

during the year.

2023
—EFE =

Profit attributable to shareholders of the RARERFFAARIENE

Company (RMB’000) (ANR®EF 1) 2,298,535 2,800,533
Weighted average number of ordinary BT T MR MNE LR

shares outstanding (thousands) (Fh&) 1,140,558 1,159,752
Basic earnings per share (RMB) BREAKZ (AR 2.015 2.415
Diluted (b) #=
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the BREFWNRBEMAELETEEN L E
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to B ¥ ie - RBE BT L MR 2 NET
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. BHREGEE -
For the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, share HE-_Z_HNFR_Z_=Zf+=H
option schemes is the only category of dilutive potential Zt+—BLEFE -ARAEEERE—8
ordinary shares of the Company. The diluted earnings per BEAMEINEER GRESKEHT
share is the same as the basic earnings per share as the REARW AR - B &G SR E L &
potential ordinary shares in respect of outstanding share SERE

options is anti-dilutive.

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& i & 5 8 R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+—HILFE

11. DIVIDENDS 11. K2
2024 2023
—E_ME —E_=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR T
Dividends recognised as distribution to BRAEDETEBRBRBKEEZ
ordinary shareholders: & E
Interim dividend of RMBO0.70 in respect of YNZZE-_NFEFHRE
the year ended 31 December 2024 TR ARBO0.707T
(2023: interim dividend of RMBO.70 in (ZZ2Z=%F:hHKE
respect of the year ended 31 December ANBR#0.707T) (B iE)
2023) per ordinary share (Note) 813,485 813,485
Final dividend of RMBO0.70 in respect of B/ N =FEKH
the year ended 31 December 2023 & 28 &k A R#0.707T
(2023: final dividend of RMBO0.70 in (ZEZ=F:HZ
respect of the year ended 31 December —E--F+=ZR= -f— H
2022) per ordinary share (Note) IEFEzRBRES
/\Eﬁgo.mﬁ)(ﬁ/ﬁf) 813,485 813,485
1,626,970 1,626,970
Notes: k=3
(@) The dividends paid in 2024 include final dividend amounted to () ZEZMFABEMAQRARIINBE=ZT==

RMB813,485,000 paid in respect of the year ended 31 December
2023 of RMBO0.70 per share (including RMB16,240,000 which is the
dividend of shares withheld for share award schemes) and interim
dividend amounted to RMB813,485,000 paid in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2024 of RMBO0.70 per share (including
RMB16,240,000 which is the dividend of shares withheld for share
award schemes), with total amount of RMB1,626,970,000.

The dividends paid in 2023 include final dividend paid in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2022 of RMBO0.70 per share and interim
dividend paid in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 of
RMBO0.70 per share,
RMB1,626,970,000.

amounting to a total dividend of

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2024 of
RMBO0.70 per share, amounting to a total dividend of
RMB813,485,000, was proposed by the Board of Directors at a
meeting held on 25 March 2025, subject to the final approval by the
shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Meeting to be
held on 20 May 2025. These financial statements do not reflect this
dividend payable.

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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F+ZAZ+—BLEFENRARSERAR
#0.7070 + AEH A R #813,485,000 (B F &
% 17 B2 @ =1 &1 75 12 09 IR B A R #16,240,0007T)
UWRZZE-_NFFEPHEREARE
813,485,000 * B AR A R#0.707T - (B &K
1 52 F@h 5T B B 12 9 AR B A R #516,240,0007T) -
2 FREE £ ARY1,626,970,000 ©

—E_=FABRAARIRESAEE=_T ==
FH+_A=+-BLEFEORERE - FRA
REBOTOTUR ZEZ=F+_A=+—HIEF
EXNOPHRE  8RARK70T  2FR
B & H ARM1,626,970,000 °

RZZ_RAF=A-THARTHNEESH L -
RERERE T _NFRERETRARE0TO
7T LA B A & A R #813,485,0007T + A 88
SCHEUN T _AFAA-tTHRTHNFERR
ARELWARRASERBERE - REWHUH
REPRAEREMRE -



Notes

11. DIVIDENDS (Continued)

Dividends payable to shareholders will be paid in HK$. The
exchange rate adopted by the Company for its payable is the
middle rate of HK$ to RMB announced by the People’s Bank of
China for the business day preceding the date of dividend
declaration. The final dividend of RMBO0.70 per share equivalent to
HK$0.758010 per share using the exchange rate of HK$ to RMB

on 24 March 2025, which is 0.92347.

to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e FTMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

1. RE (&
B FREMR S ABEIRE - KA RIKRKE
FriRAMmERAERREB —AE4E8+EH
ARBITAHRBEE L AREERPREE - U
TE-RE=ZA-+TNHEERBELARKE
R0.92347HT H - BIRR EHIK A R#0.707T 4
SR FR%0.758010 °

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 12.ETENEH
2024 2023
—EComE e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETF T
Wages and salaries FWIE 2,005,125 1,864,994
Retirement and social benefits cost RAR R At & 18 R B AR 404,883 344,005
Equity-settled share-based payment (Note 25) LAR&{n AEE 2 Bil€ X H
(K1 :#25) 8,873 44,996
Total employee benefit expense BIRAERE 2,418,881 2,253,995

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the

Group for the year include four (2023: four) Directors

emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 40. The
emoluments payable to the remaining one (2023: one) individual

during the year is as follows:

TfuEEHFMALT
AFEEAELEBESZSFHNAMATBIEMI (=
whose T = F A EE PR BB AE I 52407
MDA R - =8 - NEE LRI FIR 162
TEZ=F D ATHEMAT

—_—=

Basic salaries, other allowances share options % 2N 3 B
and benefits-in-kind ik

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR T
E A 2R E Y
1,457

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& B 75 3R | M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE_Z-_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued) 12.ETIR/ANER(Z)
The emoluments fell within the following bands: LEFHMETINESHBER :
2024 2023
—E_-ME —E-=

Emolument bands &
HK$1,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 75 1,500,001 -

(2023: equivalent to RMB1,351,651 to 713,000,000 (ZE ==

RMB2,703,300; 2024: equivalent to F:EE R AR1,351,651

RMB1,368,316 to RMB2,736,630) T e AR #2703,3007T ;

ZEZNFHERARE
1,368,316 & A R #&
2,736,6307T)

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. % - BERKE

Office
Freehold equipment,
land and furniture Motor

buildings Machinery and fixtures vehicles Total

WARER
T RHEF R iE RILKE B &3
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETRE ARETR ARBETRE ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2024 HE-F-@mF
+-A=+—-HLEEE

At 1 January 2024 —Z-WFE—A—H 2,910,894 4,189,015 151,300 7,255,824
Additions wNE 30,648 279,656 50,867 364,346
Transfer from construction-in- RERIREA

progress (Note 16) (Bizt16) 764,686 906,601 24,374 1,695,661
Transfer to investment properties BAREHEIE

(Note 15) (B1Et15) (24,752) - - - (24,752)
Depreciation for the year (Note 7)  FRITE (#1:£7) (265,965) (580,675) (48,412) (1,329) (896,381)
Disposals & (35,424) (37,412) (3,777) (379) (76,992)
Exchange realignment INEEEE 1,077 71 152 40 1,980
Closing net book amount FRIREFE 3,381,164 4,757,896 174,504 8,319,686
At 31 December 2024 RZZTZMF

+-A=+—H

Cost BN 6,043,011 10,744,012 511,744 19,191 17,317,958
Accumulated depreciation and BEMERRME

impairment charges (2,661,847) (5,986,116) (337,240) (13,069) (8,998,272)
Net book amount REEE 3,381,164 4,757,896 174,504 6,122 8,319,686

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& B 75 8 < Mt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ - MBRRE(E)

(Continued)
Office
Freehold equipment,
land and furniture Motor
buildings Machinery  and fixtures vehicles Total
MRRER
T REF e E RILKE ) B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARBTIT ARBTT ARETI ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-S-=
+ZBA=+—HLEE
At 1 January 2023 —E-=%—A—H 2,968,969 3,991,276 134,214 4,796 7,099,255
Additions NE 53,005 204,983 59,220 1,088 318,296
Transfer from construction-in- REZIREA

progress (Note 16) (B1at16) 141,432 555,002 1,958 - 698,392
Transfer to investment properties RIEEEFMEEA

(Note 15) (B at15) (1,475) - - - (1,475)
Depreciation for the year (Note 7) % ¥ & (#f#7) (244,035) (520,890) (42,902) (1,003) (808,830)
Impairment charges for the year BB E7)

(Note 7) - (5,883) - - (5,883)
Disposals & (7.734) (34,066) (1,121) (263) (43,184)
Exchange realignment GNEE T E 732 (1,407) (69) @) (747)
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 2,910,894 4,189,015 151,300 4,615 7,255,824
At 31 December 2023 R-ZE=-=F

+=-A=+—-8H
Cost DN 5,407,906 9,755,641 458,650 17,660 15,639,857
Accumulated depreciation and 2EHMERRME

impairment charges (2,497,012) (5,566,626) (307,350) (13,045) (8,384,033)

Net book amount IR EFE 2,910,894 4,189,015 151,300 4,615 7,255,824
ExEEREERAT a
ZECNEER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR E

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 9% - B RREB(E)
(Continued)
Depreciation expenses have been charged to the consolidated AEBTEERFBERINE  EHH0OT -
statement of profit or loss as follows:
2024 2023
—EB-UE —E-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
Manufacturing overheads included under HERAFHEEER
cost of goods sold 651,424 580,340
Selling and distribution costs B R AR 8,383 7,272
Administrative expenses TR E R 236,574 221,218
896,381 808,830
As at 31 December 2024, property, plant and equipment with a RZEZWNF+ZRAR=+—H xEENFE
carrying amount of RMB7,769,000 (cost of RMB13,550,000) are A R #7,769,0007T (R B A K #13,550,0007T)
pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank borrowings of B BERREEAAEERITERARE
RMB189,000 (2023: property, plant and equipment with a carrying 189,0007t (=& = = 4 : JF{A A R 8,424,000
amount of RMB8,424,000 (cost of RMB12,895,000) are pledged JL(RE AR ¥12,895,0007T) ) % - # 25 &%
as collateral for the Group’s bank borrowings of RMB2,281,000) B AAREBEIIRITERAR2281,000T) 1E
(Note 28). H AR (P 5128) -

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& Ot Bf 75 3R |7 B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

14. LEASES 14.1 &
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of EHEEEBERABRRANESE
financial position
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
—g-m#F —Eo=F
+TZA=+—H ey iiaaal=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
Right-of-use assets FREEE
- Land use rights - LML A 1,148,592 1,160,393
- Buildings - 22,442 29,831
Total right-of-use assets BIERAEEE 1,171,034 1,190,224
Lease liabilities HEAE
- Current -n® (14,078) (17,675)
- Non-current - FERE (9,000) (12,948)
Total lease liabilities BEEAE (23,078) (30,623)

Additions to the right-of-use assets for the year ended 31
December 2024 financial year were RMB51,425,000 (2023:
RMB73,409,000).

RZF_MEERAERAEEERZMARSE
51,425,0007C (=& = =4 : A R#73,409,000

JC) ©

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& 1 B 75 3R =7 B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

14. LEASES (Continued) 14.78 8 (&)
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of EHFERABRNESE
profit or loss
The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the following EHABERZIANTEBREE 2£58

amounts relating to leases:

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+-—-BiLEE
2024 2023
—T-mE —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT

Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 7)  {EREEENTE (K1:17)

- Land use rights — o fE 33,385 33,513
- Buildings - mE 17,445 20,688
50,830 54,201
Interest expense (Note 8) FMEFRXZ (Hi78) 1,169 1,496
Expenses of short-term leases and EHREEERERAX
low-value assets (Note 7) (K1 &E7) 49,412
The total cash payment for leases in the year ended R-ZBE_ME+_A=+—BIthR AT {EH
31 December 2024 was RMB61,169,000 (2023: RMB71,297,000), M MHREN FEABEHENRE MK
excluding the cash payment for land-use rights. B A ARMKE61,169,000 (ZEZ=F : AR

#71,297,0007T) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& Ot Bf 75 3R |7 B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 5. REHEME
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETFIT
At 1 January wn—H—H
Opening net book amount FYREFE 163,360 166,696
Exchange realignment SN E EE 483 (226)
Transfer from property, plant and M HERLHEEAS
equipment (Note 13) (BHE)(#i713) 24,752 1,475
Transfer from right-of-use assets FREEEEA 1,115 1,382
Depreciation for the year FRFE (8.610) (5,967)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 181,100 163,360
At 31 December R+=ZRA=+—H
Cost DN 339,386 257,289
Accumulated depreciation and RETERRE
impairment charges (158,286) (93,929)
Net book amount bR EFE 181,100 163,360
The above investment properties are located in Fujian, Guangxi, LT REUEEHEMRTRERESE  ERAE
Sichuan, Chongging, Guizhou, Shanghai and Tianjin in the PRC, milg -82Fm- - EME - LM ERRXENHM
Selangor and Johor, Malaysia, and depreciated on a straight-line BRADSEEIM - ZHRM - LEHRIER20-40
basis over 20 to 40 years. FHE -
The Group’s investment properties are stated at historical cost AEBERNREMEHERSRERREELK
less accumulated depreciation and impairment charges at the end AIFEFTITE RREARK -

of each reporting period.

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& 1 B 75 3R =7 B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment properties
are as follows:

15. REMREHE (&)
REMFGECEBENEROBENT -

2024 2023

—E-ME —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR T

Rental income e WA 39,855 35,919
Direct operating expenses BEELEENAN (8,480) (5,806)
Net book amount MREFE 31,375 30,113

Depreciation expenses have been charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as follows:

AEBEFECREHMNBROMT &M

2024 2023

—E-mF —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARBFT

Other income and other gains — net Emk AFIF G - F 5 8,610 5,967

16. CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS 16 T I =

2024 2023

—ET_-mE ZEZ=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARBFT

At 1 January wn—A—H 1,710,626 969,210

Additions NE 1,270,036 1,437,839

Exchange realignment SN T ERE 2,157 1,969
Transfer to property, plant and EAE - B RF

equipment (Note 13) (H1713) (1,695,661) (698,392)

At 31 December R+ZR=+—H 1,287,158 1,710,626

During the year ended 31 December 2024, finance costs
capitalised in construction-in-progress amounted to RMB4,284,000
(2023: RMB14,985,000) (Note 8).

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_mM&+-_A=+—HBLFE

17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. 8K EE

Trademarks Customer Computer

Goodwill and licences relationships software Total
HE BERLE EF M B ok
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRE ARBTRE ARBETR ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2024 RZTZMFE—-—A—H

Cost PR 488,290 11,212 58,945 244,908 803,355

Accumulated amortisation KT E = (8,412) (34,555) (119,890) (162,857)
Net book amount IREFE 488,290 2,800 24,390 125,018 640,498

Year ended 31 December BE—_S-ME

2024 +=ZB=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount FUREFE 488,290 24,390 125,018 640,498
Additions NE = - 3,179 3,179
Amortisation charge for the year # 4% A

(Note 7) (H7) (3:13) (5,895) (24,537) (31,088)
Closing net book amount HAREEEFE 488,290 2,144 18,495 103,660 612,589
At 31 December 2024 R_T-_mMEF

+-A=+—8

Cost BAR 488,290 11,212 58,945 248,087 806,534
Accumulated amortisation ESg 3 = (9,068) (40,450) (144,427) (193,945)
Net book amount IREFE 488,290 2,144 18,495 103,660 612,589

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+—HILFE

17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 17.8FEE (&
Trademarks Customer Computer
Goodwill  and licences  relationships software Total
HE  ARKHR BEFARF BT ekl
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR®TRL AR®TT ARBTRT ARETR

At 1 January 2023 R-T-=F—HF—H

Cost B AR 488,290 33,345 58,945 230,565 811,145
Accumulated amortisation RErEH - (29,890) (28,661) (95,618) (154,169)
Net book amount 1REFE 488,290 3,455 30,284 134,947 656,976

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-T - =4
T-_A=Zt+—BLEE

Opening net book amount FREFE 488,290 3,455 30,284 134,947 656,976
Additions NE - - - 14,344 14,344
Amortisation charge for the year —# $5 & F

(Note 7) (B at7) - (655) (5,894) (24,273) (30,822)
Closing net book amount H SR 0R % (B 488,290 2,800 24,390 125,018 640,498
At 31 December 2023 RZZB_=%

+-A=+—H

Cost B AR 488,290 11,212 58,945 244,908 803,355
Accumulated amortisation RET#H - (8,412) (34,555) (119,890) (162,857)
Net book amount RmEFE 488,290 2,800 24,390 125,018 640,498
Amortisation has been charged to administrative expenses in the BHEREMNBEROITHERIE -

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Impairment tests for goodwill BERE

The Directors have performed an impairment review of the EEeRYR T _NF+_A=+—HZ®B
carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December 2024 and have BIREBERIRE SwABERE - BRE
concluded that no provision for impairment is required. For the HHEME BEEIRELAEEIRESL D L
purposes of impairment testing, goodwill acquired has been DZENESELAETT

allocated to the lowest level of CGUs identified by business

segments.
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18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

A summary of goodwill by reporting segment is presented below:

& i M 5 8 R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+—HILFE

17. B EE (&)
HEBHENCE S BHENROT

2024 2023
—g-m# —mo=%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSFR ARET

Tissue paper products 4 E M
Others H

479,713 479,713
8,577 8,577

488,290 488,290

The recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. The calculation of goodwill on the tissue
paper product segment uses cash flow projections based on
financial estimates made by the Directors, with reference to the
prevailing market conditions, covering a period of five years and
assuming revenue growth rate is 4.0% (2023: 4.6%) and gross
profit margins ranging from 20.0% to 25.0% (2023: 23.0% to
25.0%). The long-term growth rate is 2.0% (2023: 2.0%). The
cash flows are extrapolated with reference to the production
capacity of the cash generating units acquired. The cash flow
projections are discounted at a pre-tax discount rate of 13.0%
(2023: 12.3%) per annum. Based on management’s assessment
results, there was no impairment of goodwill as at 31 December
2024 and 2023 and any reasonable change to the key
assumptions would not lead to an impairment.

PREPAYMENTS FOR NON-CURRENT ASSETS
The balance represented prepayments for purchase of property,
plant and equipment and land use rights.

BeERBEITHATYE S EREEAEE
§ iﬁﬂh%i“*é’]ﬁﬁ?ﬁ‘tﬂﬁﬁfﬁ%uwii‘ﬁi/ﬂﬂ'
WEELRMNMIGBEL  KEEEHZHAF
B BEERBREELRE /IR (ZE
Z=F  4.6%)MEF EE B E20.0% $%25.0%
TE = 23.0%E25.0%) c REIEERA
20% (ZEZ=F:2.0% ) BEenERARLSE
HETHEENEEBRE - RS RETER R
B13.0% (ZF = = F : 12.3% ) T A F F = 8
H-EREEEMNNGE BE-_T_WMFR=
TZ=F+ZA=T—HLEFE AEEERD
ZRE BAMNEENERBIZLBTISE

WEERE -

1. RBEEFAMNK
EEEEBBERPHNBNRSIEEEDME  #E
BN L BERNTEAR

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

2024 2023
—E_ME —EC-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR T

1,932,735 1,940,546
2,607,755 2,159,099
257,084 252,396

19. INVENTORIES 19. 7 &
Finished goods BUEY S
Raw materials JR A
Spare parts and consumables B {4 12 08 #E o
Total &5t

4,797,574 4,352,041

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in
cost of goods sold amounted to RMB12,538,288,000 (2023:
RMB13,196,144,000).

The Group has reversal of allowance of inventories of
RMB20,251,000 (2023: reversal of allowance of inventories of
RMB23,387,000). These amounts have been included in cost of
sales in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (Note 7).

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B f M 75 8 R Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER 20. EilR X - EIRRER H B -

RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND ENAERFUARES
DEPOSITS

2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR T
Trade receivables JiE U BR 3R 2,437,956 2,711,595
Bills receivables FE U = 4% 1,716 7,403
2,439,672 2,718,998
Less: allowance for credit losses R B E (185,514) (165,641)

Trade and bills receivables, net FEWER R R R EE - F5 2,254,158 2,558,357

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits E B F @ FEF B M iR E

- Advance payments to suppliers - FENRR - HER 647,099 666,531

- Value added tax recoverables - A G ER 466,339 489,767

- Interest income receivables - FEUWF B 205,790 280,284

- Government grants receivables — FEUSEAT B2 U A 191,000 211,000

- Prepaid expenses -FHBER 35,759 40,880

- Others - HAb 52,834 28,428

1,598,821 1,716,890

Less: allowance for credit losses W B (42,053) (13,484)
Other receivables, prepayments and HE R BRERRIZS

deposits, net - FH 1,556,768 1,703,406
Trade and bills receivables and other JEUER N - FEURE B R E A

receivables, prepayments and deposits JEW R B ERREIES 3,810,926 4,256,763

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& i & 5 8 R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER 20. EWilR X - EIRFEE R H B -

RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND BRARRUAR RS (&)
DEPOSITS (Continued)
Part of the Group’s sales are on open account with credit terms REBELHEEUDRRZERN#ETT  FEH
ranging from 30 days to 90 days. The following is an aged RIOKRENK - BEREXREWZEREBEESE
analysis of the trade and bills receivables presented based on AHstEZRES AT
invoice date.
2024 2023
—TB-lE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBF T
Within 30 days 30K LA 952,521 937,106
31-180 days 31-180k 1,248,469 1,617,859
181-365 days 181-365K 47,041 88,922
Over 365 days 365K A £ 191,641 175,111
2,439,672 2,718,998
As credit terms are short and most of the trade and bills A EIER R B B E B &R Rk K5 ) U
receivables are due for settlement within one year, the carrying BRRMEREELR —FAREHBEE RNEE
amounts of these balances approximated their fair values as at the BERABUERO A EEDREEEAEL -

balance sheet date.

Information about the impairment of trade, bills and other BRAEWERN  EREE R E it E RO E R
receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign AEBEERR - MNER R XTI EE B E R
currency risk and interest rate risk can be found in Note 32. FHA 32 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 1. 9TE€®MIT A
These amounts represented the fair value of foreign currency AT ERBERREFELIRITETLMIINELRE &
options and foreign currency forwards entered into with banks. EHNEEHN 2 AREE SLXEOWERITE
These contracts are regarded as derivative financial instruments. EEIA-
2024 2023
—EB-UE —E-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
Assets: BE:
Foreign currency forwards SNERHE D -
Liabilities: BfE:
Foreign currency options S| B B A (9,706)
Foreign currency forwards INEREIE A (5,842)
(15,548)
Total &5t (15,548)
Non-hedging derivatives are classified as current assets or BERTESCREM O BARDEENEE -
liabilities.
For information about the methods and assumptions used in EHBETASR T ERAARBENT AR
determining the fair value of derivatives, please refer to Note 32. ZEF - ELRMES2 .

22. LONG-TERM TIME DEPOSITS AND CASH AND 22. EHiSR T EHERMEAE LS RETHE

BANK BALANCES ESN
2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT AR T
Long-term time deposits RERITEHER 4,630,685 1,438,163
Cash and bank balances HERBITHER
- Bank time deposits - RITEBRFR 6,815,808 10,168,187
- Cash and cash equivalents -RekBEEED 7,445,915 8,021,756
14,261,723 18,189,943
Total &t 18,892,408 19,628,106

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

22.LONG-TERM TIME DEPOSITS AND CASH AND 22. RHIBITEHEFERNBEESRBITEF

BANK BALANCES (Continued) R(E)

The cash and cash equivalents represented cash deposits held at RehBESEZEMRSRITEMNGTR  FHER
call with banks and in hand and other short-term highly liquid CUREBMAA=EAXATHEBSRE M
investments with original maturities of three months or less. "E o

The effective interest rate on bank deposits as at 31 December RZEZWFF+ZRA=+—H 8HB{OIFEXEXK
2024 was approximately 3.94% (2023: 4.16%) per annum. FRIELB4% (ZTZ=F :4.16%) °

The carrying amounts of the long-term bank time deposits and FRHROTEHRFERNE S REITEROIREE
cash and bank balances were denominated in the following INTHERE BB -

currencies:

2024 2023
—E-ME —F-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETF T
Long-term bank time deposits REISRITEHER
RMB AR 4,500,000 1,050,000
USs$ ETT 130,685 388,163
Total &% 4,630,685 1,438,163
Cash and bank balances HE&RIBTHER
RMB AR 4,967,075 9,667,598
USs$ ETT 6,662,326 8,157,090
HK$ ol 2,435,369 162,930
Others HA 196,953 202,325
Total &t 14,261,723 18,189,943
The Group’s bank deposits and cash denominated in RMB, US$ AEBHARE ZEXRBBROTERERE
and HK$ are mainly deposited with banks in the PRC. The DIERBERZRIT - BihEe AREZEH
conversion of these RMB denominated balances into foreign B R D E LB S IE A B2 X B A B BUR A9 A
currencies and the remittance of funds out of the PRC are subject PEE IR PTE T o

to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 23. A AEEGTEBEHZHTAER

24.

25.

PROFIT OR LOSS
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit
or loss include the following:

BENEMEE
ARREEFEAREDH AL BEIOLE
BEBHE:

2024 2023
—g-m% —Eo=%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR F 5 ARBTF

Non-current assets ERHEE

- Unlisted preference shares - ARETHELER 212,370
Current assets mRBEE

- Listed equity securities - FHRAEE 5 61,149 -
SHARE CAPITAL 24, [ 7
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: BEEITMARE TR

Number of
shares RMB’000
BinEE ARETR

At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 RZE-_=ZF—HF—H8"
and 31 December 2024 —E-=F+=-R=
—E-_mMFE+=-RA=

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 17 May 2021
(2021 Scheme”). Pursuant to the 2021 Scheme, share options
had been granted to the Directors and selected employees. The
options granted will be forfeited if the Directors and employees
leave the Group before the options are exercisable. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the
options in cash.

_,__
+— 1,162,120,917 123,345
2. LR AEERZHMS

ARNRAR-_ZE-_—FRAT+EBE(ZZE=_—F
FrEDEXBBERESE - RIBEHE - ZE
EREKENEEREBRE RHBERED
TEERASESABLEEBRYME BEEME
BRITHEBERER BREBKH - NEBL
EATREEET  URESE RS EMERE -

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

5. R BER M (F)
RITHERRBRER R XA B2 T 1T EE
MEEBHIT -

25. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their
related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

2024 2023
—E-MmEF —EZ=F
Average exercise Average exercise
price in HK$ Options price in HK$ Options
per share (thousands) per share (thousands)
BREYTEE MBI BRIFHITHRE Bt
s Fif ki Fit
At 1 January w—HA—H 45.34 51,606 45.34 51,606
Lapsed or forfeited Bk 41.48 (18,361) - -
Lapsed or forfeited B ki 40.30 (729) - -
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 47.63 32,516 45.34 51,606

Out of the 32,516,000 outstanding options (31 December 2023:
51,606,000), 16,983,000 options (2023: 19,215,000) were
exercisable as at 31 December 2024.

B £2024F12A31H © #£32,516,0001) & 17 {#
B A% # (2023912 A318 : 51,606,00017) &
16,983,000 & Mk #E (2023128318 :
19,215,00017 ) AJ 1718 o

REABETBERNAAEE  NEEXRB A
ABRUEETRERTHNBRENAAEE
PSRN

Based on fair value of the underlying ordinary shares, the Group
uses binomial model to determine the fair value of the share
options as of the grant date. Key assumptions are set as below:

Key assumptions

A& R R

Options granted on
18 January 2022

—_=

—A+/\H
BT 2

Options granted on
21 December 2022

—_=

+=-—A=-+—8
BTz HigE

Fair value at grant date
Share price at grant date
Exercise price

Risk free interest rate
Dividend vyield

RE BB AR EE
R AMBREER
TIEME

R P
B B a8 &

Expected volatility (Note) TEHR R 8 R (1 2F)
Expected life (in years) TEEI B B ()
Note: The expected volatility, measured as the standard deviation of

expected share price returns,

is determined based on the

average weekly trading price volatility of the shares of the

Company.
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HK$2.63-HK$3.84
HK$38.65
HK$41.48

0.68%-1.22%
4.88%
24%-25%
2-4

et FEEKREE AEHRERBNFEEE

HK$4.01-HK$4.97
HK$40.30
HK$40.30

3.51%-4.05%
5.83%
23%-25%
2-4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the
following expiry dates and exercise prices:

Exercise price

& i M 5 8 R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+—HILFE

B.LURDEERZMME (£Z)

EFRERTEBRENIBMAMITEERD
T

Options (thousands)

Expiry date — 17 January 2024 HEA -2 -mF—-A++tH
Expiry date — 20 December 2024 Z|#iH - — T -_WE+=-A=+H
Expiry date — 17 January 2025 A - T -_RF-A++AH
Expiry date — 5 October 2025 IHH - -_RF+ARA
Expiry date — 20 December 2025 X|/#iH - T -_AF+-HA=+H
Expiry date — 17 January 2026 HERA -T2 XF-HAT+tH
Expiry date — 20 December 2026 H|HiH - L= F+=ZA=+H

in HKS$ per RS
share option 2023
TEfE
BREER —E-=
(&%) T &t
41.48 = 13,424
40.30 = 458
41.48 11,308 13,424
79.20 5,333 5,333
40.30 342 458
41.48 15,078 17,899
40.30 455 610
32,516 51,606

The total amount of the fair value of share options granted to
Directors and selected employees is expensed over the vesting
period. The share-based compensation expense for the year
ended 31 December 2024 amounted to RMB8,873,000 (2023:
RMB44,996,000) (Note 12), and the remaining unamortised fair
value of approximately RMB1,793,000 (2023: RMB25,153,000) will
be charged to the consolidated income statement in the future
years.

The maximum number of shares available for issue after
considering the share options already granted under the 2021
Scheme are 71,480,742, which are not more than 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the
approval of the 2021 Scheme.

EERERENEEEENERENAAEE
BEBEESHFHERAERRER -BEZ-ZT
—HWHFEFT_A=Z+—BLEFE EHENQIAE
BARBES73.000L(ZEZ=F: AR
44,996,0007T) (M 5E12) « FIeARCEEH AR
BHAARME1793000(ZE=Z=F: AR
#£25,153,0007T) R RIS A EE

NHReERL2BRE RE-_T - —F537
BT 2D BB EIRR71,480,7420% - it B 6L
WARARR LA B WA EE B AR B FETRA
#10% °

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

S

25.

178

—E_NF+_A=Z+—HIEEFE

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)
The Board approved a share award scheme (the “Scheme”) on 11
September 2023. The Scheme is pursuant to which existing
Shares will be purchased by the trustee of the Scheme (the
“Trustee”) from the secondary market out of cash contributed by
the Company. During the period between 11 September 2023
and 31 December 2023 (both dates inclusive), the Trustee of the
Scheme purchased an aggregate of 15,000,000 shares on the
open markets for the purpose of the Scheme at a total
consideration of HK$403,182,000 (approximately to
RMB368,969,000). During the period between 1 January 2024
and 31 December 2024 (both dates inclusive), the Trustee of the
Scheme purchased an aggregate of 8,200,000 Shares on the
open markets for the purpose of the Scheme at a consideration
of HK$214,691,000 (approximately to RMB194,886,000).

As at 31 December 2024, the Trustee held a total of 23,200,000
shares of the Company. No share has been awarded under the
Scheme since its adoption.
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25.

DB AERZME (&)
EEEgRN T _=—FNA+—BEH—EERD
HENETE - BIBZATZ - LTSl EA (X
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B% 15 o #£2023F9H11H £2023F12H31H 1+
(EHRBRMR) STABRLAFAMBAEE
15,000,0000% {E & & #403,182,000 (43 A B ¥
368,969,000) ° 202441 A1 H £20244F12 A31
AE(EEEMK)  XTABRLAHEMSER
% 58,200,0000% & {8 /& #214,691,000 (K A R
#194,886,000) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

25. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued) 2. URODEERZHME (E)

The Company repurchased its own shares for the Scheme RATKAFEBRESF R ZMEIERFKRD
through the Stock Exchange as follows: wm
2024 —E-NE
No. of Price paid per share Aggregate
Month of repurchases ordinary SkE®E consideration
E & A % shares Highest Lowest paid
RHEHE RE =& et
HK$ HK$ HK$°000
g i f EETR
January 2024 —EZmME—AR 2,800,000 29.05 26.30 78,388
March 2024 —ZE-_WF=A 800,000 25.07 24.63 19,884
April 2024 —ZE-NFWA 3,600,000 26.02 24.19 89,619
May 2024 —E-WMERA 1,000,000 27.07 26.54 26,800
8,200,000 214,691
2023 B F
No. of Price paid per share Aggregate
Month of repurchases ordinary BRER consideration
Bl A » shares Highest Lowest paid
g B 3] & SRR
HKS HK$ HK$’'000
S W ks BETT
September 2023 —ET-=%1A 2,800,000 28.30 24.83 74,268
October 2023 —E-=%+1+A 4,000,000 26.51 24.03 99,928
November 2023 —E-=ZF+—A 4,400,000 28.97 25.82 121,519
December 2023 —T-=F+=A 3,800,000 29.11 27.30 107,467
15,000,000 403,182

EXREREEHRAT
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& 1 B 75 3R R Mt s
For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+—HILFE

26. OTHER RESERVES 26. Hith &
Shares
held for Capital Share-based
share award  redemption Statutory compensation Exchange
schemes reserve reserves reserve reserve Total
& 63 28 Bt &1 AXED
Pk i EEME  BREREG ERkE ik
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTT AREFT ARETR AR®Tn AREFT AREBTR
At 1 January 2024 RZZ-mNF—F—H (368,969) 2,483,742 444,045 320,240 2,880,980
Other comprehensive income  E it 47 4 Ye 2
- currency translation -NEREESE
differences 82,950 82,950
Employee share option BIBRESE
schemes:
- value of employee -BIRKERE
services
Employee share award BT RRE 2
schemes:
- shares withheld for share - & 17 2 B &t 21K 11
award schemes R (194,886) (194,886)
- share award scheme of - MBRRRR &R
a subsidiary BE] (591) (591)
Appropriation to statutory BEETERE W i27)
reserves (Note 27) 203,545 = 203,545
Liquidation of a subsidiary BENBAR (40) (77,394) (77,434)
At 31 December 2024 ANZE-F
+-A=+-H (564,446) 2,687,247 452,120 325,796 2,902,639
At 1 January 2023 R-E-=%—HF—H - 1,922 2,444,450 399,049 297,597 3,143,018
Other comprehensive income  E it 47 4 Ye 2
- currency translation -NEREESE
differences - - - - 22,643 22,643
Employee share option BIBRESE
schemes:
- value of employee -BIRKERE
services - - - 44,996 - 44,996
Employee share award BT REEE
schemes:
- shares withheld for share - i {7 22 B &t 21 41
award schemes B {7 (368,969) - - - - (368,969)
Appropriation to statutory BEETERE W i27)
reserves (Note 27) - - 39,292 - - 39,292
At 31 December 2023 R-ZE-=%
+-A=+-H (368,969) 1,922 2,483,742 444,045 320,240 2,880,980
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& i M 5 8 R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+—HILFE

26. OTHER RESERVES (Continued) 26. Hith 48 (&)

Notes: Hat -

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Share Scheme Trust (a) HBEZT-_NFF+-_A=1T—HILEFE RiHi
withheld 8,200,000 ordinary shares (2023: 15,000,000 ordinary b &t 2115 5 (X $08,200,0000% & A 7] & i@ ik (= F
shares) of the Company for an amount of approximately — = 4:15000000) & ®B 4H B A R &
RMB194,886,000 (2023: RMB368,969,000), which had been deducted 194,886,000 (=Z = =4 : AR ¥368,969,000)
from the equity. FHARBEEER AR -

(o) Statutory reserves represent statutory surplus reserve of the subsidiary ) AEBEBEEFREDENEBERPBEKREZHE
companies in Mainland China. The Company’s subsidiaries RElEERB AR APEKRKEFMOHQA
incorporated in Mainland China are required to make appropriations FERSEEATHBREMZBAFFNE (K H
to statutory reserves from their profit for the year after offsetting NAEFEEMNRABEEE) S ROoORFABEFRE
accumulated losses carried forward from prior years as determined Al BIBBUANRBE T AEHES - PEAQA
under Mainland China accounting regulations and before distribution RAREFENRBEFBE - EREERH
to shareholders. The percentages to be appropriated to such E S FFEA10% © ;% 88 L HIR & A B X
statutory reserve are determined according to the relevant regulations BLATENBRAREEFERERTE -EAA
in Mainland China at rate of 10% or at the discretion of the board of ETERARFEE B ERETMEAN50%E -
Directors of Mainland China subsidiaries, and further appropriation is A A A {2 LE BB -
optional when the accumulated fund is 50% or more of the registered
capital of the subsidiaries

(c) Exchange reserve of the Group represents the difference arising from () AEBEERFEDEERTREUARE A
the translation of the financial statements of companies within the BMZEBRARNTBRERZLBKARBMS &
Group that have a functional currency different from RMB, the ZEHZR
presentation currency of the financial statements of the Group.

27. RETAINED EARNINGS 27. B W =
2024 2023
—E-UE —E-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREF T

At 1 January W—A—8 17,391,515 16,257,244

Profit for the year F 2,298,535 2,800,533

Appropriation to statutory reserves (Note 26) ¥ 1E % & # & (K1 :£26) (203,545) (39,292)

2023/2022 final dividends paid (Note 11) —E =/ ZFFB K

EEH;%H& 8 (fat11) (797,245) (813,485)

2024/2023 interim dividends paid (Note 11) —TE-MFE/ZZE-=BIK

R EA R S (/f/fﬁ_fn ) (797,245) (813,485)

Change in ownership interests in subsidiaries  [ff B A 7] 4 5 &
without change of control 2,911 -
Liquidation of a subsidiary BEEWE AR 40 -
At 31 December R+t—_A=+—8” 17,894,966 17,391,515

EREREEFRAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

28. BORROWINGS 28. f& &
2024 2023
—E-E —E_=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETTT
Non-current kiR Eh
Long-term bank loans — unsecured (a) EHIRITER - &K () 2,420,061 330,250
Long-term bank loans — secured (a) REIBRITER - HF () - 180
2,420,061 330,430
Current HE
Short-term bank loans — unsecured (a) FRHERITER - EE @ 10,540,562 10,621,301
Trust receipt bank loans (a) IRITIRIE B &K (a) 107,147 421,293
Current portion of long-term bank loans — RHRITERORE TS
unsecured (a) -\ (a) 21,889 2,862,500
Current portion of long-term bank loans EHIRTERNRE TS
- secured (a) - K H(a) 189 2,101
10,669,787 13,907,195
Total borrowings A 13,089,848 14,237,625
(a) Bank loans and other borrowings (@) RITERREMER
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings are WITERLREMEZTHETEIL T &I
denominated in the following currencies: BB
2024 2023
—E-MF —E=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
RMB AR 9,154,263 9,143,864
HKS B 3,828,249 4,962,351
Other currencies Hth g 107,336 131,410

13,089,848 14,237,625
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28. BORROWINGS (Continued)

(a) Bank loans and other borrowings (Continued)

At 31 December, the Group’s long-term bank borrowings are
repayable as follows:

& i M 5 8 R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+—HILFE

(&)

(a) RITERRHEMBER(E)

RtZA=1—R SEZEHRTEN
ZEEHMAT

Between 1 and 2 years —FEIMmF
Between 2 and 3 years MR =4
Between 3 and 5 years ZFRARF

2024 2023
—T_ME —EC-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARET T
2,350,164 16,127
69,897 283,053

= 31,250

2,420,061 330,430

As at 31 December 2024, the effective interest rate of the
Group’s bank loans and other borrowings is approximately
2.82% (2023: 2.83%) per annum.

As all the long-term bank loans and other borrowings charge
interest at fixed rates, the carrying amounts of the bank loans
and other borrowings approximated their fair values as at the
balance sheet dates.

As at 31 December 2024, RMBS3,828,249,000 (2023:
RMB4,962,351,000) in borrowings contain repayable on
demand clauses.

As at 31 December 2024, bank borrowings of RMB189,000
(2023: RMB2,281,000) were pledged by the property, plant
and equipment (carrying amount of RMB7,769,000 (2023:
RMB8,424,000) and cost of RMB13,550,000 (2023:
RMB12,895,000)) (Note 13).

The Group has complied with all loan covenants throughout
the reporting period.

)5’\_2_E¢+ A=+—8 "&EEE
TERREMERNERFFE XL
282% TE =% :283%)-°

Iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬂﬁﬁ{mg K5 E
EFBE  FEIRTEE &E’nﬂ%w%i
E,\\uﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁéﬁi’/}ﬁfgﬁm

THNFSEEKRTNBRARE
3,828,249,000(: T _=ZF:ARK
4,962,351,000) °

ZECFAREEEEARET?,769,000
T(ZZE=Z=F : AR¥8,424,0007T)(RE
AR #13,550,000c (ZE=Z=F : AR
12,895,0007C) ) I ¥ 3 - B R R E AKX
EEPITHERARE189,000L(ZFE ==
F: AR¥2,281,0007T) (M 5E13) 1EHE R ©

AEERREHNETHEERR

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

28. BORROWINGS (Continued) 28. &M (&
(b) Super short-term commercial papers (b) BEHmMES
The following super short-term commercial papers were AT B BAR & 5 38170 B A -

issued and matured during the years:

Interest rate  Expiration term Mature date Amount
Ei:d FI) 2 5 BR ESp-GHSR- ] &8
RMB’000
ARBFT
2024
20244
2418 % B ¥ SCP001 180 days 4 September 2024 2,500,000
180K —E-_MNEARAMNAB
2418 & B B SCP002 182 days 11 September 2024 2,500,000
182X Z—F-WmFEARA+—H
2023
20234
2318 % B X SCPO01 2.40% 180 days 27 August 2023 1,500,000
180k ZE=Z=FN\A=++H
2318 % B B SCP002 2.40% 178 days 28 September 2023 2,000,000
178k —E=-_=FNLA=+NH
2318 % B B2 SCP003 2.39% 180 days 8 November 2023 1,000,000
180k —Z-—=F+—ANAR
2318 &2 B R SCP004 2.39% 179 days 17 November 2023 500,000

179k —ZE-_=%+—A++tH
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (LIABILITIES) 20 EEEFEHREE(EE)
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are BEEMSHEEARBEEMGEREBES A
as follows: N
2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR T
Deferred tax assets EEFMBHEE
- Deferred tax assets to be recovered — BiB121E A 1& U = /) IR T
more than 12 months FISEE 296,712 312,895
- Deferred tax assets to be recovered — fE1218 A R Uk [E /Y iE 3T
within 12 months PRSI & E 195,065 185,565
491,777 498,460
Deferred tax liabilities EEFBHER
- Deferred tax liabilities to be settled more — Bi@121E A 1& Uk @ A IE 1T
than 12 months FEfRaE (27,313) (29,341)
- Deferred tax liabilities to be settled = FE121E A A 4 (= B iR T
within 12 months FEHaE (125,914) (153,045)
(153,227) (182,386)
Deferred tax assets — net BEEFBRHBEE - F8 338,550 316,074
The gross movement on the deferred tax account is as follows: RIS EZEFHIT :
2024 2023
—E_-ME —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARE T
At 1 January wn—A—H 316,074 382,771
Credit (charge) to profit or loss EAEHFMBEPER (I0KR) 22,471 (66,665)
Exchange realignment SN H Z 5 5 (32)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 338,550 316,074

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (LIABILITIES) 2. RIEFIBEHEE (BEB)(E
(Continued)
The movements in the deferred tax assets and liabilities during the FR BEEMSHEENAGRAEEEER
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances AER—HHEAEHE OSEEBNT

within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred tax assets: EEFBSHREE !

Unrealised profit in
inventories arising from

intra-group transactions Provisions Tax losses Total
SERARSELEN
HFEZABRRNE EfH RitER ekl

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024

b Sl T F Bebdelubl T -F Bebdelibl CT--F Eetdelifl —T--F

RMB'000 muziVISKOOM  RMB'000 EuaiVizRovel RMB'000 mumsiVI=eeoM  RMB'000

IG-E el ARETT Pahaed \R% T Pakael AR% T PNl AR T

At 1 January R—RA—R 130,396 113,923 55,169 312,895 386,617 498,460

Exchange realignment NEREER = - 145 - - 145
Credit (charge) to profit or loss EAHFIBRTER/

(18%) 5,669 16,473 3,686 23,557 (16,183) (73,722) (6,828)
At 31 December R+=-A=+-A 136,065 130,396 59,000 55,169 296,712 312,895 491,771
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (LIABILITIES)
(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities:

Withholding income
tax on unremitted Adjustments on

earnings in PRC assets recognised upon

subsidiaries business combination
By K EE M B ) REBEREENEE
FATX M ERFAAEH ZEEAE

2024 2023 2024 2023

b Sl fl —T-=F ekl T -=F
RMB000 RSNV  RMB'000 JRSIVIX0NN)
ARETT PN Ul \R%TT RNEE

At 1 January ®-A-8 RECN 113310 [RETECIN 33458
Currency translation differences ~ SMEFEEE = - = -
(Credit) charge to profit or loss ~ EAHHERT (§32)/

nk (18,783) 27,820 (2,040) (2,077)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—-8° 122,356 141,139 29,341 31,381

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not
recognise deferred income tax assets of RMB12,996,000 (2023:
RMB12,906,000) in respect of losses amounting to
RMB78,767,000 (2023: RMB78,219,000), which are not subject to
expiration and can be carried forward against future taxable
income.

The Group has been providing deferred income tax liabilities on
the withholding income tax on certain amount of the unremitted
earnings of some PRC subsidiaries following the dividend
distribution plan of the Company. As at 31 December 2024,
deferred income tax liabilities of RMB168,927,000 (2023:
RMB204,367,000) have not been recognised for the withholding
income tax and other taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries in the PRC. The
unremitted earnings will be permanently reinvested, amounting to
RMB3,378,538,000 (2023: RMB4,087,338,000) as at
31 December 2024.

& i M 5 8 R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+—HILFE

EZEFREREE(REB)(F

EEMBHER:
Accelerated Tax effect of fair value
depreciation change on FVTPL Total
NAREEHEARZE
FAEHBRNEREAEN
MERE AREEEHZHERE B

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

skl —2 o F B el —S - ikl T o
RMB'000
ARETT ENEEWD

RMB'000 JGIV{UOGN  RMB'000 VISV
AR%TT QNS \R% T PN SR

RMB'000

2,656
(61)

- 182,386 149,433
4 140 (20)

42 7,188 (29,299 32,973

2,637 7,229 153,221 182,386

HABRHNEBRRAABETEMESHEENEE
RIEFRARIUEELENRRERDFIEER D
B8 75 75 ) 2 1P R AR o AN 6% B 0 K 3t 4 N O B
PRE A T 4588 DU SH R SR FE R B A RIHE 28 A
R #78767000L(— & — = F£: A R ¥
78,219,0007T ) #E R FLFﬁ MEEARY
12,996,00070 (= ZF = = F : A R #12,906,000
JT) °

AEBREQAROBRANS RS ETEHR
ME AR R ARERFMBERINARBAEHTIRE
TR aE B2 _T-_NF+_A=+—
A ANEETRRLE ?IWMT%“WH%EL
FEATFIAMNERMGHMEMHBRER
RS B E AR 168,027,00000 (= F 5
F AEM2043670007E> IEERER =S
BERBAMNEE R-ZZT-_NF+=_A=+—
H &/ & &R W &= & 2 A R #3,378,538,0007T
(ZZE=—=%F: AR®¥4,087,338,0007T) °

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

30. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES AND OTHER 30. BIRR - ERNREMEMBENRK

PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES HRREHA
2024 2023
—E-ME T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFIT
Trade payables FE IR X 3,044,835 2,745,385
Bills payables FET R iR = 4,684
3,044,835 2,750,069
Other payables and accrued charges EMmENRNERER
- Accrued expenses and other payables -FEREAKHEM 1,028,774 1,088,740
— Payables for purchase of property, - EMEAR - S
plant and equipment R ERE 333,760 278,248
- Employee benefit payable - ENBIEMNE 248,206 220,981
- Other taxes payables - H A EHT R 31,091 31,542
— Payables for share award scheme - TR TR R EET &l = 10,574

1,641,831 1,630,085

Trade and bills payables and other payables [EffIRF M ZiE R E

and accrued charges EAFRTBRER 4,686,666 4,380,154
The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables at 31 RTZA=+—0 ENERERENEEZEK
December are presented based on invoice date. RRBEEZAMAECRRTOT

2024 2023

—E-E —E-=fF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFR AREFT

Within 30 days 30K AR 1,716,415 1,686,381
31-180 days 31-180K 1,299,079 1,051,641

181-365 days 181-365K 24,014 7,775
Over 365 days 365K £ 5,327 4,272

3,044,835 2,750,069
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES AND OTHER

31.

30. FE I HR K

& i M 5 8 R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+—HILFE

FE AR5 H A B R

PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES BRRER(Z
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of trade and bills payables and other MR EERRE BRI EHEEREM
payables approximate their fair value as at the balance sheet date ERNRREeEHEEEBERANKREEREQAAE
due to short-term maturity. HE -
The carrying amounts of trade and bills payables were FERNERRENZENIREEN T EERE
denominated in the following currencies: i :
2024 2023
—E-UE —E-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREF T
Us$ ET 1,798,246 1,541,380
RMB AR 1,231,118 1,202,668
Other currencies H A 15,471 6,021
3,044,835 2,750,069
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 1L.E5cRKRER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio. The gross gearing ratio is
calculated on the basis of the total borrowings as a percentage of
the total shareholders’ equity excluding non-controlling interests.
The net gearing ratio is calculated on the basis of net debt as a
percentage of the shareholders’ equity excluding non-controlling
interests. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less long-term
bank time deposits and cash and bank balances.

AEENBESERRR ERTRESERE
B WARERMEH®A R HE MR &S H R
FREMND  ARERRENENGREBIE

RTHEFUABEANGE KE@
AT RBRCR A BRA B - MR RE
TR HEEEAREER -

=[]
o]

ab & 3
FJléEl
BEAXR

HEANHMAR K AEBENAEAEBREL
RERHER SEBELXERREETELEA

PR HEas 1E|TFJ‘E#T HMEENE S ttf’F
AEEENE  FABRHREREBFERKRIN
BESWRIFENERTE ERFELRE
RBERARTERFTR B2 RBTFR-

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

31. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) NETRARER (&
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s strategy ZENFR AEENEBEROBFAEL
was to maintain a net gearing ratio at or below 20%. The KERFA20% I AT - E+_A=+—H &
calculation of the gearing ratios at 31 December was as follows: REELEFERT :
2024 2023
—E-E —E-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
Gross gearing ratio: FER=R g
Total borrowings 1B 13,089,848 14,237,625
Total equity excluding non-controlling BRSBTS ER
interests 20,920,950 20,395,840
Gross gearing ratio BABLE 62.6% 69.8%
Net gearing ratio: FAGELE
Total borrowings 11 13,089,848 14,237,625
Less: long-term bank time deposits and B RERITEAER
cash and bank balances e MIRITHE R (18,892,408) (19,628,106)
Net debt BEFHE (5,802,560) (5,390,481)
Total equity excluding non-controlling interests 42 # 25 Hifl i JF 3% #l 4 25 20,920,950 20,395,840
Net gearing ratio FAFELE N/A N/A
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments

32.¢@ T A
(a) EE

2024 2023
—FE-MNE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREF T
Financial assets SRIEE
Financial assets at amortised cost RESRKATENEREE
- Trade and bills receivables, other — JE U BR R R E Ath IR
receivables, excluding prepayments TEEEN KRR K
and value added tax recoverable AT G ER 2,661,729 3,059,585
- Restricted bank deposits - BRHIRITIFR 300 300
- Long-term bank time deposits - RERITE A FR
(Note 22) (Bt 5t22) 4,630,685 1,438,163
- Cash and bank balances (Note 22) - Re RBITHFRM 722) 14,261,723 18,189,943
Financial assets at FVTPL (Note 23) NAREBEFEEEE
AAEHESNCREE
(Kt it23) 61,149 212,370
Derivative financial instruments (Note 21) $T4 & g T & (f7:221) 372 -
21,615,958 22,900,361
2024 2023
—E-UE —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREETF T
Financial liabilities &RIEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RESRKATTENSRARE
- Trade and other payables, — FERIR R E A FE IR R -
excluding non-financial liabilities TEEFERMAE 4,407,369 4,127,631
- Borrowings (Note 28) —- B (Hi128) 13,089,848 14,237,625
- Lease liabilities (Note 14) -MHEBEWHE14) 23,078 30,623
Derivative financial instruments (Note 21) #7144 & T & (#1:#21) = 15,548
17,520,295 18,411,427

EXREREEHRAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+—HILFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and bills
receivables, other receivables, restricted bank deposits,
long-term bank time deposits, cash and bank balances, trade
and other payables, lease liabilities and borrowings. Details of
the financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, price risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. Management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Company’s functional currency is HK$ and the majority of
its subsidiaries’ functional currencies are RMB. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions or
purchases from overseas by the Company’s subsidiaries and
recognised assets or liabilities, such as cash and bank
balances, trade and bills and other receivables and payables,
and borrowings held by its subsidiaries, which are
denominated in RMB, United States dollar (‘US$”) and other
currencies.

The Group considers the risk of movements in exchange rate
between HK$ and US$ to be insignificant as HK$ and US$
are pegged. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
fluctuations in exchange rates between RMB (the functional
currency of the majority of the Group’s entities), US$ (the
denomination currency of majority of the Group’s imports of
raw materials and property, plant and equipment and
borrowings) and HK$ (the denomination currency of
borrowings) resulted in a total exchange loss of
RMB169,771,000 (2023: exchange loss of RMB183,443,000).
The Group has not experienced any difficulties in getting
sufficient foreign currencies for settlement of purchase
obligations or repatriation of profits declared by the
subsidiaries in the PRC to their overseas holding companies
or repayment of bank loans.

At 31 December 2024, if HK$ and US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all other variables
held constant, the net profit for the year would have been
RMB41,556,000 (2023: RMB5,274,000) higher/lower.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to raw material price risk because of
the volatility of major raw materials such as wood pulp. To
manage price risks, the Group enters into long term contracts
and diversifies its suppliers to mitigate the risk of significant
raw material price changes.

The Group is also exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTPL. For
equity securities measured at FVTPL quoted in The Stock
Exchange, the management of the Group manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for restricted bank deposits, long-term bank time
deposits and cash and bank balances (Note 22), the Group
has no other significant interest-bearing assets. The Group’s
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.
Management does not anticipate significant impact on
interest-bearing assets resulted from the changes in interest
rates because the interest rates of bank deposits are not
expected to change significantly.

The Group’s interest-rate risk mainly arises from borrowings.
Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings obtained at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest-rate risk. The
interest rates and terms of repayments of borrowings are
disclosed in Note 28.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2024, if interest rates on borrowings had
been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, the net profit for the year would have been
RMB20,180,000 (2023: RMB21,281,000) lower/higher as a
result of higher/lower interest expenses on floating rate
borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk arises
from restricted bank deposits, long-term bank time deposits,
cash and bank balances, derivative financial instruments,
financial assets at FVTPL and trade and bills receivables,
other receivables. Majority of the Group’s sales are settled in
cash or by its customers on delivery of goods. Credit sales
are made only to selected customers with good credit
history. The Group has policies in place to ensure that
settlement of trade receivables are followed up on a timely
basis.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
The carrying amounts of restricted bank deposits, long-term
bank time deposits, cash and bank balances, derivative
financial instruments, financial assets at FVTPL, trade and bills
receivables, and other receivables included in the
consolidated financial statements represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2024, all restricted bank deposits and bank
balances were placed with or entered into with highly
reputable and sizable banks and financial institutions without
significant credit risk. The table below shows the bank
balances with counterparties as at 31 December 2024 and

& i M 5 8 R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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32.¢@MITAE(E)

(b) MBEAREEERREEK (&)

=RAE R (&)
RZZE-_WF+=—A=+—H FEER
FIRITERRBROTEFTIFAGERIT R
BHREZIERT UEBABREARR - TX
BRAR_ZE-_NFR-_ZE-_=F+=A
=+ —HEXHHHEH

2023:
2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
Counterparties RH5H
- Big 4 domestic banks (Note) - MABEABRT(HT) 7,519,286 3,055,235
- Other reputable and sizeable - HMEERIFRARK
domestic commercial banks 2B ERIT 10,132,485 13,127,040
- Highly reputable and sizeable - EEROERAHFEZ
foreign-owned banks SNEIRTT 1,240,751 3,445,931
18,892,522 19,628,206

Note:

Big 4 domestic banks comprise Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China Limited, Agricultural Bank of China Limited,
Bank of China Limited and China Construction Bank
Corporation.

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables from initial
recognition. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 32.¢MITAE(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) WEEKEEBEERKE (&)

(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) =/ m B (&)
The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of EHEBRXER T _NF+_A=+—
sales over a period of 3 years before 31 December 2024 and ARI=ZFHEE 8 HENNRER KA
the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within HMALEMEERTEERE BAEE
this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect EERFABURBEEE P EEEWIER
current and forward-looking information on factors affecting BE B EME AT KR A E & R o

the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2024 BFUEE RZTE-MOMF+=-A=+—H
was determined as follows for trade and bills receivables: WREKERREREENEEREBEEEN
™
Within 181 to Over
180 days 365 days 365 days Total
181K E
180K A 365k  365KKLE st
—E-ME RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
31 December 2024 +=BA=+—H ARETRT ARE®Tn ARETRT AR®TrR
Gross carrying amount REREE 2,200,990 47,041 191,641 2,439,672
Expected loss rate TEHIE R % 0.29% 27.00% 86.86%
Loss allowance B E 6,356 12,701 166,457 185,514
Within 181 to Over
180 days 365 days 365 days Total
181K E
180K 365Kk 865K E #at
—E-=F RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
31 December 2023 +=—A=+—8 ARETIT ARBTT AREFTT ARBTE
Gross carrying amount M E 2,454,965 88,922 175,111 2,718,998
Expected loss rate TE B 18 =X 0.92% 2.40% 80.45%
Loss allowance B 1R BB 22,630 2,136 140,875 165,641
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
The closing loss allowances for trade and bills receivables as
at 31 December reconcile to the opening loss allowances as

32.¢FMITAE)
b) MERBESERERBE (&)

=/ m kg (48)
RTZA=+—BRKRERKLERFEED
HREBERGEHVNEBERBEENHERENT

follows:

2024 2023

i el 1 - —=E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETFIT
Opening loss allowance as at 1 January N — A — B&HVEBEE 165,641 61,247
Impairment losses recognised (Note 7) R EEBEE M E7) 36,892 109,833
Write-offs AN AT U (B EY fE U R RO 8 (17,102) (5,355)

SN E =R 83 (84)

Exchange adjustments

Closing loss allowance at 31 December W+ = A=+—BHHX

BB R

185,514 165,641

Trade and bills receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others,
the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group, and a failure to make contractual payments for a
period greater than 60-90 days past due.

Impairment losses on trade and bills receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial assets at amortised cost include other
receivables. Impairment on other receivables is measured as
either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected
credit loss, depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If a
significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has occurred
since initial recognition, then impairment is measured as
lifetime expected credit losses.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The closing loss allowances for other receivables (excluding
prepayments) as at 31 December reconcile to the opening
loss allowances as follows:

32.¢FMIAE(E)
b) HERBEERERBE (&)

=/ m kg (48)

Rt A=+t —REEMmEKRR(KREN
RTOINHERER B R RSPV ERREG
RME BT

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRT AR T

Opening loss allowance as at 1 January N — 8 — B&HVE B EE
Impairment losses recognised (Note 7) R EEBEE M Z7)

Exchange adjustments M 3, 38 B

13,484 -
31,114 13,484
(2,545) -

Closing loss allowance at 31 December ®R+-A=+—HHK
HREERE

42,053 13,484

Liquidity risk

Cash flow is managed at Group level by head office finance
department (“Group Finance”). Group Finance monitors the
Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure that it has sufficient
cash to meet operational needs at all times and does not
breach borrowing limits or covenants on any of its borrowing
facilities. Group Finance usually takes into consideration the
Group’s debt financing plans, covenant compliance and
compliance with internal balance sheet ratio targets.

Group Finance mainly invests surplus cash in time deposits,
with appropriate maturities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Less than
1 year

DiME
RMB'000

32.

Between
1to
2 years

18T
RMB'000

ARETL ARETT

B f M 75 8 R Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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SRITA(E)
b) MERBESERERBE (&)

TE Tt E R ()
TRETAEENERARG REREED
FEARN REHAEREASNIHAN
RAREETON ERABENESER
BHMRURNASRE -

Carrying

Between Between Total amount at
2to 3to undiscounted 31 December

3 years 5 years cash flows 2024
ZECME

+Zh

AERH  =+-BL

MEEE IEESE ReR fREfE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETL ARETRT  ARETRT ARETR

At 31 December 2024 R-F-mE

+=A=+-H
Borrowings & 10,909,560 2,370,962 69,920 13,350,442 13,089,848
Trade and other payable BHER ERNEERE

th e 4,407,369 - 4,407,369 4,407,369
Lease liabilities HEEE 14,777 7211 24,040 23,078
Total At 15331,706 2,378,233 17,781,851 17,520,295
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=§

+=R=+-H
Borrowings EE 14,097,206 20,818 285,302 31,262 14434588 14,237,625
Trade and other payable ERER EREERE

o e 5 4,127 631 - - - 4,127,631 4,127,631
Lease liabilties RERRE 18,604 9,776 2,681 913 31,974 30,623
Total At 18,243,441 30,594 287,983 32,175 18594193 18,395,879
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 2.¢@MITAE)
(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments (c) AAEBEERENESRIE
Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities REBRERERRUAREBARS D
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting CHEEREMEBE TREBAAEE
period. The following table gives information about how the MEERNFMERI N ABTEAEUT
fair values of these financial assets are determined (in “E(E—EEFZE)-

particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used), as well
as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair
value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

e Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from e FEUAAEEMERRAERA
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical EREERTISPORECRAE)

assets or liabilities;

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from o BENRAABEFTERTE—EM
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 BREOREN ZEENBENTS
that are observable for the asset or liability, either REMEA - ] BEEBER) XM
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from EEVRBER)
prices); and

e Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from e Bo-ENURAABAEFEMEELERE
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or RAFKBETEEMISE R &H A (B
liability that are not based on observable market data FERTEREA) o

(unobservable inputs).

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£1E H2E #3E Mt

Notes RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
Wiz ARBETT ARBTIT ARBTIT ARETT

At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-ZNE
+=A=+—H
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL KAanEEER
HEEt A B
B © R B 23 61,149 61,149
Derivative financial TESMIA
instruments 21 372
At 31 December 2023 NW=-ZFZ==
+=-A=+—H
Financial asset SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL AR EEER
Hegi A&
B © RE B 23 - - 212,370 212,370
Financial liability SRBEE
Derivative financial ESmIA
instruments 21 - (15,548) - (15,548)
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market
price is the current bid price. The quoted market price
already incorporates the market’s assumptions with respect to
changes in economic climate such as rising interest rates and
inflation, as well as changes due to ESG risk. These
instruments are included in level 1 which comprise primarily
equity investments classified as trading securities. The
Group’s listed equity securities are level 1 instruments and
their fair value is determined with referencing to quoted bid
price in an active market.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2. The Group’s derivative financial
instruments are level 2 instruments and their fair value is
determined with reference to quotations provided by various
banks.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
This is the case for unlisted equity securities and for
instruments where ESG risk gives rise to a significant
unobservable adjustment. The Group’s unlisted preference
shares as at 31 December 2023 were level 3 instruments and
their fair value was determined with inputs for the asset or
liability that were not based on observable market data. The
valuation techniques used for level 3 instruments-unlisted
equity securities was market approach and binomial model.
The Group does not have such instruments as at 31
December 2024.

& {7t B 5 i R} B 5
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(Continued)

The fair value of the unlisted preference shares as at 31
December 2023 was measured using a valuation technique
with significant unobservable inputs and hence the financial
assets at FVTPL were classified as Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy.

Such investments held by the Group have become listed on
the Stock Exchange since 6 December 2024, with its shares
traded in an active market. The fair value of these financial
assets at FVTPL was then determined based on a price
quotation publicly available on the Stock Exchange and,
accordingly, the financial assets at FVTPL were transferred
from Level 3 to Level 1 during the year. The fair value of the
investment as at 31 December 2024 amounts to
RMB51,594,000 (2023: RMB212,370,000).

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 items for
the year ended 31 December 2024:

32.¢FMIAE(E)
) DREEGENSRIA (&)

BHE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=+—HLEFE"
FLEmEERNAAEERBBERME
TEE ARBFESARTAEENGA
PIAZBEERBERR/RAABEE=ZE A
MREBEFEEEEHFAAHNEE-

AEBREZRECEEZZENF+=
ARNBREESEAFARSGHET BB
AEERMETRE ZEBMEENAR
BEESRAEEELAZXZMAREMOER
BUARABEFEBEZ ST AL HFH
XP -EHlt ZeMEEURAABENE
BEESHFAGHFBERTAEF=ZEEA
F-E-BHE-_ZT-_WMF+=-_A=+—H
FFE ZREAABEZBERARKE
51,604,000 (= & — = F£: A R ¥
212,370,0007C) °

RBAEAXF BEWA (FEE) LA
EEE
TRIHBE-—E-_WE+=-_A=+—8H
I EFIBRENZ

2024 2023

—E-MNE —F=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREETFIT
At 1 January n—HA—H 212,370 212,572
Losses recognised in other income RE MU A FER A B & - (3,301)
Transfer #ig (210,978) -
Exchange realignment PE X 38 & (1,392) 3,099
At 31 December R+=-—RA=+—H 212,370
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(Continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
The following table summarises the quantitative information
about the significant unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair
value measurements for unlisted preference shares:

Description Fair value at

31 December 31 December
2024 2023
—EC-mE —E_=H
+=A=+-8 R EREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT

Unobservable inputs

fid RTIBEHMAREE HUBEREA

& i M 5 8 R M 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

32.¢FMITAE)
) DREEGENSRIA (&)

1 E 8 AR ERAEEREEFR
TRBARETEEREIE LA BER
EMEREAFIBEGANTEER:

Relationship of unobservable inputs
Inputs to fair values

BN FURRBANELREENHRE

Unlisted preference shares N/A 212,370 Risk-free Rate
K EmEER EEBEE
Volatility
& &

Valuation processes

The finance department of the Group includes a team that
performs the valuations of non-property items required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values. This
team reports directly to the chief financial officer (CFO) and
the audit committee (AC). Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the CFO, AC and the valuation
team at least once every six months, in line with the Group’s
half-yearly reporting periods.

4.04%  The higher the risk-free rate,
the higher the fair value
ERREXHS DABEMS
55.00% The higher the expected volatility,
the lower the fair value

FHREYS DA EERE

1 ER

AEBMBARE —EBEEK  FEHRE B
BEBMEFMEMERB HE  BEFEE
ANEE REFEEAMBRAENER
ZESEHR RESAEENFFRSE
B UHeE BEZZESRGEEER
LERNEANG - REERERAER -

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+—HILFE

33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING B.HMETHEENEEAD
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TREIASEREMEGTHABENES
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash FReMERSB L -REFTHEEANERE
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for EReRAARARBEERBEEBALIEEBKRA Fﬂ
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in BEHEHERENE -

the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

Bank loans Short-term/
and other Super short-

borrowings term

and interest commercial
payables papers Leases Total

RITHERT  BEYEH
Hiph g MEH HE k]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBETT

At 1 January 2024 RZZE-_WF—-—HA—AH 14,287,428 30,623 14,318,051
Financing cash flows BERSR (1,709,297) (52,211) (18,575) (1,780,083)
Interest expense and other finance charges  FlEEB R Eh 5 %2 425,731 52,211 1,169 479,111
Addition of leases REME = 14,373 14,373
Lease modified and disposed HEZERKE = (4,798) (4,798)
Exchange realignment I E =T ! - 286 95,955
At 31 December 2024 R-E-MF

+ZA=+-— 13,099,531 23,078 13,122,609
At 1 January 2023 R-_E-_=%—A—H 17,081,321 - 34,745 17,116,066
Financing cash flows BMERSR (3,469,208) (58,881) (21,885) (3,549,974)
Interest expense and other finance charges FIEER R EMHBEER 589,716 58,881 1,496 650,093
Addition of leases REWE - - 21,615 21,615
Lease modified and disposed HEZEREE - - (5,301) (5,301)
Exchange realignment I EEE 85,599 - (47) 85,552
At 31 December 2023 RZZ_=F

+-A=+—8 14,287,428 - 30,623 14,318,051

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2024
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 4. FAREE
At 31 December 2024, the Group had no material contingent RZBZNF+_A=+—H AEELESE
liabilities (2023: Nil). RIARBE(ZE_=F: #|&)-

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. & I
At 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group had the following RZE-_WFERTE_=F+=_A=+—8"
commitments: AEEZAENT :
Capital commitments B AR E

2024 2023
—E_-ME —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETF T

Contracted but not provided for in respect of: & % 4918 7K 5

Machinery and equipment e eE N B 488,447 539,801

Leasehold land and buildings MEtLmREF 373,351 729,342
861,798 1,269,143

Commitments under operating leases KREHEERE

The Group as lessor: EERARAEAA

The Group leases out certain office premises under operating SEREBELCEHELHETET BREZBE

lease agreements. The minimum lease payments receivable on AREFREERBBEERELT

leases are as follows:

2024 2023

—E-UEFE —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREEF T

Within one year —FR 30,084 34,248
Within a period of more than one year BBE—FETBBEAT

but not more than five years 60,411 60,122

After five years BBEAT 14,823 5,574

105,318 99,944

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+-—BHLFE

36. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD
The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position are as follows:

. XARBERENRE

REHEERBBERANERNSENOT

2024
—E-E
RMB’000
ARETR

Investments in associates (a) i
Investments in a joint venture (b) &

16,175
18,503

34,678

The amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement
are as follows:

2023
—E-=%F
RMB’000
AR T

41,352
15,602

56,854

REHFFIBRAEROSEMNT

2024
—E_E
RMB’000
ARBTR

Share of results of associates FE(RE & 2 W
Share of results of a joint venture A ErET W=

375
1

The details of investments in associates and a joint venture are as
follows:

(a) Associates

2023

—_—< — —

RMB’000
AR®ETIT

697
2

699

REELPERSELENREFBOT :

—E-ME
RMB’000
ARETT

41,352
(25,081)

375
(CYA))

At 1 January wn—A—H
Disposal BE

Share of result of associates FE(hF W=
Exchange realignment SNEE T H E 8

At 31 December W+=-—A=+—8

16,175

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2024

2023

—_—< — —

RMB’000
AR®TIT

43,576
4,377)
697
1,456

41,352
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

36.INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 36. AR EEZXENRE (&)
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(b) Joint venture (b) &L

2024 2023

—E-EF =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREF T
At 1 January wn—HA—H 15,502 -
Addition NE 3,000 15,500
Share of result of a joint venture FE AR F = 1 2

At 31 December R+ZRAR=+—H 15,502
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s AEBEEABEPERSGELERBAL
interests in the associates and a joint venture. BaE-
The particulars of the associates and a joint venture of the RZZE-_WNF+-_A=+—HI E#Ex
Group, all of which equity method is used to account for, are EIRZ AEBBEECEFBHIDT
set out as follows:
Place of business/
country of % of Nature of Particulars of issued share
Name of entity incorporation ownership interest relationship  capital/registered capital ~ Principal activities
HERRIER E#TRE/
AT EH BERBH KEEEERE Y HEMEREE TREH
2024 2023 2024 2023
“ECME CECME e
% %
Finnpulp Oy Kuopio, Finland 36.46% Associate N/A EUR10,002 Manufacturing, distribution
and sale of wood pulp
SEERLA" ERARE - 5K Btz I BLT10,0027  BE - - HEAE
Sinolight (Jinjiang) Hygiene Jinjiang, PRC 38.80% 38.80% Associate RMB RMB  Research and development
Products Research Co., 29,411,800 29,411,800 of personal hygiene
Ltd.* materials
HE(BELFEARARER BI1 +E BECE N AR HMENFAEZEAGERR
NG| 29,411,800 JVI R RIE0l)
Xiamen Anjian Real Estate Xiamen, PRC 50.00% 50.00% Joint Venture RMB RMB  Real estate development and
Operation Co., Ltd.” 37,000,000 37,000,000 operation
EMZRTBEELERAR B 48 BERNE N ARE RBHERZEES
ey UNN0E 37,000,000
Karrion Development Limited ~ Hong Kong, PRC 50.00% 50.00% Associate HKD HKD  Development, distribution,

1,000,000 1,000,000 wholesaling and retailing of
medical, healthcare and
hygiene products

EHZEBRBERAR B HE BEhE b B BT RESE BE EA
1,000,000 1,000000 EERELERTE
* For identification purpose only o EHER

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY J7.EREBRBALRS
TRANSACTIONS
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, WEA - ARKEBEMBE R EERK EHE
directly or indirectly, control the other party or exercise significant NEESKBEEESNS—F ilﬁ B—HEEY
influence over the other party in making financial and operation BRELETHERTESN EZ—r,\ﬂ?éﬁ
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are BEATEN E“JExﬁﬂ/\EJZA ﬂ%ﬁl@ﬁﬁﬁp

subject to common control.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BReEMyBREAMBESEN R
statements, the Group had the following significant related party FRZFZ=ZFAN AEERETTUTEER
transactions during the year ended 31 December 2024 and v
2023:
Key management compensation FTEEEAEEHM
2024 2023
—T-mE —ZT-=
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBFT
Basic salaries, housing allowances, other K% FFEER - HMER
allowances and benefits-in-kind BN &= pLWE 21,228
Share-based payment AR BERO M2 5,725 11,408
Contributions to pension schemes BRIREFEI 113 129

31,541 32,765

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2024



of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
in the opinion of the Directors,

subsidiaries would,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
& B 75 8 < Mt 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
at 31 December 2024 which, in the opinion of the Directors, are
significant to the results of the year or form a substantial portion

particulars of excessive length.

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind

3. TEMBAA

result in

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued share capital/

TH—BEXRINRARAR S _MF+ = A
—t+—HZEEWNBRA -EEMRAZEW
BRAREAFEZEBEEEATE
EEEEFEZERNLHD EFMRAHFIR
B BARZER @<EEBR -

KA

Interest held

Company of legal entity place of operation registered capital 2024
EEM AL BB R ERTRE/ —FC-mE
AT EE i A TREBREEREY HEMEXER FEfE R A 1 2
%
Direct subsidiaries:
EEMBAT:
Hengan Mega Jumbo Investments Ltd.  Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding, 9,000 ordinary shares, 100
company E-commerce,trading and HK$1,367,302,854
procurement in Hong Kong
BRYEREERLA B BREMERA REBREREER ZTFHB B LRARO,0008 - &5t
5 RERE 7 7%1,367,302,8547C
Hengan International Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding in Hong Kong 1 ordinary share, US$ 1 100
liability company
BRARZRERA RERLER BREAMLAR REBRSREER TERIR - As1ET
Indirect subsidiaries:
EEHEAS :
Hengan (China) Investment Co., Ltd.* PRC, wholly foreign-owned Investment holding, trading and RMB1,180,000,000 100
enterprise procurement in the PRC
BR(HE)REFRAT mE2ELE RPARERE BHRRE A K #1,180,000,00070
Hengan Industrial (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Trading and procurement in Hong 2 ordinary shares, HK$2 100
company Kong
BREX(FE)BERAA B BREMERT REBREE S RRE L@k - astEKT
Hengan Pharmacare Company Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Trading, procurement and sales of 10,000 ordinary shares of 70

Tt
it
=
%
5t
He
ant
A
=
EEf

company

BE BREMERA

personal hygiene products in
Hong Kong

REEREES KERLEEA
BERM

HK$2,030,786

& BA%10,0000% A &t
¥ 12,030,786 7T

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 3.FTEMB AT (&

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued share capital/

Interest held

Company of legal entity place of operation registered capital 2024
FE M AL LB S B R E#TRE/ —ECmE
AT EH EE TREBREEHE EMERHE FEfE R A HE 2
%
Indirect subsidiaries: (Continued)
HEMBAT: (&)
PT. Hengan Global Indonesia, limited liability Distribution and sale of personal US$6,200,000 90.32
company hygiene products in Indonesia
BRERAERRA" MERAZ(NERAS]) - ROEEALRSHREEEAAEE  6200,000% T
BEREALDA A
Fujian Hengan Holding Xiamen Business  PRC, sino-foreign equity joint  Trading in the PRC RMB100,000,000 100
Trade Co., Ltd. venture
BRELEEEMBHEARAA B R ERE RABEREES A & #100,000,0007¢
Fujian Hengan Holding Co., Ltd. PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ Manufacturing, distribution and sale ~ RMB511,407,600 99.02
venture of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
BREXEEERAR B R ERE RARBERE SEREEBAGE  ARMK511,407,6007
A
Guangdong Paper Products Co., Ltd. PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale  US$18,000,000 100
enterprise of packaged tissue paper in the
PRC
EREZARERLA mE 2NALE R ERE SEERHEEEMASE  18,000,000% T
Guangdong Hengan Paper Co., Ltd* PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale  RMB288,880,000 100
enterprise of packaged tissue paper in the
PRC
EREZBEARLA mE 2NALE RPRRE SHERHELEAK  ARN288,880,0007T
Harmony Pharmacare Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Manufacturing, distribution and sale 25,000,000 ordinary shares of 7
company of protective equipment in Hong HK$25,000,000
Kong
BHMERDA BE BREERA RERRE SHERHENERR  LEAR25,000,0008 @ &5
7 #25,000,0007C
Hengan (Jinjiang) Household Products ~ PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale  US$15,800,000 100
Co., Ltd. enterprise of personal hygiene products,
personal hygiene material
products and household products
in the PRC
Bk (BIL)EERRERAA mE 2NALE R EE  SEREERAGER  15,800,000% T
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind

& {7t B 5 i R} B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_Z-_mMF+-_A=+-—BLFE

3.TEMB AT (&

Principal activities and

Particulars of

issued share capital/ Interest held

Company of legal entity place of operation registered capital 2024
EEM AT AR R ERTRE/ ko1 -3
ATEE EE A TEEBREERY HEMEFER FEfE R A 1 2
%
Indirect subsidiaries: (Continueq)
BEMBAT: (&)
Fujian Hengan Hygiene Material PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale  US$40,000,000 100
Co., Ltd. enterprise of personal hygiene products and
household products in the PRC
BREZEEVNHERRR RE2HELE RPERE  DHREEEENER  40,000,0005% 7T
&R m
Quanzhou Jinjiang Hengan Hygiene PRC, sino-foreign equity joint  Manufacturing, distribution and sale  RMB11,100,000 100
Science and Technology Co., Ltd. venture of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
SMTEIEBRFENRERAA hE - FNEERE NP RSE SHREEEEMNE  ARK11,100,0007T
Hengan (Sichuan) Family Products PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale  US$3,000,000 100
Co., Ltd.* enterprise of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
Bz@DRERRERLR B 2ANERE RABERE SERHEEAGE  3,000,000% T
Fi i
Hengan (Xiaogan) Family Products PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ Manufacturing, distribution and sale  RMB76,200,200 100
Co., Ltd.” venture of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
BR(ZR)KERGRERAH hE - FNEERE NP RSE SHREEEAEE  AR¥76,200,2007T
i
Hengan (Sichuan) Household Products ~ PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ Manufacturing, distribution and sale ~ US$16,380,000 100
Co., Ltd.* venture of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
Bz@DEERRERAR mE RN ERE RABERE SERHEBAGE  16,380,000% T
Fi i
Hengan (Fushun) Household Products PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ Manufacturing, distribution and sale  RMB73,660,000 100
Co., Ltd.” venture of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
B (HIE)EERRERAA hE - FNEERE NP ESE SHREEEAEE  ARK73,660,0007T
i
EREREERRAT

T -FEFR
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 3.FTEMB AT (&

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued share capital/

Interest held

Company of legal entity place of operation registered capital 2024
EEM AT B E R ERTRE/ ko1 -3
AT EE i B i TEEBREERY HEMERER FEfE R A 1 2
%
Indirect subsidiaries: (Continued)
BEMBAT: (&)
Hengan (Jiangxi) Household Products PRC, sino-foreign equity joint Manufacturing, distribution and sale  HK$94,388,000 100
Co., Ltd." venture of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
B (IR RERRERRA RERHRELE NP ESE SHEREEEABE 804,388,000
A
Hengan (Hefei) Living Co., Ltd.” PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ Manufacturing, distribution and sale RMB114,300,000 100
venture of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
BR(AR)EERGERAR hE - FNEERE RERSE SHEREEAAEE  ARH114,300,0007
A&
Hunan Hengan Paper Co., Ltd. PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale  US$39,980,000 100
enterprise of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
HEBZRERRAT RE2NERE NP ESE SHEREEEERK  39,980,000% T
Jiangxi Hengan Biotechnology Co., Ltd.*  PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale  RMB15,000,000 100
enterprise of medical instrument, skin care
products and antiseptics in the
PRC
IREEREMHRERAR mE - RNERE RPERE  HERHERERM . AR%15,000,0007T
EEERMESH
Hengan (Xiaogan) Medical Instruments ~ PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale  US$10,000,000 100
Technology Co., Ltd.* enterprise of medical instrument in the PRC
BR(ZR) BEAMHRARLDA B RAERE NP ERE SHERHEERSEM  10,000,000% 7T
Hengan (China) Paper Industry PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale  US$165,570,000 100
Co., Ltd. enterprise of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
BR(RE)REERAF hERNERE NP ESE SHREEEERK  165570,000% T
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind

3.TEMB AT (&

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued share capital/

Interest held

Company of legal entity place of operation registered capital 2024
MBI BB R ERTRE/ —F-mE
ATEE EE A TEEBREERY HEMEFER FEfE R A 1 2
%
Indirect subsidiaries: (Continueq)
BEMBAT: (&)
Hengan (China) Hygiene Products PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ Manufacturing, distribution and sale ~ US$105,850,000 100
Co., Ltd. venture of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
B (HE)EERRERDA mEFARERE NP ERE SHEREEEABE  105850,000% T
P i
Hengan (Tianjin) Paper Co., Ltd. PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ Manufacturing, distribution and sale  RMB105,731,005 100
venture of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
BR(RE)AEBERAA hE - FNEERE RPBRSE SHREEEERK  ARH105,731,0057T
Hengan (Guangxi) Paper Co., Ltd. PRC, sino-foreign equity joint Manufacturing, distribution and sale  RMB191,400,000 100
venture of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
BR(BA)AXERAF mE - mSHRBELE NP RRE SHERHEEEAE  ARK191,400,0007
Hengan (Hunan) Hearttex Paper PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ Manufacturing, distribution and sale  RMB209,000,000 100
Co., Ltd.” venture of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
BROHE) CHDAEERAR hE - FNEERE NP RSE SHREEEEAK  ARH209,000,0007
Hunan Hengan Living Paper Products PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ Manufacturing, distribution and sale  RMB852,280,000 100
Co., Ltd." venture of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
HEEBREEREERAR mE RS ERE RPESE SHREEEERK  ARHS852,280,0007T
Hengan (Chongaing) Living Paper PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ Manufacturing, distribution and sale  RMB959,200,000 100
Co., Ltd. venture of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
BR(EB)EERBEERDLR mE - FNEELE RABERE SHEREEEERSE  AKRB959,200,0007
Jinjiang Hengan Household Tissue PRC, sino-foreign equity joint  Manufacturing, distribution and sale  US$12,000,000 100
Product Co., Ltd. venture of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
BIERRELERAERAA HE - FNEERE NP ESE SHREEEERK  12,000,000% T
EREREERRAT

T -FEFR
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 3.FTEMB AT (&

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued share capital/

Interest held

Company of legal entity place of operation registered capital 2024
MBI BB R ERTRE/ “F-mE
AT EE i B i TEEBREERY HEMERER FEfE R A 1 2
%
Indirect subsidiaries: (Continued)
BEMBAT: (&)
Shandong Hengan Paper Co., Ltd.* PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ Manufacturing, distribution and sale ~ US$188,710,000 100
venture of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
LWREZEEFRAA RERHRELE NP ESE SHREEEERK 188,710,000 T
Chongaing Hengan Hearttex Paper PRC, sino-foreign equity joint  Manufacturing, distribution and sale  US$21,987,500 100
Products Co., Ltd. venture of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
ERFEROMINAHRERAT hE - FNEERE RPRSE SHREEEERK  21987,500% T
Hengan Li Ren Tang (Jian) Cosmetics PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale  RMB32,000,000 100
Co., Ltd. enterprise of skin care products and daily
personal necessities in the PRC
BRBAZ(ER)RILBERAR B 2AERE RPBEgE  SERHEEEREA A RKS32,000,0007T
HAm
Hengan (Wuhu) Paper Industry PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ Manufacturing, distribution and sale  RMB874,000,000 100
Co., Ltd. venture of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
BR(EHAEERDA hE - RNEELE RPRSE SHEREEEERK  ARHSE74,000,0007T
Junichi (Xiamen) Maternal and Child PRC, wholly foreign-owned Trading pregnant women, infants and ~ HK$24,000,000 100
Articles Co., Ltd. enterprise kid’s products in the PRC
F-(EMEERRERAA hE - 2MERE RPES#H2E B7 REMM  E%24,000,0007
Junichi Co., Ltd. Japan, limited liability company ~ Trading the products for ladies and  Japanese Yen 100,000 100
babies in Japan
FoRA et HEA BRERRA RAXDHEELMNHZB R H 7£100,0007T
Hengan (Henan) Hygiene Products PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ Manufacturing, distribution and sale  RMB82,000,000 100
Co., Ltd. venture of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
Bz (IE) EERRERAH hE - HNEERE RPESE SHEREEEAEE  AR¥82,0000007T
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BE-T-mFE+-A=+-ALFE
38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 3.TEMB AT (&
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of
establishment and kind Principal activities and issued share capital/ Interest held
Company of legal entity place of operation registered capital 2024
EEM AT AR R ERTRE/ ko1 -3
ATEE EE L TEEBREERY HEMEFER [31:%:3: 31
%
Indirect subsidiaries: (Continueq)
BEMBAT: (&)
Hengan (Zhejiang) Homecare Products ~ PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ Manufacturing, distribution and sale  US$100,000,000 100
Co., Ltd." venture of packaged tissue paper in the
PRC
BN RELERRERAA mEFARERE NP ESE SHEREEEERK  100,000,000% T
Fujian Hengan Homecare Products PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ Manufacturing, distribution and sale  RMB394,930,500 100
Co., Ltd.” venture of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
BREZRELEARERAA hE - FNEERE RPRSE SHEREEAAFE  ARH394,930,5007T
i
Wuhu Hengan Hearttex Paper Products  PRG, sino-foreign equity joint Manufacturing, distribution and sale  RMB105,000,000 100
Co., Ltd." venture of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
EHEZORDNEERERDA mE RN ERE RABERE SEREEEERSE  AKM105000,0007
Xiamen Hengan E-commerce PRC, wholly foreign-owned Sales of cosmetic products and RMB2,000,000 100
Co., Ltd.” enterprise personal hygiene products via
online in the PRC
EFMBEREFHBERAR mERNERE REREBBHE e REA AR #2,000,0007T
BERM
Xiamen Space Seven E-commerce PRC, wholly foreign-owned Sales of cosmetic products and RMB2,000,000 100
Co., Ltd." enterprise personal hygiene products via
online in the PRC
EFtECHEFHBEARDA B 2AERE RABEERSEHE K REA A K #2,000,0007T
HERAR
EREREERRAT
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 3.FTEMB AT (&

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued share capital/

Interest held

Company of legal entity place of operation registered capital 2024
EEM AT B E R ERTRE/ ko1 -3
AT EE i B i TEEBREERY HEMERER FEfE R A 1 2
%
Indirect subsidiaries: (Continued)
BEMBAT: (&)
Xinjiang Hengan Paper Co., Ltd.* PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale  RMB387,000,000 100
enterprise of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
HBEREEARLA RERHRELE RPESRE SHERHEEEAE  ARM387,000,0007T
Weifang Hengan Thermal Power PRC, sino-foreign equity joint  Manufacturing, distribution and sale  US$12,000,000 100
Co., Ltd.” venture of heating and power in the PRC
EHBRATERAT hERHRELE RPERERD HENRAE 12,000,000 7T
Weifang Hengan Gas Co., Ltd.* PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale  RMB10,000,000 100
enterprise of gas in the PRC
HSEBZRAERRA HERNERE R ESE  SHREERT AR #10,000,0007T
PT. Hengan Global Hygiene Products*  Indonesia, limited liability Manufacturing, distrioution and sale  US$10,000,000 70
company of papers in Indonesia
BRRREERRERD A HERED FRECLF RIOEEARHEE SHRHE 10,000,000% 7T
HEm
Hengan (Malaysia) Investments British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding in Malaysia 1 ordinary share of US$ 1 each 100
Company Limited liability company
BR(FRAR)REBERAA RBRLHER BREAMLF RERASRSREZR TERIR - Aas1ET
Wang-Zheng Berhad Malaysia, Public Listed Limited  Investment holding in Malaysia Malaysian Ringgit (‘MYR”) 57.02
86,976,638
EREE BRAED REETAA RERBAERERERR 86,976,638 R A LM & 5
(5%
Wang-Zheng Corporation Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia, Limited liability Distributor of disposable fibre-based ~ MYR3,425,000 57.02
company products in Malaysia
EHEHERDA" BERED BREERH RERAGHEEEERNSH 3,425,000 ¥
Quality Hero Corporation Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia, Limited liability Manufacturing and sale of adult MYR350,000 57.02
company diaper, baby diaper and sanitary
napkins products in Malaysia
BmELERRA BRET BREELTA RERADHE  SHERMERAR 350,000 %

Annual Report 2024
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 3.TEMEB LT (&
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of
establishment and kind Principal activities and issued share capital/ Interest held
Company of legal entity place of operation registered capital 2024
BRI RIS R EBTRE/ ko1 -3
ATER EE R TEEBREEDEY SMEXFR L3 EN

%

Indirect subsidiaries: (Continueq)

BEMBAS: (8

Carefeel Cotton Industries (M) Sdn. Bhd.  Malaysia, Limited liability Manufacturing and sale of facial MYR2,187,500 57.02
company cotton products in Malaysia
FFERIX(F)ARQA EREL BREERA RERBEHE  DEREEMME  2,187,500F &
RRERBER
New Top Win Corporation Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia, Limited liability Importing, processing and trading of  MYR1,000,000 57.02
company papers in Malaysia
HarBESERAF" BRAL BREARA RERATED  MIREEEZS 1,000,000 &
Modern Alpine Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia, Limited liability Trading of papers in Malaysia MYR3,000,000 57.02
company
HREERAR" BREAL BREELF RERAGREARRES 3,000,000% #
Hengan (Shaanxi) Homecare Products ~ PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale  US$24,980,000 100
Co., Ltd." enterprise of personal hygiene products in
the PRC
BR(RA)RELERRERAR hEhSRELE RPERE  SPHREEEAGER  24,980,000% 7T
mREERR
Hengan (Hubei) Paper Industry PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale  RMB100,000,000 100
Co., Ltd* enterprise of packaged tissue paper
products in the PRC
BRI AEBERRA mERNERE RPESE SHEREEEERK  ARH100,000,0007
EREREERRAT 217

T -FEFR
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 3.FTEMB AT (&

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued share capital/

Interest held

Company of legal entity place of operation registered capital 2024
EEM AT B E R ERTRE/ ko1 -3
AT EE i B i TEEBREERY HEMERER FEfE R A 1 2
%
Indirect subsidiaries: (Continued)
BEMBAT: (&)
Fujian Hengan Hengpin E-commerce PRC, wholly foreign-owned Sales of cosmetic products and RMB10,000,000 100
Co., Ltd.* enterprise personal hygiene products via
online in the PRC
BREZEREFEBARLA mE - 2NELE NP EEBBHE i REA A R #10,000,0007C
BERM
Hengan (Luxembourg) Investment Luxembourg, limited liability Investment holding in Luxembourg Euro 12,500 100
Company Limited company
BR(ERB)REBERLF ERE FREARA RERBREREER 12,5008 T
Hengan (Orient) Hygiene Product Russia, limited liability company —Manufacturing, distribution and sale  Russian Ruble 600,000,000 51
Co., Ltd." of personal hygiene products in
the Russia
BR(RA)BEARERAA REN FREERA REBEE  HHEREEBEARE  600,000,000E 7
Fi i
Sunway Kordis Holding Ltd. Cayman, limited liability Investment holding in the PRC 2,099,999 ordinary shares of 100
company Us$ 2,100
BRERERA A" REREs BREMEAA R ERSREER & B MR2,009,9998% » & 5
2,100% T
Starful Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding in Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$ 1 each 100
liability company
EXBRAF" KERUEE BREMERA REBURIREER TRRIR A51ET
Sunway Kordis Asia Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Trading and consultancy in Hong 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 100

BREMERRA

Annual Report 2024
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind

3.TEMB AT (&

Principal activities and

Particulars of
issued share capital/

Interest held

Company of legal entity place of operation registered capital 2024
MBI BB R ERTRE/ —ECZME
ATEE EE A TEEBREERY HEMEFER [31:%:3: 31
%
Indirect subsidiaries: (Continueq)
BEMBAT: (&)
Sunway Kordis (Shanghai) Limited* PRC, wholly foreign-owned Manufacturing, distribution and sale  US$3,100,000 100
enterprise of household products in the PRC
BHZEERAR(LE)ERAR B 2AERE NP RRE SHERHERAREA  3,100,000% T
Wang-Zheng Hong Kong Trading Co. Hong Kong, limited liability Trading and procurement in Hong HK$10,000 57.02
Limited company Kong
ERFEEHBERDA B BREMERA REBREE S LRE 10,0007 #
Hengan (Fujian) Investment company British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding in Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$ 1 each 100
Limited liability company
BR(BR)REBERA A RERLHER BREMLR REBRSREER TRRIR - A51ET
Hainan Heng'an Supply Chain PRC, wholly foreign-owned Trading in the PRC RMB1,000,000 100
Management Co., Ltd. enterprise
BHELHERERERAR B 2AERE RPEAREES A K %1,000,000
Hengan E-commerce (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited liability Sales of personal hygiene products 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each 100

Company Limited
BREFHE(BR)BRAA

company
5% BRAALT

via online in Hong Kong
RABEEEEBRBHERAGE
AmRkEERM

ERBIR - 4B

E# s

* For identification purpose only *

BRANTRARNDHEERERTEK  B8% (B
FIEXERAAR BRELXEBEARAA R

The non-controlling interests in respect of Hengan Pharmacare
Company Limited, Fujian Hengan Holding Co., Ltd., Quanzhou

Jinjiang Hengan Hygiene Science and Technology Co, Ltd., PT. NTMEIEZHEREAERAR  BERIRKE
Hengan Global, PT. Hengan Global Hygiene Products, Hengan BAF - BELXBRNEERAGARAR - BL(E
(Orient) Hygiene Product Co., Ltd., Harmony Pharmacare Limited FEERREREEAR - EHFNAERA A

and Wang-Zheng Berhad and its subsidiaries are not material. MEWEERENEAFR -

HNHEZEWMBRR  PBERRERERRRG T
A 2 SINE  5 M 25 R0 AR B RORAE o

For the non-wholly owned subsidiaries, the non-controlling
interests represent the remaining interests and the related voting
rights other than those held by the Company.

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR
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39. INFORMATION OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF V. AREEEBERESR
THE COMPANY

A summarised statement of financial position of the Company as HE-_Z-_NFR-_ZT-_=F+=-A=+—H
at 31 December 2024 and 2023 is as follows: IFEFEENRAREERBERBENT
2024 2023
—E_MmE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T
Non-current assets ERHEE
Investments in subsidiaries MEARRE 5,250,263 5,202,641
Current assets RHEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE s Bt /2B~ B kA 3,966,983 6,783,589
Other receivables, prepayments and EfEWRIRZR FERKRR R
deposits e [ 162
Cash and bank balances Be RIBITER 15,857 97,356
3,983,008 6,881,107
Total assets wEE 9,233,271 12,083,748
Capital and reserves BEXRGEE
Share capital fi& < 123,345 123,345
Other reserves (Note (i) H b G (T a230)) (248,296) (168,633)
Retained earnings (Note (i) B 17w (K1 aE30)) 8,120,327 9,496,940
Total equity LS 7,995,376 9,451,652
Non-current liabilities EFHER
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE A< B /2B~ B kI8 198,038 1,484,348
Current liabilities A=K
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE A BT /BB A B SR8 496,540 13,328
Other payables and accrued charges HibEMIRAKLIERE A 6,214 46,980
Borrowings & & 537,103 1,087,440
1,039,857 1,147,748
Total liabilities BafE 1,237,895 2,632,096
Total equity and liabilities HERAEESS 9,233,271 12,083,748
The statement of financial position of the Company was approved AARMBHREECHEZTENR T _AF=A
by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2025 and was signed on “ThAMER URKEFEEE
its behalf.
Director Director
EZE Eaa
Sze Man Bok Hui Ching Lau
B3 FiER

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2024
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+—HILFE
39. INFORMATION OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF V.AFEEEBXRER(E)
THE COMPANY (Continued)
B o
()  Movement in reserves () 2RREZZIHER
Retained Other
earnings reserves
BHEWE Hibfa
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFTT
At 1 January 2024 R-E-_MF—A—H 9,496,940 (168,633)
Profit for the year F E R 217,877 =
Currency translation differences SN I E - 107,148
2023 final dividend paid ZEZ=FERAARE (797,245) =
2024 interim dividend paid ZTEZMFEEIRTHRKRE (797,245) =
Employee share option schemes: BT &
— value of employee services -BIRBER 8,075
Employee share award schemes: B T AR 1D BB T2l -
- shares withheld for share award schemes - Bty SR E B AR A (194,886)
At 31 December 2024 HRZZE-_WmM&F+=-—A=+—H 8,120,327 (248,296)
At 1 January 2023 RZZE-_=%—H—H 8,780,430 73,299
Profit for the year F [Z F)E 2,343,480 -
Currency translation differences SN I E - 82,041
2022 final dividend paid ZEZ_FERAARE (813,485) -
2023 interim dividend paid ZTE=FERTPHRE (813,485) -
Employee share option schemes: BT &
— value of employee services -BIRBER - 44,996
Employee share award schemes: B T AR 1D SeEh T &l -
- shares withheld for share award schemes - Bty SR E B AR A - (368,969)
At 31 December 2023 WZZE-_=F+=-A=+—H 9,496,940 (168,633)

EXREREEHRAT
T -FEFR
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40. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 40.E=H2

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments EEREREEENS
The remuneration of every Director and the Chief Executive for the HE-Z-_ME+_A=+—HLFE 8%
year ended 31 December 2024 is set out below: EERTHRATENOFMOT

Employer’s
contribution to

Discretionary Share-based a retirement

Name of Director Salaries bonuses compensation benefit scheme Total
Y4y iR fR5T B8

Exal Gk g BiFEs ERpMe RN &t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRE ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETRE ARETR

Director S
Mr. Sze Man Bok HESIE 4
Mr. Hui Lin Chit HEREE
Mr. Hui Ching Lau Rkt
Mr. Xu Da Zuo FRELE
Mr. Sze Wong Kim W2 85 4
Mr. Hui Ching Chi FEME A
Mr. Li Wai Leung TEREE
Mr. Xu Wenmo XA
16,909 23,114
Independent Non-Executive BUAFRITES
Director
Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong BERELLT
Mr. Theil Paul Marin Theil Paul Marin%: 4
Mr. Ho Kwai Ching, Mark AEBERE
Mr. Chen Chuang B A&

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2024



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e FTMEE
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BE-_Z-_MF+-_A=+—HILFE

40. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 40.EEME (&

(Continued)
Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments (Continued) EEREREEEMS (&)
The remuneration of every Director and the Chief Executive for the HE-ZE-_=F+-_A=+—RALFE 8%
year ended 31 December 2023 is set out below: BEERITHBHNFMAT
Employer’s
contribution to
Discretionary Share-based a retirement
Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses  compensation benefit scheme Total
LARRAD A RNETEIE)
ERLH ik g% BERe EfMME EEHT )
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBTT ARETR ARBFT ARBTT ARETR
Director B
Mr. Sze Man Bok EXE R E 82 320 - 93 16 511
Mr. Hui Lin Chit FEREE 82 1,207 - 278 16 1,583
Mr. Hui Ching Lau HEREA 54 7,001 - 8,355 3 15,413
Mr. Xu Da Zuo BN 54 1,403 = 278 46 1,781
Mr. Sze Wong Kim el ks 54 - - 93 3 150
Mr. Hui Ching Chi HE S 82 1,827 270 371 20 2,570
Mr. Li Wai Leung TERELE 82 1,552 496 278 18 2,426
Mr. Xu Wenmo (i) B € itad) 19 172 - 66 1 258
Mr. Hung Ching Shan (ii) HEE L A (i) 21 51 - 1 4 77
Mr. Xu Shui Shen (i) IO 5t A (i) 21 181 - 181 1 384
Mr. Xu Chun Man (i) B Pirteat () 21 = - 1 1 23
572 13,714 766 9,995 129 25,176
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Director
Ms. Ada Ying Kay Wong ERBLL 108 = - = - 108
Mr. Theil Paul Marin Theil Paul Marin’t £ 108 - - - - 108
Mr. Ho Kwai Ching, Mark MEBELE 108 - - - - 108
Mr. Chen Chuang FR 8 % & 108 - - - - 108
Mr. Chan Henry (i BR 84 58 % 4 (i) 43 - - - - 43
475 - - - - 475
()  Mr. Xu Wenmo was appointed as a Director on 24 August 2023. () FXBREER_Z_=ZFNA-_tTBE®
FABESE-
(i) Mr. Hung Ching Shan, Mr. Xu Shui Shen and Mr. Xu Chun Man retired (i) FEBFLEE FKRKEEEMTERTER
from Director on 22 May 2023. Mr. Chan Henry retired from TE_=FAA-t+-_BREEBUR
Independent Non-Executive Director on 22 May 2023. F-RBBEER TS ==FRA=+=

BB LIFMITEFBARMT -

EREREEFRAT
ZTUFEFER
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40. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Directors’ termination benefits
There were no termination benefits paid to any director at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group
provided no consideration to third parties for making available
director’s services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of:

(i)  directors of the Company;
(i) bodies corporate controlled by such directors; and

(iii) entities connected with such directors as at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

HENGAN INTERNATIONAL GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2024

0. E=M = (&)

EEERE THREHATHEEENZ
HtEt-Z-_N&Er-_FT-_ZF+-_A=+—H
FFERNEMBE ARAREARARANES
REEXHEELA —HHTHEEXBHEED
EARG LHRAHNTPHEEETE N -

MENMEERBOE=ZAZFTHRE
HE_Z-_NFELER_FTE-_=ZF+_-_A=+—H

LEE AEEYEREREEMBMMEE =
AXHRE -

ER -EERREMTZNES
VHEBAEEANTAXEANER BERK
KEAMIZ S

)y AARMESE:
(i) AZESZEHAEAEE: &

(i) EFERXEFTNEABGHEZESTEY

ZEWMERE-

EENXRS  REAECHONERER

ARARMETIEAAEBAREEB LN FER
FFEANEARBEFEZIERARS THEE
o MARREFTEXNEEAEREEENR

.
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